NNUAL REPORT .
|-

-
-

A

1\

~
sy 2
N

HEEME IR EREFEZERAT)

(RFZE

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

STOCK CODE & K55 : 402




Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Summary

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 44§ 1

CONTENTS
B &%

NAER 2
TRWE 7
EIRE RO 15
EEREREBEABEE 24
EREWE 29
PEERWE 57
RIE - g REBWE 73
B ZBMRE 102
FEBmR 106
freiam R EHMEEK

107
e MR &R 108
ke EEEER 110
HEHeRER 112
b e 114
S E 292



2 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T~ B IR BR AR

_________________________________________________ -

CORPORATE INFORMATION
~EEF

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. ZHANG Songlin (Chairman)
Mr. LI Bin (appointed as member on 1 October 2017)
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Mr. ZHU Dong (resigned as member on 1 October 2017)
Mr. ZHAI Shenggang (resigned as member on 1 October 2017)
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Mr. ZHANG Songlin (Chairman)
Mr. LI Bin (appointed as member on 1 October 2017)
Ms. Li Nan (appointed as member on 1 October 2017)
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Peace Map Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | hereby present the
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year, the Group continued to make efforts in
developing its core business relating to the geographic
information industry. The core business mainly consists of
three segments, namely the geospatial business application
and services, data collection, and development and sales of
equipment. Details of the Group’s performance during the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the remaining sections
of this annual report.

PROSPECTS

Construction of Smart Cities and UAV-featured Towns

Construction of Smart Cities

According to the plan of the relevant ministries and departments
for promoting smart city construction, more than 500 smart
cities are expected to commence construction or are under
construction in Mainland China this year. Currently, 290 cities
have been selected as pilot national smart cities and more than
300 cities have signed agreements in respect of smart city
construction.

The enthusiasm on constructing smart cities has been on the
rise all over Mainland China since the smart city concept was
introduced. The State Council of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) has announced three batches of pilot smart cities
by far, involving a total of 290 cities. “Report of Prospects and
Investment Forecast on China Smart City Construction” ({#
BEENMERZERITSEEERISTTHRE)) released by
QIANZHAN INTELLIGENCE CO., LTD pointed out that, up to
now, 95% of the sub-provincial cities and 89% of the prefecture-
level cities, or a total of more than 500 cities, have explicitly
proposed the construction of smart city in their government work
reports or in the 13th Five-Year Plan or have been doing so.
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PROSPECTS (Continueqd)

Construction of Smart Cities and UAV-featured Towns
(Continued)

Construction of Smart Cities (Continued)

Smart city will become a city’s overall development strategy,
and as a new engine for economic transformation, industrial
upgrading and urban upgrading, it will serve the purpose of
improving people’s livelihood, increasing enterprises’ economic
competitiveness and boosting a city’s sustainable development,
so as to embody higher urban development principle and
innovation spirit.

Xiantao Municipal Commission of Housing of Urban-Rural
Development ({LBkT{EFE MMk AEZRZ E =) plans to carry out
the establishment of smart housing and construction information
platform so as to implement “Several Opinions on Promoting the
Development and Reform of Construction Industry” (B HE#E
BEEERMBENETER)) and “2016-2020 Construction
Industry Information Development Program” ({2016-2020%F
EEEEBIEEME)) issued by the Ministry of Housing
and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC, “the “13th Five-
Year” Plan of Hubei Housing and Urban-Rural Construction
Network and Informatization” (C#it& (EEM AP R B
=Bl T=H }8Z])) issued by Department of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development of Hubei Province and “A Notice of
the Municipal People’s Government Office on the Breakdown
of Urban Construction and Double Repairment Major Project
in the year 2017” ((TARBITIHAZEEN D #R2017F 5 M iE
B T S ER TR AERH@A)) issued by the People’s
Government of Xiantao. Xiantao smart housing and construction
information platform is necessary for creating a “Smart City” and
a “Sponge City”, which will greatly enhance the management
of municipal infrastructure in Xiantao and effectively enhance
the informationization of urban and rural municipal infrastructure
management.
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PROSPECTS (Continueqd)

Construction of Smart Cities and UAV-featured Towns
(Continued)

Construction of Smart Cities (Continued)

Xiantao Smart Housing and Construction Information Platform
Project includes housing and construction administration office
system, information system of urban smart gardening, warning,
monitoring and command system for preventing waterlogging
and discharging drains in urban areas, smart management
system of pump stations and culvert, grid management system of
municipal facilities maintenance, information management system
of underground-integrated pipeline network, monitoring system of
bridges, monitoring system of urban gas, management system of
urban street lights, collection and disposal management system
for rural cleaning projects, monitoring system of urban and rural
sewage treatment plants, monitoring system of urban water
supply, information management system of urban construction
archives, management system of smart city public transportation,
regulatory platform of provincial construction project testing
information and integrated information regulatory platform of the
national construction system.

The UAV-Featured Town Project

Taking UAV (unmanned aerial vehicle) industry as the core
productivity, this project is designed to introduce the upstream
and downstream projects of the UAV industry to settle in Xiantao
and attract leading enterprises at home and abroad to establish
their operations in town. By extending the industry through
related services such as UAV flight operator training, international
drone-related contests and drone flying experiences, it will make
Xiantao an international UAV experience and training centre, a
flight experience centre, an ecologically livable city and a AAAAA
aviation-themed tourist area. The “UAV-Featured Town” Project
can grasp the good opportunities in the industry to further
integrate the investment elements of enterprises by leveraging
the industrial chain advantages, boost the consumption of the
tertiary industry, and enhance the Company’s reputation so as to
further develop the Company’s new businesses.
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PROSPECTS (Continueqd)

Traditional surveying and mapping industry

On 4 January 2018, the Ministry of Land and Resources of
the PRC printed and distributed the “Overall Plan for the Third
National Land Survey” (EZAXEBLHFAERETER))
(the “Third Land Survey”), requiring “start of the third land
survey across the country in 2018, completion of obtaining and
processing of remote sensing data and preliminary classification
of the whole territory, and completion of the preparation of a
unified base map for land surveys and distribution of the map
throughout the country to conduct surveys”. In 2017, the Group
participated in pilot projects in certain cities, and acquired certain
technical advantages in obtaining and processing remote sensing
data. In the year 2018, the Group plans to set up a professional
technical team, and believes that the business related to the
Third Land Survey will flourish rapidly.

On 16 December 2016, the Ministry of Land and Resources
of the PRC issued the “Circular on Issues Concerning Further
Accelerating the Specification, Registration and Certification
of rights of the use of Countryside Homestead and Collective
Construction Land” (AR —2F IR EE AN & 88 235 A Hb 7
B EARMEAEA)), requiring to vigorously promote
the specification, registration and certification of rights of the
use of countryside homestead and collectively construction
land in rural areas. Up to now, all provinces and municipalities
in the country have successively carried out tendering. In recent
years, the Group has undertaken a large number of projects on
specification, registration and certification of land ownership,
and registration and certification of real estate, etc., therefore,
the Group has been familiar with processes in specification of
rights in land surveys and registration and certification of real
estates. The Group also has trained a large number of technical
staff, laying a solid foundation for specification, registration
and certification of rights of use in integrating land and house.
In 2018, the Group will sum up its experience based on the
contracted projects, and continue to carry out projects.
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PROSPECTS (Continueqd)

Traditional surveying and mapping industry (Continued)

On 10 April 2017, the State Council of the PRC promulgated
the “Guidance on the Establishment of Functional Zones for
Food Production and Protection Zones for Important Agricultural
Products” KBAREMIERAENGENEZREREERER
HIFEEE R, )), which pointed out that the country shall strive to
complete the assignment of plotting 1,058 million mu area for the
“two-zones” within three years. In 2017, the nationwide pilot work
has basically ended and the project will be fully implemented
in 2018. The Group has undertaken nearly a hundred rural
land contracted management right projects across the country
since 2013 and the customer resources, market reputation and
influence accumulated in the relevant sector will have a positive
effect on the projects for “plotting two-zones”.

On 7 February 2017, the General Office of the Central Committee
of the Communist Party of China and the General Office of the
State Council issued “Several Opinions on Demarcating and
Strictly Keeping the Ecological Redlines” (B8 &I E I B 74
BEREAEMETER)), and issued a notice calling on all
localities and departments to seriously carry it out in light of
actual conditions. The Group had developed a business system
of ecological redlines early in 2015. The Group won the bid of
participating in the national pilot projects in 2017 and cooperated
with the State’s Environmental Protection Administration
authorities in providing important technical support for the
ecological redlines using remote sensing data in a number
of provinces and municipalities. All these have prepared the
Group in advance for aggressively promoting the application
in the environmental protection industry in 2018, laying a solid
foundation for future business development.
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PROSPECTS (Continueqd)

Traditional surveying and mapping industry (Continued)

At present, 89% of the cities at prefecture level and above in
Mainland China have explicitly put forward the plan of developing
smart cities as their main strategy in economic development.
More than 500 cities are piloting with smart cities. In order to
further improve the efficiency of smart city construction, there
is a strong demand for three-dimensional modeling technology,
and the addition of oblique photography will be of great help
to three-dimensional modeling and city development. As the
first enterprise in the PRC to introduce oblique photography
technology, the Group has introduced a number of advanced
oblique aerial cameras and data processing software at home
and abroad. It has accumulated extensive technical experience
in the implementation of various projects, and has expanded into
planning and state territory based on oblique data applications.
In 2018, the Group will continue to increase its market influence
by leveraging on its technology and equipment advantages,
and strive for a wider application of the oblique photography
technology.
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PROSPECTS (Continueqd)

Informatization of Agricultural Insurance

At the beginning of 2017, the Group has cooperated with PICC
Property and Casualty Company Limited (a company listed on
the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”)) (hereinafter referred to as “PICC”) to
promote the development of agricultural insurance informatization
and jointly signed a strategic cooperation agreement for the three
agricultural services in the fields of technology, equipment and
data. The cooperation with PICC will provide precision services
for agricultural insurance premium rate actuary, insurance
development, product improvement, disaster prevention and
control, growth monitoring and risk warning to improve the
degree of agricultural insurance refinement. After that, the Group
won the bid of agricultural insurance service project awarded
by PICC in late 2017 and signed the national service contract
featuring “map-based underwriting and map-based settlement of
claims”. This implies that both parties will strengthen cooperation
and communication, integrate advantageous resources, actively
develop the informatization of agricultural insurance, with a
focus on building a “Nature-Land-People” integrated agricultural
insurance management and service system based on remote
sensing technology, relying on the geographic information system
and aided by the global positioning system. The purposes are to
ensure “map-based underwriting” and “map-based settlement
of claims” for agricultural insurance, and to solve the problem of
unbalanced information, high operating costs and low service
efficiency in the agricultural insurance operation.

2018 will be a year for the Group to work hard towards the stated
goal. After the transformation and upgrading and expansion into
related industries, the Board has sufficient confidence in bringing
desirable returns to the shareholders of the Company.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our gratitude to all our management and staff members
for their diligence and dedication over the past year. Along the
line, we will continue to improve our existing operation and carry
out further exploration and development for important businesses
while ramping up development of new business ventures and
exploring mergers and acquisitions opportunities, with an aim of
enhancing shareholder’s value in the long run.

GUAN Hongliang
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Related to Geographic Information Industry

During the year, the Group continued to commit to developing its
business relating to the geographic information industry, which is
mainly based on the geospatial business application and services
and partially based on data collection as well as development
and sales of equipment.

Business Application and Services

The Group has accumulated extensive experience and leading
competence in data processing and software development in
the PRC. The Group currently owns geographic information data
processing capacity that reaches leading international standard,
not only able to realize the automated processing of massive
image data, but also can process raw geographic image data into
“4D” data with diversified purposes, including digital orthophoto
model (DOM), digital elevation model (DEM), digital line graphics
(DLG) and digital raster graphics (DRG).

During the year, on the basis of guaranteeing the ongoing
development of traditional surveying and mapping services
such as planning, national territory and geographical conditions,
the Group further shifted its business focus to application
business of the industry. The Group did not only succeed in
bidding for agricultural insurance services, but also cooperated
with local governments in the development of UAV-featured
towns business. The transformation results are expected to be
stabilized in the next year. In addition, the Group has always
attached great importance to its social responsibilities and
actively participated in emergency and public security projects
covering emergency, public security, environmental protection,
meteorological phenomena and urban management, safety
supervision, etc. During the year, this segment recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$139.4 million, with a decrease of
11.6% on a year-on-year basis, which was mainly attributable to
business transformation which led to a decrease in revenue for
pure data processing services. As a result, the overall revenue of
this segment declined.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Data Collection

Since the entry into the geographic information industry, the
Group has had excellent geospatial information data acquisition
capability, and the Group possesses considerable amount of
talents and industrial experiences in terms of the introduction
of aerial photogrammetry equipment and aerial and aerospace
remote sensing data, and the street view data and unmanned
aerial vehicles low altitude remote sensing data acquisition, etc.
During the year, the data collection segment recorded a turnover
of approximately HK$54.7 million, with a decrease of 25.5% on
a year-on-year basis, which was due to a further transformation
and adjustment of the Group and the change of the core of
business layout into business application and services.

Development and Sales of Equipment

The Group has the independent ability to develop and
manufacture high-end surveying and mapping equipments
such as laser panoramic photogrammetry vehicles, professional
aerial surveying and mapping unmanned aerial vehicles and
geographic information emergency surveillance vehicles, etc.
and has been a franchisee distributor of Ultracam series aerial
camera products developed by Microsoft Corporation. During the
year, the development and sales of equipment segment recorded
a turnover of approximately HK$0.9 million, with a decrease of
47.1% on a year-on-year basis, which was mainly attributable to
the change of business layout and the decrease of total number
of contracts in this business segment which led to a decrease in
revenue for rental of equipments and manufacture of hardware
devices.
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RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group is principally
engaged in (i) business application and services; (i) data
collection; and (i) development and sales of equipment.

Revenue

The total revenue of the Group decreased by HK$37.8 million or
16.2%, from HK$232.8 million last year to HK$195.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017, mainly due to the decrease
in revenue generated from business application and services
segment and data collection segment in year 2017. The revenue
contributed by business application and services, data collection
and development and sales of equipment amounted to HK$139.4
million, HK$54.7 million and HK$0.9 million respectively for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$157.7 million,
HK$73.4 million and HK$1.7 million respectively), which
represented 71.5%, 28.0% and 0.5% respectively (2016: 67.7%,
31.6% and 0.7% respectively) of the Group’s total revenue.
Despite continued efforts made by the team of development and
sales of equipment, the performance of such segment is minimal
due to the lack of customer base and market presence. In view of
this, the Group will slow down its business plan of development
in respect of this segment.

Cost of revenue

The Group’s cost of revenue was HK$256.0 million, representing
an increase of HK$27.4 million or 12.0% as compared to
HK$228.6 million last year. Such increase was primarily due to
the increase in cost of segment from business application and
services as well as data collection including data processing and
rental of machines and software, etc.

Gross (loss) profit

The Group turned from HK$4.2 million of gross profit last year
into a gross loss of HK$60.9 million this year, as a result of
significant increase in cost of data processing and rental of
machines and software, etc.
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RESULTS (Continued)

Gross (loss) profit (Continued)

Besides, some of the projects recognised substantial loss in year
2017 due to the weather and airspace control restrictions and
other factors.

Other income

Other income during the year under review amounted to HK$4.0
million, representing a decrease of HK$6.9 million or 63.3% as
compared to HK$10.9 million last year, which was mainly due to
the decrease of government grants.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses decreased by HK$0.1
million to HK$24.6 million during the year (2016: HK$24.7 million),
representing a decrease of 0.4% against the year of 2016.

Administrative and other operating expenses

The administrative and other operating expenses decreased
by HK$39.4 million to HK$86.5 million during the year (2016:
HK$125.9 million), representing a decrease of 31.3% against
the year of 2016. The administrative expenses mainly consisted
of legal and professional fees, staff costs (including directors’
emoluments), depreciation expenses and amortisation expenses.

Finance costs

The Group recorded finance costs of HK$59.0 million,
representing an increase of HK$6.5 million or 12.4% as
compared to HK$52.5 million of last year. The finance costs
included the interests incurred from bank and other loans, and
the imputed interests on convertible notes.
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RESULTS (continued)

Impairment loss of goodwill

The Group recorded an impairment loss of goodwill of HK$285.8
million for the year (2016: HK$183.4 million) due to the decline of
operating performance in segment of business application and
services and data collection.

For details, please refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment loss of other intangible assets

The Group recorded an impairment loss of other intangible assets
of HK$89.5 million for the year (2016: HK$220.8 million) due to
the decline of operating performance in segment of business
application and services and data collection.

For details, please refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

As a result, the loss attributable to owners of the Company
was HK$633.5 million, which increased by HK$123.9 million as
compared to HK$509.6 million of last year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s bank balances and cash amounted to HK$101.2
million as at 31 December 2017, representing a decrease of
HK$57.4 million as compared to HK$158.6 million as at 31
December 2016.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the total borrowings of the Group,
which included convertible notes, bank borrowings and amounts
due to a non-controlling shareholder, were HK$638.8 million,
representing an increase of HK$57.5 million as compared to that
of HK$581.3 million as at 31 December 2016.

The Group’s current ratio as at 31 December 2017, calculated by
dividing current assets by current liabilities, was 0.9 times (2016:
1.3 times). The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2017, calculated
by dividing total borrowings, net of bank balances and cash,
and pledged bank deposits by total equity, was 186.1% (2016:
126.3%).

Charges on the Group’s assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group pledged its assets with
an aggregate net book value of HK$3.9 million (2016: HK$4.1
million) to secure bank borrowings.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liability as at 31 December
2017 and 2016.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s consolidated net liabilities
amounted to HK$288.8 million, representing a decrease
of HK$623.3 million as compared to HK$334.5 million of
consolidated net assets in 2016.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had 8,156,781,091
shares of HK$0.01 each in issue.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Capital reorganisation

On 14 August 2017, the Company effected the capital
reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”), which included:

the issued share capital of the Company reduced through
a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the Company to
the extent of HK$0.24 on each of the ordinary share(s) of
HK$0.25 each in the existing issued and unissued share
capital of the Company prior to the Capital Reorganisation
becoming effective (“Existing Shares”) such that the
nominal value of each issued Existing Share would
be reduced from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01 (the “Capital
Reduction”);

immediately following the Capital Reduction taking
effect, all the authorised but unissued share capital of
the Company (which shall include the authorised but
unissued share capital arising from the Capital Reduction)
would be cancelled in its entirety and forthwith upon such
cancellation, the authorised share capital of the Company
would be increased to HK$7,500,000,000 by the creation
of such number of additional ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company immediately
after the Capital Reorganisation becoming effective (“New
Shares”) as shall be sufficient to increase the authorised
share capital of the Company to HK$7,500,000,000 divided
into 750,000,000,000 New Shares;

the credits arising in the books of the Company from the
Capital Reduction would be credited to the contributed
surplus account of the Company within the meaning of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda; and
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Capital reorganisation (Continued)

iv.  the amount standing to the credit of the contributed surplus
account be applied to set off the accumulated losses of
the Company by the amount of such credit or be applied in
any other manner as may be permitted under the new bye-
laws of the Company which was adopted by the Company
on 24 July 2017 (Bermuda time)/25 July 2017 (Hong Kong
time) and all applicable laws of Bermuda.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
2 June 2017, 10 July 2017 and 14 August 2017, respectively
and the Company’s circular dated 16 June 2017.

Foreign exchange risk management

The Group’s transactions are primarily denominated in Renminbi
and Hong Kong Dollar. The Group has not implemented any
formal hedging policy. However, the Group monitors its foreign
exchange exposure continuously and, when it considers
appropriate and necessary, will consider hedging significant
foreign exchange exposure by way of forward foreign exchange
contracts.

Employees and remuneration

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 420 employees (2016:
411 employees). Total staff costs, including directors’ emoluments
for the year amounted to HK$84.0 million (2016: HK$106.1
million). The Group’s remuneration policies are primarily based
on the prevailing market salary levels and the performance of
the Group and of the individuals concerned. In addition to salary
payments, other staff benefits include performance bonuses,
education subsidies, provident funds, medical insurance and
the use of share option schemes to recognise and acknowledge
contributions made or potentially to be made to the business
development of the Group by its employees.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE’'S VIEW ON THE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S OPINION

The auditor of the Company does not express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017. The details of the disclaimer of opinion is
set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 102 to 105 of this annual report.

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
had discussed with the auditor of the Company on the audit
process, underlying reasons and basis for the auditor’s disclaimer
of opinion, and therefore acknowledged the audit opinion.

The Audit Committee considers that on the assumption that
there is successful and favourable outcomes to the measures
to be taken by the Directors and as set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group is able to generate
sufficient funds to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due in the foreseeable future. On that basis, the Audit
Committee has reviewed and agreed with the Board's position
concerning the audit opinion.

The Audit Committee will review the financial position of the
Group from time to time, and have further discussions with
the auditor of the Company as and when necessary. Based
on the circumstances and information then available (including
the outcomes to the measures to be taken by the Directors),
the Audit Committee will reassess the audit opinion and further
discuss with the management from time to time.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. GUAN Hongliang (“Mr. GUAN"), aged 48, has been an
Executive Director and Chairman of the Company since August
2014. Mr. GUAN holds a Doctorate’s degree in cartography and
geographic information systems from Capital Normal University, a
Master’s degree in applied animal science from Tokyo University
and an Executive Master of Business Administration degree
from Qinghua University. He also obtained a Bachelor’s degree
in ecology and environmental biology from Wuhan University. Mr.
GUAN has over 26 years of experience in data technology and
cartography. He was elected as a member of the “Recruitment
Program of Global Experts” (“F A&F&I”) in 2010, which was
implemented by the Central Committee of the Communist
Party of the PRC, and was appointed as a member of Expert
Consulting Committee of the People’s Republic of China. He was
the general manager of It R KX TNEEIEFM AR AT (Peace
Map Co., Ltd*) (“Beijing Peace Map”) from July 2006 to July
2011 and was appointed as its chairman in August 2011. Other
than the directorship in the Company, Mr. GUAN is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. WANG Zheng (“Mr. WANG”), aged 37, has been an
Executive Director of the Company since August 2014 and was
re-designated as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
on 4 January 2016. Mr. WANG passed the Self-Taught Higher
Education Examination in commercial English in Jiangsu Province
and was awarded a graduation certificate in commercial English
in 2001. He studied a course in business administration at the
China University of Political Science and Law from September
2010 to April 2012 and was awarded a course completion
certificate in June 2012. Mr. WANG had been the deputy general
manager of LR K TEEEHKMBR AR (Beijing Peace Map
Information and Technology Limited*) (“Beijing Peace Map
Information”) since August 2012 and be appointed as its
general manager and executive director from January 2016.
Other than the directorship in the Company, Mr. WANG is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

*

For identification purpose only
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. LI Bin, aged 46, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company on 28 April 2017. Mr. LI holds a Master’s degree
in business administration from Sun Yat-sen University and
a Bachelor’s degree in national economic management from
Renmin University of China, and is a class one senior economist.
Mr. LI has over 17 years of experience in financial management,
corporate financing and operation management. He is currently
the deputy general manager of finance division of AVIC
International Holding Corporation (“AVIC Int’l”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Ms. MU Yan, aged 39, was appointed as an Executive Director
on 28 April 2017. Ms. MU holds a Master’s degree in economics
from University of California, Irvine, the United States and a
Master’s degree in international business and finance from
University of Reading, the United Kingdom. She also obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in international finance from Beijing University
of Aeronautics and Astronautics. Ms. MU has over 10 years of
experience in capital operation and financial management. She is
currently an executive director of AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited
(“AVIC Joy”) which is a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange and substantial shareholder of the Company
and the asset and capital investment officer of finance division of
AVIC Int’l.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. LI Chengning, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 1 October 2017. Mr. LI graduated
from University of Electronic Science and Technology of China
(formerly known as FX#FEF LIZZM (Chengdu Institute of
Radio Engineering®)) in electronic equipment and measurement
technology. Mr. LI has over 30 years’ experience in investment
management and capital market area. He is currently the chief
investment officer of AVIC International (HK) Group Limited (“AVIC
Int’l Group”) which is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and a director of F#fiZEEEA R A 7] (CATIC Siwei Co., Ltd)
(“CATIC Siwei”), a substantial shareholder of Beijing Peace Map.
Mr. LI is also a director of certain subsidiaries and associated
companies of AVIC Int’l Group. He previously served as an
executive director and chairman of AVIC Joy and a manager of
enterprise management division and operation management
division of AVIC Int’l.

Mr. XU Jian, aged 33, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 1 October 2017 and the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company on 19 January 2018 respectively. Mr.
XU holds a Master’s degree in professional accounting from
Chinese Academy of Fiscal Sciences and a Bachelor’'s degree
in accounting from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law.
Mr. XU has over 10 years’ experience in accounting, financial
management and investment management. He is currently the
assistant chief financial officer of AVIC Int’l Group. Other than the
directorship in the Company, Mr. XU is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHANG Songlin, aged 52, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since March 2013. Mr.
ZHANG holds a Bachelor’s degree in economics from the School
of Finance of the Renmin University of China and is a senior
accountant. Mr. ZHANG is a member of the Beijing Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. ZHANG joined China Digital
Library Corporation Limited in 2005 and is now its vice president.

Ms. LI Nan, aged 40, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company on 1 October 2017. Ms. Ll
holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting from Peking University.
She is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and has over 16 years’ experience in accounting
and financial analysis. Ms. LI Nan is currently the strategy and
operation director of JD.com. Inc.

Mr. XU Lei, aged 40, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company on 1 October 2017. Mr.
XU holds a Master’s degree in laws (Business law in a global
context) from Université de Montréal (University of Montreal®) and
a Master’s degree in law (Economic law) from Peking University.
He also holds a Bachelor’s degree in law (Economic law) from
Sichuan University. Mr. XU Lei is a practising lawyer admitted in
the People’s Republic of China in 2002 and has over 15 years’
experience in the practice of law. He is also a member of All
China Lawyers Association and Beijing Lawyers Association. Mr.
XU Lei is currently a practicing lawyer of Beijing Goodwill Law
Firm.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAU Ka Ho, aged 39, has been the Deputy Chief Financial
Officer of the Company since April 2013 and the Company
Secretary of the Company since June 2016. Mr. LAU holds a
Master’s degree in business administration from The University of
lowa and a Master’s degree in corporate governance from The
Open University of Hong Kong. Mr. LAU is a fellow member of
both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He has
over 16 years of experience in accounting, auditing, corporate
finance and corporate secretarial areas.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details
of the principal activities of each principal subsidiary of the
Company are set forth in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group is principally engaged in geographical
information business in the PRC.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 106
to 291 of this annual report. No dividend has been recommended
by the Board for the year ended 31 December 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Particulars of a discussion and analysis on the activities specified
in Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws
of Hong Kong), including a fair review of the Group’s business,
a discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group, particulars of important events affecting the Company
that have occurred since the end of the financial year, if any,
and development in the Company’s business and analysis using
financial key performance indicators (the “KPIs”), are set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual
report. The above sections form an integral part of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The environmental policies and performance of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual
report.
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years/period is set out on page
292 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out
in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the bank and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2017 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CHANGE OF DOMICILE

On 10 July 2017, the change of domicile of the Company from
the Cayman Islands to Bermuda by way of deregistration in the
Cayman Islands and continuation as an exempted company
under the laws of Bermuda (the “Change of Domicile”) and
the adoption of the memorandum of continuance and bye-laws
in connection with the Change of Domicile were approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company. The Change of Domicile became
effective on 24 July 2017 (Bermuda time)/25 July 2017 (Hong
Kong time).

The details of the Change of Domicile were disclosed in the
Company’s circular dated 16 June 2017 and the Company’s
announcements dated 2 June 2017, 10 July 2017 and 25 July
2017.
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SHARE CAPITAL

On 14 August 2017, the Company completed the capital
reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”) as described in
the circular of the Company dated 16 June 2017. The Capital
Reorganisation involved the following:

M

(i)

(i)

the issued share capital of the Company reduced through
a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the Company to
the extent of HK$0.24 on each of the ordinary share(s) of
HK$0.25 each in the existing issued and unissued share
capital of the Company prior to the Capital Reorganisation
becoming effective (“Existing Shares”) such that the
nominal value of each issued Existing Share will be reduced
from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01 (the “Capital Reduction”);

immediately following the Capital Reduction taking
effect, all the authorised but unissued share capital of
the Company (which shall include the authorised but
unissued share capital arising from the Capital Reduction)
would be cancelled in its entirety and forthwith upon such
cancellation, the authorised share capital of the Company
would be increased to HK$7,500,000,000 by the creation
of such number of additional ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company immediately
after the Capital Reorganisation becoming effective (“New
Shares”) as shall be sufficient to increase the authorised
share capital of the Company to HK$7,500,000,000 divided
into 750,000,000,000 New Shares;

the credits arising in the books of the Company from the
Capital Reduction would be credited to the contributed
surplus account of the Company within the meaning of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda; and

the amount standing to the credit of the contributed surplus
account be applied to set off the accumulated losses of
the Company by the amount of such credit or be applied in
any other manner as may be permitted under the new bye-
laws of the Company which was adopted by the Company
on 24 July 2017 (Bermuda time)/25 July 2017 (Hong Kong
time) and all applicable laws of Bermuda.
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SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Capital Reorganisation was approved by the shareholders of
the Company by a special resolution at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 10 July 2017 and became
effective on 14 August 2017. As at the date of this report, the
issued share capital of the Company was HK$81,567,810.91,
divided into 8,156,781,091 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Details of the Capital Reorganisation were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 2 June 2017, 10 July
2017 and 14 August 2017 and the circular of the Company
dated 16 June 2017.

During the year, no share options had been exercised and no
convertible notes had been converted for the issuance of shares
of the Company.

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year ended 31 December 2017, are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2017.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of pledge or charge on assets of the Group as at
31 December 2017 are set out in notes 17 and 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December
2017 are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of the segment information of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 38
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association or bye-laws of the Company (the “Articles” or
“Bye-laws”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands or of Bermuda
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares of the
Company on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any
listed securities of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR ACQUIRING
CAPITAL ASSETS

Details of the disposals of subsidiaries of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements. Save as disclosed above,
the Group had no other significant investments or material
acquisitions and disposals during the year. The Group currently
has no specific plan for major investment or acquisition of
major capital assets or other businesses in 2018. However, the
Group will continue to identify new opportunities for business
development.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. GUAN Hongliang (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Zheng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LI Bin (appointed on 28 April 2017)
Ms. MU Yan (appointed on 28 April 2017)
Mr. LI Chengning (appointed on 1 October 2017)
Mr. XU Jian (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed as Executive Director on 1 October 2017
and appointed as Chief Financial Officer on 19 January 2018)

Mr. ZHU Dong
(resigned as Deputy Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director on 1 October 2017)
Mr. FENG Tao
(resigned as Executive Director on 1 October 2017
and resigned as Chief Financial Officer on 1 November 2017)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Songlin
Ms. LI Nan (appointed on 1 October 2017)
Mr. XU Lei (appointed on 1 October 2017)

Mr. Zhai Shenggang (resigned on 1 October 2017)
Mr. KANG Hua (resigned on 1 October 2017)

In accordance with bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. LI
Chengning, Mr. XU Jian, Ms. LI Nan and Mr. XU Lei, being
appointed as Directors by the Board after the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 10 July 2017, will hold
office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

BE
AEERBEAREEAZESIT ;

BITES

SR EL ()

TR (TTIEAAEL)

FHAELE(R-_ZE—tFHA-T\BEZE)

Bzt (R -E—tFOA-+/\BEZE)

FHEBEE(R-_T—tF+H-BEZE)

TR (I BAEE
(R—ZE—tF+A-HEZERPTES
MR ZZ—\F—ATHLBEZERVBEE)

RZEE
(R=—ZF—tFtHA—H
BHERITTHAARFRNTES)
b e
(R—ZT—tFt+tA—HEHERTES
ERZF—tF+—A— AR EVHRE

BYFHTES

SRIDR ST
Lt (R-_E—tFt+A—HEZRT)
HEAER-Z—tF+A—HEZRD)

BEMLEE(R_E—tF+A—REH)
B (R—E—+ 5+ A—AET)

IR 83(2) Ik + RS A - RIEXLE - F
BREMGELEER_T-—EFELATRHENT
ZARRBERENASREESSRERES)
BEREREREFAERIL  XHEERE
BT -



DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with bye-law 84(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr. WANG
and Mr. ZHANG Songlin will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, a confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ LETTER OF APPOINTMENT

Each of Mr. GUAN and Mr. WANG (both are executive Directors)
has renewed a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on 6 August 2017. Either
the Company or the executive Director may terminate the
appointment of the executive Director by giving to the other party
not less than one month’s written notice.

Each of Mr. LI Bin and Ms. MU Yan (both are executive Directors)
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on 28 April 2017. Either
the Company or the executive Director may terminate the
appointment of the executive Director by giving to the other party
not less than one month’s written notice.

Each of Mr. LI Chengning and Mr. XU Jian (both are executive
Directors) has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 October
2017. Either the Company or the executive Director may
terminate the appointment of the executive Director by giving to
the other party not less than one month’s written notice.
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DIRECTORS’ LETTER OF APPOINTMENT (Continued)

Mr. ZHANG Songlin, an independent non-executive Director, has
renewed a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of three years commencing on 11 March 2017. Either party
may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party not
less than one month’s written notice.

Each of Ms. LI Nan and Mr. XU Lei (both are independent non-
executive Directors) has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing
on 1 October 2017. Either the Company or the independent
non-executive Director may terminate the appointment of the
independent non-executive Director by giving to the other party
not less than one month’s written notice.

None of the Directors has a contract of service with the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries not
determinable by the employing company within one year without
payment of compensation (except for statutory compensation).

The Company’s policies concerning emoluments of the Directors
are:

(i)  the amount of remuneration is determined on the basis of
the relevant Directors’ experience, responsibilities, workload
and the time devoted to the Group;

(i)  non-cash benefits may be provided to the Directors under
their remuneration package; and

(i)  the Directors may be granted, at the discretion of the Board,
options pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by
the Company, as part of their remuneration package.

DIRECTORS’ AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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STRUCTURAL AGREEMENTS

On 22 October 2012, Beijing Peace Map Information, Beijing
Peace Map and the majority of its ultimate shareholders, namely,
Mr. Zhang Zhenshan, Mr. GUAN, dt RiEslBERHT AR A F
(Beijing Boxun Tongda Technology Co., Ltd.*), 1t R A7TElH i
AR A7 Beiing Skywalker Map Technology Co., Ltd*), 1t 5
B EBIEHE AR AR (Beijing Haicheng Yingchuang Technology
Co., Ltd*) and Mr. Qin Chun (collectively, “Beijing Peace
Map Maijority Shareholders”), entered into certain structural
agreements, namely a management and consultancy services
agreement, technical support and services agreement, intellectual
properties transfer and license agreement, cameras transfer and
lease agreement, equity pledge agreement, and an equity call
option agreement (collectively, the “Structural Agreements”)
in relation to ongoing transactions conducted on a regular and
continuing basis and in the ordinary and usual course of the
business of the Group. The registered owners of Beijing Peace
Map are Beijing Peace Map Majority Shareholders and CATIC
Siwei.

Under the Structural Agreements, the Company through Beijing
Peace Map Information, a subsidiary of the Company, is able
to exercise control over Beijing Peace Map and its subsidiaries
(the “Peace Map Group”) by way of controlling the voting rights
of Beijing Peace Map, governing their financial and operating
policies, appointing and removing the majority of the members
of their controlling authorities, casting the majority of votes at
meeting of such authorities and deriving economic benefit from
the Peace Map Group. Beijing Peace Map is accounted for as
a 81.15%-owned subsidiary of the Company and the financial
results of the Peace Map Group are consolidated into the
financial statements of the Group.

* For identification purpose only
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STRUCTURAL AGREEMENTS (Continued)

Pursuant to the Structural Agreements, (a) Beijing Peace Map
Information agrees to (i) provide management and consultancy
services; (ii) provide technical support service to Beijing Peace
Map; (i) purchase the equipment of aerial photography from
Beijing Peace Map and lease back the same to Beijing Peace
Map; and (iv) purchase relevant intellectual properties from Beijing
Peace Map and licence back to Beijing Peace Map whereas
the economic benefits derived from Beijing Peace Map shall be
transferred to Beijing Peace Map Information; and (b) Beijing
Peace Map Majority Shareholders or their respective nominee(s)
(iy have granted an option to Beijing Peace Map Information to
purchase their equity interest in Beijing Peace Map at nominal
price or the lowest price allowed by the PRC laws (only if the
nominal price is forbidden by the PRC laws), which does not
have an expiry date; (i) have pledged the shares of Beijing Peace
Map to Beijing Peace Map Information to guarantee any sum
payable to Beijing Peace Map Information and any damages,
cost or expense (including legal cost on or other costs associated
with the enforcement or realisation of this guarantee) suffered or
incurred by Beijing Peace Map Information pursuant to the other
Structural Agreements; and (i) have appointed Beijing Peace
Map Information’s nominee(s) as their attorney(s) to exercise their
rights as shareholders of Beijing Peace Map such that Beijing
Peace Map Information will have effective control over Beijing
Peace Map.

SRR

REGEBIERZ - @QIERKTEEERERIER
RTEORHEEMBEBRE (i) REXM SR
R (BEMARBLHELETFIERXT
B+ K (iv) BB B A 8 0 a8 A HE 0 R EL R AT P A
ROt A TE - mEIERKXTEEENZLEF
B TILRKATEEE + RO)IERKTEAH
MR EEZENRBALD ()6 TIERKRTE
ERNBRERIPEEEATIREER(Z
ERBEERIPEERZLENBRAT)BERS
AL R T B A A M it M ) (% 4 8 F 48 21 B
B) ¢ (i) IR K TEORG FIERX TEER
NEREFERN T RKTEIE R ZRIB MR
R INEESREEMERIEHETE X NELN
EARE KA ER(BRETHERLAE
REVERRAKE AR EMAAR)  F (i) &
FIERR TEEEMRAARBEEFHRIEAT
EREER/IERRTERRAOERN - AEILERXK
TEIE SRR RIEFIIL R A T E



STRUCTURAL AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The Structural Agreements, excluding the agreements without
validity period provided in relation to the grant of an option
to purchase equity interest in Beijing Peace Map, pledge of
shares of Beijing Peace Map and the appointment of attorney
for shareholders of Beijing Peace Map, are for a term of 20
years and will be automatically extended for another 10 years
unless terminated by Beijing Peace Map Information in writing
within 3 months of original expiry. In addition, Beijing Peace Map
Information shall be entitled to extend or early terminate the
period of the Structural Agreements at its own discretion. Unless
agreed by Beijing Peace Map Information in writing, Beijing
Peace Map shall not vary or terminate the Structural Agreements.
There is no restriction on the number of times of extension of
the Structural Agreements unless they are terminated by Beijing
Peace Map Information. The Company does not purchase
insurance to cover the risk of non-compliance of obligations
under the Structural Agreements by Beijing Peace Map and the
majority shareholders.

The principal activities of the Peace Map Group are set out in the
section headed “Business Review” in “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. The Peace Map Group is
responsible for approximately 100% of the revenue of the Group.

The following table sets out the financial results that the Peace
Map Group contributed to the Group for the preceding two
financial years:
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For the financial year ended

BETSEMEMREE

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
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+=B=+-—H +—-A=+—H

HK$ HK$

BT BIT

Revenue ON 194,756,000 232,778,000
Net loss BB 558 (520,852,000) (455,106,000)

Total assets BB E

617,766,000 1,001,497,000
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STRUCTURAL AGREEMENTS (Continued)

Reasons for using Contractual Arrangement

Currently, the PRC laws and regulations place certain restrictions
on foreign ownership of companies that engage in surveying
and mapping. Specifically, a foreign investor may only hold a
minority interest in a Chinese entity that engages in surveying and
mapping, and foreign-invested companies are prohibited from
engaging in aerial photography. The Structural Agreements allow
the Group to effectively control Beijing Peace Map and therefore
recognise and receive substantially all of the economic benefits of
the business and operations of the Peace Map Group.

The risks associated with the arrangements and the
actions taken by the Company to mitigate the risks

Under the current PRC laws and regulations, foreign ownership in
the surveying aerial photography and/or surveying and mapping
services is prohibited and/or restricted, and as a policy, approval
of foreign investment into this area is very difficult. To comply with
the PRC laws and regulations, the Group has been conducting
its operation of the business in the PRC through the Structural
Agreements.

Tian Yuan Law Firm, the PRC legal adviser to the Company (the
“PRC Legal Adviser”), has issued a legal opinion confirming
that each of the Structural Agreements is enforceable, valid and
legally binding under the applicable laws of the PRC up to the
date of this report.

However, there can be no assurance that the PRC government
authority would deem these contractual arrangements and/
or the Structural Agreements to be in compliance with the
licensing, registration or other regulatory requirements, or that
the legal requirements or policies that may be adopted in the
future (in particular those concerning foreign investment and/or
merger and acquisition by foreign investors) would not affect the
Structural Agreements and such contractual arrangements. Also,
the enforceability may be affected by any applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganisation, moratorium or
similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and possible
judicial or administrative actions or any of the PRC laws and
regulations affecting creditors’ rights.
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STRUCTURAL AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The risks associated with the arrangements and the

actions taken by the Company to mitigate the risks
(Continued)

In order to mitigate the risk, effective consent has been obtained
or shareholders’ resolution has been reached stipulating CATIC
Siwei’s intention to be voluntarily and irreversibly bound by the
Structural Agreements in its capacity as a shareholder of Beijing
Peace Map. By operation of such consent or shareholders’
resolution, CATIC Siwei will not conduct any action or omission
of action which will adversely affect the performance of the
Structural Agreements, the receipt of economic benefits of
Beijing Peace Map Information from Beijing Peace Map, and
Beijing Peace Map Information’s control on Beijing Peace Map
in accordance with the Structural Agreements. Such consent or
shareholders’ resolution is not against the applicable PRC laws,
has not been withdrawn, suspended or deemed invalid by any
PRC government authority.

The Company has engaged the PRC Legal Adviser to review
the Structural Agreements on an annual, or otherwise on a need
basis to mitigate the risk of any non-compliance with the PRC
laws and regulations.

Updates on the Structural Agreements

Mr. Qin Chun and Mr. Zhang Zhenshan left the Group in 2017
and no longer participate in the business affairs of the Group,
their shareholding interest in Beijing Peace Map have been
replaced. On 26 May 2017, Mr. Qin Chun entered into equity
transfer agreement with Mr. WANG to transfer 10% equity
holding of Beijing Peace Map to Mr. WANG and Mr. Zhang
Zhenshan entered into equity transfer agreement with Mr. GUAN
to transfer 10% equity holding of Beijing Peace Map to Mr. GUAN
(collectively, the “Transfers”). On 27 May 2017, Mr. GUAN and
Mr. WANG entered into relevant structural agreements namely
equity call option agreement and equity pledge agreement
(hereinafter referred to as the “New Structural Agreements”)
respectively. As at the date of this report, except the registration
of alteration of registered owners from Mr. Qin Chun and Mr.
Zhang Zhenshan to Mr. WANG and Mr. GUAN respectively,
other necessary registration, filing and administrative procedure
required by PRC Laws regarding the Transfers is in process, upon
completion of which the New Structural Agreements will become
effective. The Company considers that the entering into of the
New Structural Agreements will not have any material impact on
the Group.

Save as disclosed above, there was no material change in the
Structural Agreements for the year ended 31 December 2017.
As of the date of this report, there is no unwinding of any of the
Structural Agreements.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of continuing connected transactions which also
constitute related party transactions for the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

On 22 October 2012, Beijing Peace Map Information, Beijing
Peace Map and Beijing Peace Map Majority Shareholders entered
into the Structural Agreements. Relevant information related
to the Structural Agreements can be found on pages 37 to 41
under the section headed “Structural Agreements” in “Directors’
Report” of this annual report. Upon the appointment of Mr. GUAN
as a director of the Company on 6 August 2014 and by virtue of
Mr. GUAN also owning 46% equity interest in Beijing Peace Map,
Beijing Peace Map became a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

As such, the ongoing transactions under the Structural
Agreements become continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Pursuant to rule 14A.60 of the
Listing Rules, the Company is required to comply with the annual
review and disclosure requirements including publishing an
announcement and annual reporting regarding such continuing
connected transactions.

Details of the Structural Agreements are summarised as follows:

Management and consultancy services agreement

Beijing Peace Map Information shall provide management,
consultancy, evaluation and analysis service in relation to
operation, management and business development on an
exclusive basis. Without prior written consent of Beijing Peace
Map Information, Beijing Peace Map shall not accept any
management and consultancy services provided by any third
party. The service fee shall be RMB1.5 million per annum,
payable quarterly.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Technical support and services agreement

Beijing Peace Map Information shall provide research and
development, technical support and maintenance services to the
operation of Beijing Peace Map on an exclusive basis. Without
prior written consent of Beijing Peace Map Information, Beijing
Peace Map shall not accept any technical support and services
provided by any third party. The basic service fee shall be RMB10
million per annum, payable quarterly plus a variable service fee.

Intellectual properties transfer and license agreement

Beijing Peace Map Information agreed to purchase from Beijing
Peace Map certain intellectual properties at a consideration
of RMB15,348,256.83. Beijing Peace Map Information shall
authorise Beijing Peace Map to use the intellectual properties in
the PRC on an exclusive basis. The license fee shall be RMB8.5
million per annum, payable quarterly.

Cameras transfer and lease agreement

Beijing Peace Map Information agreed to purchase from Beijing
Peace Map certain intellectual properties at a consideration of
RMB13,144,102.66. Beijing Peace Map Information shall lease
the aerial cameras to Beijing Peace Map on an exclusive basis.
The leasing fee shall be RMB6 million per annum, payable
quarterly.

Equity pledge agreement

Beijing Peace Map Majority Shareholders have pledged the
shares of Beijing Peace Map to Beijing Peace Map Information
to guarantee any sum payable to Beijing Peace Map Information
and any damages, cost or expense (including legal cost on or
other costs associated with the enforcement or realisation of this
guarantee) suffered or incurred by Beijing Peace Map Information
pursuant to the other Structural Agreements.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity call option agreement

Beijing Peace Map Majority Shareholders have granted an option
to Beijing Peace Map Information to purchase their equity interest
in Beijing Peace Map at nominal price or the lowest price allowed
by the PRC laws. Beijing Peace Map Majority Shareholders have
appointed Beijing Peace Map Information’s nominee(s) as their
attorney(s) to exercise their rights as shareholders of Beijing
Peace Map.

If Beijing Peace Map Majority Shareholders receive any dividends
or distribution of assets declared by Beijing Peace Map, Beijing
Peace Map Majority Shareholders are required to return the
dividend or distribution of assets so received after payment of
any expenses and taxes in compliance with the PRC laws to
Beijing Peace Map Information.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 6 August 2014.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors, the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions were entered
into by the Group:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the respective agreements governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in

the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

For the purpose of rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditor of
the Company has provided a letter to the Board confirming that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the abovementioned continuing connected transactions:

()  have not been approved by the Board;

(i) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group if the transactions involve
provision of goods and services by the Group; and

(i) have not been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the section “Continuing
Connected Transactions” above, no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director was
materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company and their respective associates had the following
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions in which they are
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) and
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules:
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
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OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED

CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
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to be interested in these Shares under the SFO.

Limited ([ Broadlink ) = % #& & &+ H# B it
4 B R Broadlink B R K& 17 s Hil 1T
100% M1& 24 - E it + Broadink B &£ 2 %
EHlEE (FEREHFREBEED) - S REE
HFREEGRS - BERENRABEZEROTH
WS o



48 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED %k T B E R A F

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates, had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) that was required to be notified to the Company or the
Stock Exchange Pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions in which they are
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations” above and note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or their respective spouse or minor children to acquire such
benefits.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31
December 2017, so far as the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company are aware, the following persons or corporations
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company of 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital:
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Number of Approximate
Shares/ percentage of
underlying  shareholding in
Name of Capacity/ Shares held the Company
Substantial Shareholder Nature of interest Notes BERD i NI
FERRER 51 REmME tiks3 HERDEE BHOBED
Aviation Industry Corporation of China Interest in controlled 1 2,268,080,000 27.81%
PEIMZE THEEAQA corporation
RiEfEEER
AVIC International Holding Corporation Interest in controlled 1,2,3 2,268,080,000 27.81%
Fh B ZE i B B AR B TR A B corporation
R AR
AVIC International (HK) Group Limited Interest in controlled 1,4,5 2,268,080,000 27.81%
FTEIRR (B8) B ER A A corporation
ZiEfEE ER
Best Pine Investment Limited Beneficial owner 1 552,100,000 6.77%
BEREARAT EnEAA
Tacko International Limited Interest in controlled 1 1,161,900,000 14.24%

corporation
RiEH AR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FERRARG - XATHEBERG R
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, BEZERZRKE &)
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)
Number of Approximate
Shares/ percentage of
underlying  shareholding in
Name of Capacity/ Shares held the Company
Substantial Shareholder Nature of interest Notes BERD RAELD TR AE
FERRER B Rt LiEsd HERG A BHBED
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited Interest in controlled 1 1,161,900,000 14.24%
Rz T BRI (B8) BRA A corporation
RiEhEEE
Kingspot Investment Limited Beneficial owner 1 1,133,000,000 13.89%
EmEAA
Billirich Investment Limited Beneficial owner 1 28,900,000 0.35%
EmBEAA
AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited Interest in controlled 1,3,4 554,080,000 6.79%
FRIER (BE) BRAR] corporation
Rt EE R
Light Pearl Holdings Limited Interest in controlled 1 554,080,000 6.79%
corporation
RiEfEEER
Tongda Information Technology Limited Interest in controlled 1 554,080,000 6.79%
MEEEBRIMER AR corporation
R EE S
Smarty Capital Investments Limited Beneficial owner 1 554,080,000 6.79%

BEmBEAA



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

1.

Aviation Industry Corporation of China (“*AVIC”) is interested in
2,268,080,000 Shares, underlying shares and convertible notes of the
Company through Best Pine Investment Limited (“Best Pine”), Billirich
Investment Limited (“Billirich”), Smarty Capital Investments Limited
(“Smarty Capital”) and Kingspot Investment Limited (“Kingspot”).

AVIC holds 62.52% interest in AVIC Int’l which in turn holds 100%
interest in AVIC Int’l Group.

AVIC Int’'l Group holds 8.49% interest in AVIC Joy. AVIC Int’l Group also
holds 100% interest in Tacko International Limited which in turn holds
34.34% interest in AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (“AVIC Int’l
(HK)”) which in turn holds 100% interest in Billirich which in turn holds
17.38% interest in AVIC Joy. AVIC Int’| Group also holds 100% interest
in Best Pine which holds 552,100,000 Shares.

AVIC Int’l (HK) holds 100% interest in Kingspot which is interested in (i)
733,000,000 Shares and (i) convertible notes that may be converted
into 400,000,000 Shares. Billirich also holds 28,900,000 Shares.

AVIC Joy holds 100% interest in Light Pearl Holdings Limited which
in turn holds 100% interest in Tongda Information Technology Limited
which in turn holds 100% interest in Smarty Capital which holds
554,080,000 Shares.

Mr. Li Bin is the deputy general manager of finance division of AVIC
Int’l.

Ms. Mu Yan is an executive director of AVIC Joy and the asset and
capital investment officer of finance division of AVIC Int’l..

Mr. Li Chengning is an executive director and chairman of AVIC Joy
and the chief investment officer of AVIC Int’| Group.

Mr. Xu Jian is the assistant chief financial officer of AVIC Int’l Group.

The percentage represents the aggregate number of Shares held over
the total issued Shares of 8,156,781,091 Shares as at 31 December
2017.
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FEMETITEEE AR TFRERLR )
FRERKEARAR QGBI - Bilich
Investment Limited ([ Billirich]) ~ Smarty Capital
Investments Limited ([ Smarty Capital]) &
Kingspot Investment Limited ([ Kingspot ) % &
2,268,080,000 Mthfn AR FIHER M K2 AT #2
fR = 2 i o

FREERRRE R MBI 62.52% -
BEFATHMBEREBES 100% s -

FMEREBEFEERITRA 8.49% e o
#7159 B 52 8] 715 A Tacko International Limited Ay
100% #zx » 1M Tacko International Limited #5748
Bl 22 TEBIRRERR (78) AR AR ([ P E R
(BB) ) 834.34% s - FMBER (HB) /A
Billirich #9 100% # 25 » 1M Billirich #5 5 4812 ALY
17.38% 1z o A BIBR £ B Th% B B R 100%
Mg E#AE 552,100,000 BRAE D

AT (B ) £ 8 Kingspot 89 100% 435 » 1M
Kingspot 7 ()733,000,000 % i% 1 % (i) 7] 48 A&
400,000,000 J& i 0 2 AT A iR RIE P HE B fE s o
Billirich 75434 28,900,000 A& A 1%

S4B HERYER A Light Pearl Holdings Limited £ 100%
%5+ 1M Light Pearl Holdings Limited 3 4 i i (=
BIEAMTAR AR 100% #x o iEs SEIMTAR
A A ¥ & Smarty Capital # 100% # 25 - 11 Smarty
Capital 3% 74 554,080,000 &A% 5 ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors had any competing
interests in any business or had any interest in any business that
may constitute direct or indirect competition with the Group.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of total revenue, total sub-contracting costs and
purchases of materials for the year attributable to the Group’s
major customers, sub-contractors and suppliers are as follows:

Revenue
— the largest customer 14%
— five largest customers combined 37%

Sub-contracting costs
— the largest sub-contractor 21%
— five largest sub-contractors combined 45%

Purchases of materials
— the largest supplier 22%
— five largest suppliers combined 43%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s major customers, sub-
contractors or suppliers noted above.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The key relationships with employees, customers and suppliers
are set out in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
continued in Bermuda and therefore the Company is subject
to relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands and
Bermuda. In addition, the Company is registered as a non-Hong
Kong Company under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) and therefore is subject to the
relevant provisions under the Companies Ordinance.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange and therefore
the Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules
including the disclosure requirements and corporate governance
provisions therein.

Under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws
of Hong Kong), the Company is required to maintain a register of
interests in shares and short positions and a register of directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions and is obliged
to disclose price sensitive or inside information.

The Group is principally engaged in geographical information
business in the PRC, and therefore is subject to the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC.

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the year, there was no material
breach of or noncompliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4§ 53

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

BES FRFREEBNEIEBRRE

HER FPRHERMNEZBEINAFR
(BRI e REamE ] —& -

BFHEBERRERNER

K”Aﬁﬁ“%ﬁ%ﬁ%iﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%%ﬁ% :
HWARREAXFEBFSRARENBBERER
PH%EBE o AN ARRIRBEBENF622E R
AEBIFE 16 B M AIEFE B AR - ELLZAR AR
DI HERE IR AT ARER

AAFIRBRAET - B ARARAES EmRA
&R - a%tmﬁ%%&%ﬁm&iiﬁﬁﬂ
YO

RigE S MAEERD (BAEHESTTE) AR

AABEROER AR BLMAREZEREE
TTBRA B2 s Mok BB R - XERBERER
RERBATHE

REEFENPEEEMBELER  ALAR

FEIRRAREMFTARIR

REZEREEEMM  AEEERSERTEE

SHAKRERGREEELERTE ZHRAE

ERR o MAFEAR AEERERBERKTE
BRVARIER ©



54 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T~ B IR BR AR

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”
of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the
date of this report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounted
to approximately HK$29,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the report of the Directors is approved in accordance with section
391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of
Hong Kong).
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding
of the Shares. Intending holders and investors of the Company’s
shares are recommended to consult their professional advisers
if they are in any doubt as to the taxation implications (including
tax relief) of subscribing for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or
dealing in shares. It is emphasized that none of the Company
or its Directors or officers will accept any responsibility for any
tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of shares in the Company
resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding, disposal
of or dealing in such shares.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. ZHANG Songlin, Ms. LI Nan
and Mr. XU Lei. Mr. ZHANG Songlin, who possesses professional
accounting qualifications and relevant accounting experience, is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, its main
role and functions are to review the Group’s financial information,
to supervise the Group’s financial reporting and internal control
systems, the Group’s risk management systems and to maintain
relationship with the auditor of the Company.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted regular
reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control system and
risk management system of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2017 and the interim and annual results, and
has reviewed with management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed the auditing and
financial reporting matters of the Group.

The Group’s final results for the year ended 31 December 2017
have been reviewed by the members of the Audit Committee
before submission to the Board for approval.
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AUDITOR

The Company has appointed SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
(“SHINEWING”) as the auditor of the Company from 23
December 2013.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company to re-appoint SHINEWING as the
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Peace Map Holding Limited
GUAN Hongliang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board considers that good corporate governance is essential
for enhancing accountability and transparency of a company
to the investment public and other shareholders. Therefore,
the Directors are dedicated to maintaining high standard
corporate governance practices. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the
rising expectations of shareholders and to fulffill its commitment to
excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2017, except for the compliance with code provision A.6.7 of the
CG code which states that independent non-executive directors
should also attend general meetings. The independent non-
executive directors of the Company, Mr. ZHANG Songlin, Ms. LI
Nan and Mr. XU Lei did not attend the general meetings of the
Company held on 25 May 2017 and 10 July 2017 due to other
business engagement.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The role of the Board includes overseeing the strategic
development, business planning, risk management, annual
and interim results, and other significant operational and
financial matters of the Group. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include
the preparation of annual and interim financial statements to
be approved by the Board before public reporting, execution
of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and ensuring compliance with relevant
statutory requirements and rules and regulations. In discharging
its responsibilities, the Board meets regularly and acts in good
faith, with due diligence and care.

The Board currently is composed of nine Directors, of which six
are executive Directors and three are independent non-executive
Directors. The executive Directors are responsible for the Group’s
day-to-day operations and management. All Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) have been consulted on all
major and important matters of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The composition of the Board and their respective attendance in
the Board meetings, committee meetings and general meetings
for the year ended 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Audit
Board Committee
Meetings Meetings

BEES 5
BE-—T—+E&+-A=t—HIEE B2

ZHRREREZESH  ZERTHRMERX
SZHEMEFEENT

No. of meetings attended/held

EELERY/ETRY
Nomination ~ Remuneration Executive
Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meetings Meetings

Exff3 ENZREEE RAZREEE FMZREEZ UMZAEEE  RRAf

Executive Directors UnEs
Mr. GUAN Hongliang BEnrk 6/6 NANER
(Chaiman) (2F)
Mr. WANG Zheng TERE 6/6 NANER
(Chief Executive Officer) (fiR#4)
Mr. LI Bin Xy 44 NATER
Ms. MU Yan Bt 44 NATER
M. LI Chengning TRERE 111 NATER
Mr. XU Jian s 1 NANER
(Chief Financial Officer) (BEE)
M. ZHU Dong FREAE 55 NATEE
(resigned as Deputy Chief Executive (R=B-t£TA-H
Officer and Executive Director on BIAnHEsERG
1 Qctober 2017) £%)
Mr. FENG Tao BERE 5/5 NANER
(resigned as Exective Director on (RZE-tETA-RBRE
1 October 2017 and resigned as HERRN-F—t

Chief Financial Officer on 1 November 2017)  +— A—BE{IEIKLAE)

Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BUFH{TEE

Mr. ZHANG Songlin RIS 6/6 33

Ms. LINan FRTL 1 00

M. XU Lei FERE 1 00

Mr. ZHAl Shenggang BEEiE 45 33
(Resigned on 1 October 2017) (RZE—tETA-B#E)

Mr. KANG Hua Rl 5/5 33
(Resigned on 1 October 2017) (R=Z—+E1R-H#E)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board at all times
met the requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors representing one-third of the Board with
one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

NATER NATER 33 22
NATER NATER 33 02
NATER NARER NARER 12
000 00 NARER 12
NAZTER NATER 22 00
NATER NATER NATER 00
171 171 171 22
NATER NATER NATER 12
17 1h NARER 02
00 00 NARER 00
NATER NARER NARER 00
171 171 NATER 02
NATER NATER NATER 02

HE-"T—+&+-"A=+—RHItEE B
—ENALTHRANEIIOLIIAGEBEZ T
ELCEBUIIRTEEEETE =S 2 MR
- HEP—EZBUIRTESHERENTESA
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board has received a written confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that
all Independent Non-Executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. ZHANG Songlin, an independent non-executive Director, has
renewed a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of three years commencing on 11 March 2017. Either party
may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party not
less than one month’s written notice.

Ms. LI Nan, an independent non-executive Director, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term of
three years commencing on 1 October 2017. Either party may
terminate the appointment by giving to the other party not less
than one month’s written notice.

Mr. XU Lei, an independent non-executive Director, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term of
three years commencing on 1 October 2017. Either party may
terminate the appointment by giving to the other party not less
than one month'’s written notice.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, six full Board
meetings and two general meetings were held. Minutes of the
Board meetings and general meetings are being kept by the
Company Secretary and are available for inspection by the
Directors and auditor of the Company.

The Directors are the senior management of the Company.
Details of their remuneration for the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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THE ROLES OF THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the position of the
Chairman was held by Mr. GUAN and the position of the Chief
Executive Officer was held by Mr. WANG. The Board members
have no financial, business, family or other relationships with
each other.

Further details on the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 24 to 28 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. The obligations to comply with
the Listing Rules are set out in the letter of appointment of each
executive Director and each independent non-executive Director.
The Company has made specific enquiries with the Directors,
and all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
requirements set out under the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS LIABILITIES INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

During the year, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on applicable legal and regulatory requirements. Individual
Directors also participated in continuing professional development
relating to the roles, functions and duties of a director in listed
company by way of training and reading relevant materials to
enhance their professional development. The training record of
each Director for the year is set out below:
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Attending Seminars/

Courses/Workshops Reading Materials
SMMEE REHRe B RA
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. GUAN Hongliang kit v/ v
Mr. WANG Zheng FEFEEE v/ v
Mr. LI Bin ST v/ v
Ms. MU Yan Bt v v
Mr. LI Chengning FHREEE v/ v
Mr. XU Jian ExEvias v v
Independent Non-Executive BAUEHTES
Directors
Mr. ZHANG Songlin SRADMRSE A4 v/ v
Ms. LI Nan FiLt v v
Mr. XU Lei ®wEEE v v



62 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED %k T B E R A F

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established in
the Company and the Board is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions set out in code provision D.3.1
of the CG Code. The corporate governance duties performed
by the Board for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
summarized below: —

(i)  reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices;

(i)  reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and
practices to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(i) reviewed and monitored the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors;

(iv) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and other related rules and disclosures in this Corporate
Governance Report; and

(v reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Currently, the Board has set up four committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and the executive
committee (the “Executive Committee”) to implement internal
supervision and control on relevant aspects of the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. ZHANG Songlin, Ms. LI Nan
and Mr. XU Lei. Mr. ZHANG Songlin, who possesses professional
accounting qualifications and relevant accounting experience, is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, its main
role and functions are to review the Group’s financial information,
to supervise the Group’s financial reporting and internal control
systems, the Group’s risk management systems and to maintain
relationship with the auditor of the Company.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted regular
reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control system and
risk management system of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2017 and the interim and annual results, and
has reviewed with management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed the auditing and
financial reporting matters of the Group.

The Group’s final results for the year ended 31 December 2017
have been reviewed by the members of the Audit Committee
before submission to the Board for approval.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently consists of one executive
Director, Mr. LI Bin, and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. ZHANG Songlin and Ms. LI Nan. Mr.
ZHANG Songlin is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Under the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, its
main role and functions are to assist and make recommendations
to the Board to ensure that all the nominations are fair and
transparent.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and regional
experience etc. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s
character, qualifications, experience, independence and other
relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy
and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

During the year, the work of the Nomination Committee includes
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed change
and determining the policy for the nomination of Directors. The
Nomination Committee considered that an appropriate balance
of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director,
Mr. LI Bin, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. ZHANG Songlin and Ms. LI Nan. Mr. ZHANG Songlin is the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Under the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, its
main role and functions are to review and make recommendations
to the Board on the policy and structure for remuneration of
the Directors and the senior management and determine the
remuneration package of the executive Directors and the senior
management.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has considered
and reviewed the existing terms of remuneration of all the
Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration
Committee considered that the existing terms of remuneration
of the Directors and the senior management were fair and
reasonable. In forming its view, the Remuneration Committee
has considered and reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy
in relation to that of comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors and the senior management,
desirability of performance-based remuneration and the
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board.

The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 26
May 2016. The outstanding share options under the previous
share option scheme adopted by the Company on 25 February
2006 and which expired on 24 February 2016 remain valid.
The purpose of the share option schemes is to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants
(including the Directors) have made or may make to the business
development of the Group. Please refer to note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements for the principal terms of the
Company’s share option scheme.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee comprises three executive Directors,
Mr. GUAN, Mr. WANG and Mr. LI Chengning. Mr. GUAN is the
Chairman of the Executive Committee.

Under the terms of reference of the Executive Committee, its
main role and functions are to advise and assist the Board
in formulating policies and to monitor the performance of
management in carrying out and implementing the policies laid
down by the Board for the Group.

During the year, the work of the Executive Committee includes
considering and approving routine corporate matters of the
Company and the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAU Ka Ho has been appointed as the Company Secretary
on 17 June 2016. He reports to the Board and is responsible for
advising the Board on governance matters. In compliance with
the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. LAU Ka Ho has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Group has complied with principle C.2
of the CG Code by establishing appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. Management is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring
of such systems, while the Board oversees management in
performing its duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the
risk management and internal control systems are described
below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

° Identification: ldentify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

° Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the
residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in the year 2017, no
significant risk was identified.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Internal Control System

The Company has an internal control system in place which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSQO) 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The components of the framework are shown as follow:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

° Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should
be managed.

° Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried
out.

° Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

° Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Internal Control System (Continued)

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group
has taken certain reasonable measures from time to time to
ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a
disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

° The access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who
are in possession of inside information are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

° The executive Directors, the Company Secretary and
investor relations manager are designated persons who
speak on behalf of the Company when communicating with
external parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

° Regular trainings are provided to relevant employees to help
them understand the Company’s policies and procedures
as well as their relevant disclosure duties and obligations.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in the year
2017, no significant control deficiency was identified.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which is
consisted of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as
Certified Public Accountant). The IA function is independent
of the Group’s daily operation and carries out appraisal of the
risk management and internal control systems by conducting
interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness.
An A plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal
control systems is conducted annually and the results are
reported to the Board via Audit Committee afterwards.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually.
Several areas have been considered during the Board’s review,
which include but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature and
extent of significant risks since the last annual review, and the
Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment (i) the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems.

The Board, through its review and the reviews made by
|A function and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. It is also
considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience
of IA function were adequate and the training programs and
budget provided were sufficient.
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CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The Company recognizes the importance of communication
with its shareholders, both individual and institutional, as well as
potential investors. The Company has adopted a Shareholders
Communication Policy with an aim of ensuring shareholders
are provided with timely information about the Company and
enabling them to engage actively with the Company and to
exercise their rights in an informed manner.

The Company has policy for promoting investor relations and
communications by maintaining regular dialogue with institutional
shareholders, fund managers, analysts and the media. Meetings
and conference calls were held with investors and analysts
in order for the Company to understand their views and to
keep them abreast of the latest developments. Inquires on
the Company were also dealt with in an informative and timely
manner according to established practices of the Company.

The Company’s website (www.peacemap.com.hk) also facilitates
communication with shareholders and investors. Corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information of the Company are made electronically and in a
timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist himself may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist by the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Shareholders of the Company who wish to put forward proposals
at a general meeting may request the Company to convene a
general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

The Board always welcomes shareholders’ views and input.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary and
his contact details are as follows:

Company Secretary

Peace Map Holding Limited
Rooms 2807-08, 28th Floor
Bank of America Tower

No. 12 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Email : info@peacemap.com.hk
Tel. No. (852) 3759 5300

Fax No. (852) 3759 5366

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities for
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements and
preparation of results and cash flows for each financial year which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
are prepared on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate
to assume the Company will continue in business. The Directors
shall ensure that the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are of the view
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it
is appropriate for the Group to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the financial statements. For details, please refer to
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”
on pages 102 to 105 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the fee paid/payable to
the external auditor of the Company, SHINEWING and its affiliate
company in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
them to the Group, are set out below:
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Upon the Change of Domicile becoming effective, the Company
has adopted the new memorandum of continuance and new
bye-laws with effect from 24 July 2017 (Bermuda time)/25 July
2017 (Hong Kong time). A summary of the New Memorandum
of Continuance and the Bye-laws and the differences with the
previous constitutional documents of the Company is set out in
the circular of the Company dated 16 June 2017.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to rule 13.91 of and appendix 27 (Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide) (the “ESG Guide”) to the
Listing Rules, the Company hereby presents this Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”’) on the
performance of the Group’s core business in Beijing of the PRC
and office in Hong Kong in terms of environmental protection
and social responsibility from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2017 (the “Year”). For the Year, the KPIs as disclosed will be
based on Beijing Peace Map and Beijing Peace Map Information
(collectively, the “Beijing Subsidiaries”). The Group will consider
extending its disclosure to more subsidiaries in the future. Please
refer to the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report for the information of corporate governance.
The ESG Report elaborates the principle that is upheld by
the Group in performing corporate social responsibility in the
surveying, mapping and geographic information industry and the
work it launched. The ESG Report details the work of the Group
in adhering to the principles of sustainable development during
the Year and its performance in social governance.

The joint engagement of colleagues in various departments in
the preparation of the ESG Report leads the Group to a clearer
picture of its development of environmental protection and social
responsibility. The information the Group has collected not only
summarizes the Group’s environmental and social work during
the Year, but also serves as the basis for its strategy for short-
term and long-term sustainable development.
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ENVIRONMENT

As surveying, mapping and geographic information industry
to which the Group belonged is a high-tech and low energy
consumption industry and the Company was the first geographic
information enterprises of the PRC listed on the Stock Exchange,
the Group continues to take sustainable development as the
guiding principle of its corporate development. In the Year,
the Group has undertaken energy conservation and emission
reduction at the workplace, and applied advanced technology in
business operations and environmental protection by taking into
account the features of industry at a prospect of contributing to
environmental protection.

Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction

Emissions

The Group strictly complies with the national laws and regulations
regarding the environment, ensuring a reduction in generating
pollutants and controlling the impact of pollutants on environment
while actively conducting business. The Beijing Subsidiaries
obtained the Environmental Management System Certification of
GB/T24001-2004/1SO14001:2004. By monitoring environmental
pollutants regularly, the Group ensures emissions from business
required devices, such as unmanned aerial vehicles, manned
aerial vehicles and surveying and mapping vehicles, will not cause
significant impact on the neighborhood and the environment.

In the Year, the Beijing Subsidiaries produced 17.2" kg of nitrogen
oxides, 0.5 kg of sulfur oxides and 1.3 kg of particulate matter
on vehicle use. In order to reduce its emission, the Beijing
Subsidiaries carry out regular maintenance and vehicle check, for
instance, inflating tyres to maintain the vehicle performance as
well as ensuring no idling of vehicle engines in order to avoid the
waste of fuel.

"Reference:

Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs of Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited
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ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction
(Continued)

Waste Treatment

In accordance with the national laws and regulations regarding
the environment, the Group continues to fulfill its obligation to
protect the environment and implement policy on reducing solid
waste. In order to avoid significant environmental pollution caused
by the disposal of solid waste, when hazardous waste such as
electronic waste are generated, the Group will contact qualified
recyclers to collect obsolete computers, printers, computer
cases and servers, etc. Through proper handling by recyclers,
the Group reduces the environmental pollution caused by the
improper disposal of electronic waste, such as reducing the
release of toxic gases caused by incineration. The Group’s non-
hazardous waste mainly consists of general household waste,
which are collected and handled by the property management.

In the Year, 13 tonnes of non-hazardous waste was produced by
the Beijing Subsidiaries in total, with each employee of the Beijing
Subsidiaries producing 0.04 tonnes of non-hazardous waste
in average. No hazardous waste was produced by the Beijing
Subsidiaries in the Year. In order to reduce the amount of waste
generated, the Beijing Subsidiaries recycled paper, metal and
plastic through waste separation and evaluated the consumption
of materials to prevent overstock. The Beijing Subsidiaries also
held various environmental competitions to raise the awareness of
employees on environmental protection, which aim to encourage
them to reuse stationeries, such as envelops and binders, and to
use refilling pens and recyclable toner cartridges so as to reduce
the use of disposable and non-recyclable products.
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Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction
(Continued)

Energy Conservation

With the continuous growth of users, the scale of the Group’s
data center and the number of servers are increasing. In order
to solve the problem of high energy consumption in the data
center, the Group has formulated and implemented clean
production, and has chosen to use the production facilities
with high utilization rate and clean production technologies with
less pollutants produced, so as to conserve energy and reduce
emissions while enhancing the production capacity.

Both the Company and the Beijing Subsidiaries have taken a
series of energy conservation and emission reduction measures,
including turning off lighting when not in use of offices and
keeping lighting devices clean for better energy efficiency. Apart
from the above measures, the Beijing Subsidiaries continue
to act in accordance with the national laws and regulations
regarding the environment and the actual situation of the offices,
SO as to conserve energy in a largest extent with the principle of
reasonable use of energy. The Beijing Subsidiaries have taken
measures of using natural lighting wherever possible, dividing the
office into different lighting zones for separate lighting control,
removing unnecessary lamps in areas where lighting is excessive,
and conducting monthly electricity consumption surveys to
monitor the usage of electricity. The Beijing Subsidiaries also
promotes the use of energy efficient lightings and electronic
devices to increase the electricity efficiency.
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ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction
(Continued)

Energy Conservation (Continued)

The Beijing Subsidiaries implement various measures to reduce
the use of air-conditioning. For instance, the Beijing Subsidiaries
allow employees to wear casual clothes to work on Fridays
and on the days of hot weather, set the air-conditioning system
with a minimum of 25.5 degree Celsius and switch off the air-
conditioners whenever not in use, and through measures of
cleaning and checking filters regularly, installing seals on doors
and windows and affixing anti-UV window films to maintain the
energy efficiency of air-conditioning system.

In the Year, total energy consumption of the Beijing Subsidiaries
was 1,0472 MWh, in which 750 MWh from purchased
electricity and 297 MWh from the use of non-renewable fuel,
and the average consumption by the employees of the Beijing
Subsidiaries was 3.21 MWh.

°Reference:

i Proposed Greenhouse Gas Emission Calculation Method and
Reporting Guide for Road Transport Enterprises (F_E 3 BE @b 38
EREMZE H AEREER (F17)) by National Development and
Reform Commission

ii. GB17930-2016 Gasoline for Motor Vehicles of National Standard of
the People’s Republic of China (FF# A R F1E B RIE4EGB17930-
2016 CEEAAH))

i Proposed Greenhouse Gas Emission Calculation Method and
Reporting Guide for Civil Aviation Enterprises in China (FF B R Bfnz=
¥R EREEEZE 5 R R E1ER (3177)) by National Development
and Reform Commission

iv.  Research Report on China Gas Market of 2011 (1 BI¥A R IS 7T &)
(20114 /€)) by China National Commercial Information Center

V. GB253-2008 Kerosine of National Standard of the People’s Republic
of China (13 A R £ F1E B KIFAEGB253-2008 (1))
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ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction
(Continued)

Energy Conservation (Continued)

Both the Company and the Beijing Subsidiaries reminded the
employees to turn off faucets tight and fix faucets with leakage
to reduce the waste of water. The Beijing Subsidiaries also post
water efficiency signs in the pantry, reduce water pressure to
the optimum level, use faucets with water efficiency labels and
dual flush toilets, as well as regular checks on the water meter
readings and whether there is any concealed water leaks, so as
to reduce the waste of water resources.

In the Year, total water consumption of the Beijing Subsidiaries
was 740 m® and the average consumption of the employees of
the Beijing Subsidiaries is 2.27 mq.

Protecting Environment and Natural Resources
Paperless Office

In the Year, the Group continued to promote the philosophy of
paperless office. Through the use of OA System, employees
are encouraged to keep or transmit documents electronically,
enabling a progression of office model to electronic office and
adding environmental protection elements to the Group. Except
for data confirmation sheets and instrument such as contract
that has to be printed on one side and be affixed with seal or
executed, double sided printing or using recycled single-sided
paper are encouraged for other instrument to save paper. In
response to environmental policy, the Group continues to make
use of social platforms to deliver the latest information of the
Group to the interested parties in real time. It has saved paper
and toner required for printing and has reduced carbon footprint.
In addition, through regular paper consumption statistics,
the Beijing Subsidiaries monitor the paper consumption and
implement appropriate measures for improvement.
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ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Protecting Environment and Natural Resources
(Continued)

Paperless Office (Continued)

In the Year, total greenhouse gas emission of the Beijing
Subsidiaries was 522° tonnes CO,g, with each employee of the
Beijing Subsidiaries emitted 1.6 tonnes CO,¢ in average.

Concerned with Environmental Protection

The Group continues to pay close attention to environmental
protection and makes an effort to improve environmental issues
by taking advantage of the Group’s strengths in mapping,
photogrammetry and remote sensing, and geographic
information system.

Reference:

i Proposed Greenhouse Gas Emission Calculation Method and
Reporting Guide for Road Transport Enterprises (F_t 3 Bi@E (b8
EREBBEIZE AR R EER (F17)) by National Development and
Reform Commission

ii. GB17930-2016 Gasoline for Motor Vehicles of National Standard of
the People’s Republic of China (7 A R A FIBIERIZ#EGB17930-
2016CEE F M)

i Proposed Greenhouse Gas Emission Calculation Method and
Reporting Guide for Civil Aviation Enterprises in China (FF B R Bfnz= 1
¥R EREEEMUZE 77 A B3RS 468 (77)) by National Development
and Reform Commission

iv.  Research Report on China Gas Market of 2011 (B E IS5 ICH
#£(20114FE)) by China National Commercial Information Center

V. GB253-2008 Kerosine of National Standard of the People’s Republic
of China (2 A R H 1B Bl R 1ZEGB253-2008¢ £H )

Vi. Average Carbon Dioxides Emission Factor of Regional Grid of China in
2011 and 2012 (201158120125 E[& 5 EHE T H A LA
<) by National Development and Reform Commission

vii.  Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs of
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Protecting Environment and Natural Resources
(Continued)

Concerned with Environmental Protection (Continued)

In the Year, the Beijing Subsidiaries participated in the project
of remote sensing and monitoring of hazards of drinking water
sources organized by the Ministry of Environmental Protection of
the PRC to make a contribution in ensuring the safety of drinking
water. Through the cooperation with the Satellite Environmental
Center of the Ministry of Environmental Protection of the PRC,
the Beijing Subsidiaries realized their full potential and advantages
in remote sensing and geographic information services. With
reference to the data from the national ZY-3 Satellite, the Beijing
Subsidiaries focused on Yangtze River Economic Belt, Eastern
and Central routes of the South-to-North Water Diversion
and 32 provinces, autonomous regions and municipalities to
collect information on hazards of water sources and to conduct
monitoring work, so as to obtain information in Class A, Class B
and Quasi-Reserves regarding the hazards that might affect the
water quality in the water source. By comprehensive monitoring
of the satellite towards the hazards in the water source reserves,
the data support is provided for early warning in terms of the
hazards in water source and also the guidance for prevention and
control in the daily management of water source.
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TALENTS

The Group regards talents as the Group’s most valuable asset.
Thus, the Group is committed to creating a harmonious working
atmosphere of respecting knowledge and talents, while designed
corresponding career development plan for its employees.

Recruiting Talents

The Group continues to create recruitment platforms to gather
talents with the principle of using people according to their
competence. The Group continues to strictly abide by the local
laws and regulations of employment. Every job applicant is
entitled to equal opportunity of having interviews as long as his/
her competence meets the job requirements, and will not be
discriminated, excluded or restricted based on factors such as
gender, age, race, religion or disability. Upon formal employment,
the Group will execute labor contracts with its employees in line
with the principles of legality, fairness, and consensus, in order to
prevent forced labor, and provide its employees with equal work
opportunity, company benefits, promotion, salary progression,
and trainings. In accordance with the local laws and regulations
regarding working hours, the Group continues to formulate
reasonable working hours for its employees with paid annual
leaves, ensuring that its employees receive adequate rest.
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TALENTS (Continued)

Recruiting Talents (Continued)

During the Year, total number of employees of the Beijing
Subsidiaries is 326, with all of them as full-time employees. The
proportions of employees in terms of different categories are as
follows:

Proportion of Employees by Gender

184

(56%)

[ Female %%
B Vae St

Proportion of Employees by Age

166
(51%)

[ Over 50 years old
50 BRIA £

[ Between 30 to 50 years old
30 5RE 50 BX

I Under 30 years old
30 AT
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TALENTS (Continued)

Recruiting Talents (Continued)

The employee turnover rates of the Beijing Subsidiaries in terms
of different categories in the Year are as follows:
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Under 30 years old 0B A T 34

The Group continued to abide by the local laws and regulations
of wage and welfare, for instance, the Group provides employees
in Hong Kong with competitive compensation in the market
and follows the assessment principles of “objectiveness,
fairness, democracy, openness and performance-oriented” in
adjusting employees’ remuneration. In addition, remuneration,
work, bonus and reward policies are reviewed annually. The
Group also provides mandatory provident fund contribution for
its employees in Hong Kong, and pays five social insurances
and one housing fund for its employees in Mainland China,
including pension insurance, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance
and housing provident fund. Moreover, the Group also provides
comprehensive accident insurance for its employees in Mainland
China, so as to provide better protection to employees.
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TALENTS (Continued)

Recruiting Talents (Continued)

In addition, the Group continued to comply with the local
laws and regulations regarding the prevention of child labor,
and corresponding department is assigned for professional
management on recruitment and employment of employees,
S0 as to strictly regulate the recruitment policy and employment
policy and eradicate the use of child labor. In order to prevent
the use of child labor, each job applicant is required to provide
identity document for inspection after formal receipt of
employment notice.

For the purpose of balancing the work and life of employees, the
Group created a comfortable working environment for employees
by providing fruits and coffee every day and placing green
plants in the offices to improve indoor air quality. The Group
also organizes leisure activities such as outdoor activities, group
travel, regular dinner, monthly birthday party, etc. to enhance
employees’ morale. In the Year, the Beijing Subsidiaries invited
its employees to Xishan National Forest Park to participate in a
walking activity, called "Embrace the Nature, Be a Green Walker"
(RABBS Y » &= H1T), allowing employees to relax apart from
working.

Health and Safety

By holding the philosophy of “giving top priority to safety, placing
the main emphasis on prevention, and ensuring occupational
health of employees”, the Group cares about personal safety and
health of its employees, aims for zero injury in the workplace and
monitors hygiene conditions of working premises regularly.
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TALENTS (Continued)

Health and Safety (Continued)

The Group continues to act in accordance with the laws and
regulations of occupational health in various places. The Beijing
Subsidiaries received GB/T28001-2011/OHSAS18001:2007
Occupational Health and Safety Management System
Certification, and certifications of Q/SHS0001.1-2001 and
Q/SY1002.1-2013 Health, Safety and Environmental
Management Systems, and is dedicated to providing its
employees with a comfortable and clean working environment.
The Group not only provides surveyors with labor protection
equipments against freezing, sunshine, and high temperature, but
also maintains as appropriate temperature and humidity for the
surveying fields as possible, so as to create a healthy and safe
working environment for its employees. The Group also prevents
employees from being overloaded at work through reasonable
arrangements.

At the same time, the Group has implemented the procedure
related to hazards and risk evaluation to identify hazards of
various personnel, service activities, management activities and
workplace, so as to ensure that important hazards are controlled
and that the health and safety of employees are protected. To this
end, the Group, in addition to regularly inspecting the unmanned
aerial vehicles used, has also developed an occupational safety
manual to ensure the safety of all employees, including surveyors
who need to work outdoor or at height, so as to reduce
accidents, injury and even casualties. In the event of any work-
related injury or accident, the Group will continue to comply with
the local law and regulations on work-related injury insurance and
to provide relevant assistance.
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TALENTS (Continued)

Health and Safety (Continued)

Maintaining the physical and psychological health of employees
is the top priority of business management. Therefore, the Group
has provided employees with annual physical examination
in addition to medical insurance to ensure that employees
may stay healthy while focusing on work. The Group selected
medical institutions carefully and cooperated with well-equipped
institutions to ensure the accuracy of physical examination results
and to support employees in early prevention of diseases. The
Group also regularly reviews the publications published by the
local safety and health department and distributes applicable
information to employees, and places relevant posters or
slogans in conspicuous position, so as to raise employees’
awareness of occupational safety in the office. In the Year, the
Beijing Subsidiaries held a free medical consultation, called
“Volunteering Consultation for Health” (FE# #*#5) and invited
Chinese medicine practitioners to conduct consultation with
its employees, which at the same time promote knowledge of
Chinese medicine conditioning and preventive healthcare for its
employees to establish a philosophy of healthy lifestyle. Besides,
the Group keeps the working premise clean and tidy, maintains
articles in order, puts working equipments in proper places before
off work, and fosters employees’ habit of self discipline, so as to
create a safe working environment with zero accident.

In the Year, no cases of work-related injury or fatality of
employees were found in the Beijing Subsidiaries, which shows
that they have been committed to protecting the health and
safety of its employees.
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TALENTS (Continued)

Career Development

The success of the Group depends on the hard work of
employees. Therefore, professional trainings related to the
Group’s services and products are provided to employees of each
department according to the promotion requirements of different
positions. For example, during the Year, the Beijing Subsidiaries
provides Capability Maturity Model Integration (“CMMI”) related
trainings, personnel and work attendance regulation trainings and
other technical trainings to improve employees’ competence and
skills, and further develop the potential and talent of employees.
The Group also provides education allowances for employees in
need to encourage them to continue their studies.

In addition, as an enterprise in operating the data collection
business, data confidentiality is the Group’s fundamental ethics.
Therefore, the Group regularly provides relevant employees with
education and trainings on information safety. For instance, the
Beijing Subsidiaries participated in the training of confidentiality
for data generating unit held by the National Administration for
the Protection of State Secrets and the National Administration
of Surveying, Mapping and Geoinformation, so as to ensure that
employees know how to prevent data leakage and to improve
their information security awareness and ability.
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TALENTS (Continued)

Career Development (Continued)

In the Year, information of trained employees of the Beijing
Subsidiaries is as follows:

AT (#)

BEXRE)
AEE  ARTFTRARNZIIEEERDT :

Average Training Percentage of

Hours per Trained

Employee (hours) Employees (%)

BHEER ZilEE
G S5 BRF BR (/) V) B2 (%)
By Gender RS
Female peg 4 100
Male B 4 100
By Employee Category RESER
Senior =R 4 100
Middle AR 4 100
Junior AR 4 100

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Supply Chain Management

The Group will lease equipment such as unmanned aerial
vehicles from suppliers before carrying out data collection and
survey. The Group conducts background checks on different
suppliers and carefully screens out the conscience enterprises
that value and seriously fulfill their social responsibilities. In order
to implement the concept of energy conservation, the Group wiill
prioritize the suppliers in neighboring regions among selected
conscience enterprises according to the geographical location of
each exploration to shorten the travel distance, thus reducing the
carbon footprint generated during transportation.

7= mn B2 AR 75

HEEEE

EETEERENMDREAN - ARE&REEHDHE
FREAMEEE AEEHETRHERETSER
HE - BEMERIBERIREERTHEEEINR
DR - RERESOERNED  AEE/HRE
FREEROMIEMUE  EHERHROERPE
S BRI R e IR - DAKRRE SR IRV RS
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

During the process of data collection and survey, the Group
concerns the quality of suppliers continually through regular
inspection of suppliers’ operating licenses, annual audit report of
aircraft safety, etc. so as to reduce the potential environmental
problems and social risks caused by suppliers’ products failure.

Product Liability
Quality Assurance

The Group continues to strictly abide by the laws and regulations
regarding the surveying, mapping and geoinformation
industry, and conduct surveying and mapping activities once
a corresponding level of surveying and mapping qualification
has been received. The Beijing Subsidiaries have received
the Grade A surveying and mapping qualifications, including
surveying and mapping aerial photography, photogrammetry and
remote sensing, construction of geographic information system,
construction surveying, real estate surveying and mapping,
compilation of maps and internet mapping services, which shows
that the Group has made an effort in ensuring the quality of its
services.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Product Liability (Continued)
Quality Assurance (Continued)

In order to provide quality service and meet customers demand
continuously, the Group continues to execute the procedures
for inspecting product quality. When a product is about to be
completed, application software will automatically inspect the
product quality and data processors will confirm the inspection
results. If the data processing results meet the requirements,
quality assurers will complete the inspection report as a proof.
In the Year, the Beijing Subsidiaries obtained GB/T19001-
2008/1SO9001:2008 Quality Management System Certification,
Certification of High-tech Enterprise (&¥H i), CMMI
Grade C Certification, and China's Top 100 Enterprises in
Geoinformation Industry in 2017 (2017 REHIB(E BESE
A8 %) awarded by China Association for Geographic
Information Society. Chinese Society for Surveying, Mapping and
Geoinformation also awarded five National Award in Excellence
in Surveying and Mapping Engineering (& B85 84 T 12 4%)
for some projects of the Beijing Subsidiaries, while for the cloud
platform, Peace Map Cloud Service, and its demonstrative
application on intelligent safety protection received the Surveying
and Mapping Technological Progress Award (BI4& 5 #E 5 4%).
The geoinformation cloud service platform, "Peace Map One-
stop Service" (K NE—I4=), and its application also received
the Beijing Technological Progress Award (1 R Rl 45 8%).
With the trust and support of customers and working attitude of
employees to seek perfection, the Group is able to constantly
provide surveying and mapping services meeting customers’
needs.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Product Liability (Continued)
Data Confidentiality

The Group has established policies related to the use of
confidential achievements and confidentiality management, and
set up safe and reliable confidentiality and protection measures
to ensure that the data for public use will neither infringe personal
privacy nor endanger public and national security. In addition,
the Group complies with relevant laws and regulations in relation
to confidentiality of data. In order to ensure the confidentiality
of various information assets and provide customers with more
reliable services, the Group established an information security
management mechanism and the Beijing Subsidiaries obtained
the certification of ISO/IEC 27001:2013 Information Security
Management System. The Group also continues to comply with
the established information security policy and takes “Raising
information security awareness, abiding by information security
laws and regulations, strengthening scientific management
mechanism, maintaining a safe operating environment, protecting
company’s information assets, safeguarding customers
information security” as guidelines for protecting information
security. The Group’s internal information security management
committee also continues to manage and ensure effective
operation of the system and improve it constantly.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Product Liability (Continued)
Data Confidentiality (Continued)

Data and surveying results collected from exploration are stored
in the Group’s database and encrypted, which can be only
accessed by the department in charge so that the confidentiality
of customers’ information is fully ensured. In order to further
reduce the risk of divulging customer privacy, the Group will only
keep a copy of the original letter of permission and the original
contract of customers and will not store any electronic version of
the documents when dealing with customers’ materials, except
for open bidding documents. Customers files can be accessed
by the person(s) in charge of the project only. Besides, employees
of the Group are required to comply with the relevant policy of
confidentiality in relation to network security. Confidentiality-
related personnel must sign a letter of confidentiality to prevent
collected data and materials from being divulged so as to avoid
any hacking activities that may damage the business reputation
and revenue of the Group.

Improving Data Access Procedures

The Group continues to comply with the data access
management policy to regulate data access. When data
collection is completed, the entity to which the data belongs
will be recorded by the Group so as to protect its interests and
enhance copyright awareness of confidential surveying and
mapping achievements. During the whole process from data
processing to handing over achievements, the Group strictly
implements the provisions as stated in the relevant confidentiality
management policy. All the results will be kept confidential and
will not be divulged to any third parties. When there is a need to
extract data from the database for other projects use, the relevant
department must submit an application. Information may not be
delivered for use before approval is obtained so as to protect the
Group’s assets and avoid divulgement.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Product Liability (Continued)

Improving Data Access Procedures (Continued)

In the Year, the Beijing Subsidiaries obtained 2 qualifications
for invention patents and 1 qualification for utility model patent
granted by the State Intellectual Property Office of the PRC.

After-Sales Service

When using unmanned aerial vehicles for data collection, the
Group strictly abides by the national safe operation requirements
for surveying, mapping and geographic information industry. To
ensure the quality of service, the Beijing Subsidiaries provide
training for the use of unmanned aerial vehicles to customers
at the time of sale based on their needs, which can also help
to reduce accidents caused by improper use of unmanned
aerial vehicles. To understand customer satisfaction, the Group
continues to implement the monitoring and surveying control
procedures. By understanding customer demand, suggestion
and satisfaction through telephone calls or emails, the Group
will deal with information feedback by customers properly, and
improve our service, so as to gain customer satisfaction. In
the Year, no complaints related to products and services were
received by the Beijing Subsidiaries.

Anti-Corruption

The Group upholds the highest ethical standards, promotes good
faith and integrity, and continues to strictly abide by the local
laws and regulations related to preventing corruption and fraud,
together with the rules and regulations developed by the Group
to achieve good governance.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Anti-Corruption (Continued)

Upon enroliment, all employees are required to sign the
confidential agreement. Employees are prohibited from asking
for, borrowing, giving or taking any properties or gifts in any
form, directly and indirectly, in their names or on behalf of the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries from any organizations
or individuals who have/has interest in the Company and/or any
of its subsidiaries, including suppliers, distributors, partners, and
contractors. At the same time, employees are required to report
any conflicts of interest and not to disclose the Company’s and/
or any of its subsidiaries’ information to any third parties.

In order to prevent corruption, the Group has established
complaints reporting system and made it available to all
employees. Employees may report any job-related crime, bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering through the complaint and
report mailbox. In the Year, the Group did not receive any criminal
reports on bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering or other
job-related crime.

CHARITY

As a listed company, the Group spared no efforts to charity,
actively participated in various charity activities and performed
its social responsibility, while committing to the development of
business. By encouraging employees to participate in various
activities, the Group established close and good relationships with
local and national charity organizations and other institutions to
contribute to the community while cultivating tacit understanding
among employees and their sense of belonging to the Group, so
as to attain the philosophy of sustainable development.

The Beijing Subsidiaries organized a clothing donation activity,
called “Warmth and Love Delivery” (BEE{RT  EERTT), to
encourage employees to donate clothes and deliver the warmth
to compatriots in poverty-stricken mountainous areas in the cold
winter.
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CHARITY (Continued)

Besides, the Beijing Subsidiaries have conducted a round of
campus recruitment for skilled talents. The fresh inputs are
expected to bring inspiration for innovation in the Group’s
business and support the long-term development of the Group.
The recruitment offered job opportunities to the community and
alleviated its employment pressure.

In the future, the Group will continue to support social charitable
activities in different forms and contribute to the community.

CONTENT INDEX ON KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS OF ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has complied with the “Comply or Explain”
Provisions of the ESG Guide, and spared no efforts to disclose
for “Recommended Disclosures”. The content index of KPIs of
the ESG Report is as follows:
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KPIs Descriptions Sections Page
RS HEIR Esu -1 B
A. Environmental
RIR
A1 Emissions
BER
A1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Emissions 74
data. VBB Sk
HEn i AR R U -
Al1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) Paperless Office 78
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of maema

production volume, per facility).
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KPlIs Descriptions Sections Page
BB RIER 7R E=3:01 =R
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) Waste Treatment 75

and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of REYI R IR

production volume, per facility).

FTEEBEEEYEE (LAEE) &k (WER) ZE

(WMABESEN - BIARMTHE)

Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) Waste Treatment 75
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of REYI R IR
production volume, per facility).

FEEREEEYAS (LA E) X (WER)ZE
(WABESEN - BERBTHE)

A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and Emissions 74
results achieved. 5
AU E R E R R PSR -

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous Waste Treatment 75
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results REY R IR
achieved.

MEREEENEEEEMN L REEEED
HiE SR PTISAR ©
A2 Use of Resources
EREA

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type Energy 76
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and Conservation
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per K EIR
facility).
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A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit Energy 76
of production volume, per facility). Conservation

BRKERTRE(MNEESEN - BIERMETH) ° EFHE IR

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and Energy 76
results achieved. Conservation
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RS AERHEIR 7R 3= Bi5

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Energy 76
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives Conservation
and results achieved. ENH) &R
i SKEGE R KR BRI B E A EE - AREAAK
Wanat B RAIEHR -

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in N/A N/A
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit (As the Group TEA
produced. conducts the
KK MATRABERM MBS (UEEE) & (#EA) work of surveying,
FEEBMUEE - mapping and

geoinformation, the
use of packaging
materials is not
involved.)
TEA
(HRAEEETT
Bl iRz 8T
5 WP RBE
MRHEER ©)

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

RIERKRER
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities Protecting 78

on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them.
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Environment and
Natural Resources
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KPlIs Descriptions Sections Page
BB RIER 7R EEf B
B. Social
e
Employment and Labour Practices
EREEIER
B1 Employment
&=
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age Recruiting Talents 81
group and geographical region. HBEMLT
=R - EEEE - FRRARRMEESHESR
2 o
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Recruiting Talents 81
geographical region. REMT
RIER -~ FEAR KRB D HEBIMARLLE o
B2 Health and Safety
REEZZ
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Health and Safety 84
ETIEEMBTHAB KL E o fERRE S
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety 84
EATEERTIEEE - EREZ S
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety Health and Safety 84
measures adopted, how they are implemented and fREEEL S
monitored.
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BB RIEIR 7R 3= Bi5
B3 Development and Training
BRRIEI
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Career 87
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle Development
management). BEAK
R REEER (R RERE  PREEESE)
EoMEIEEBDL -
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee Career 87
by gender and employee category. Development
RIERI REBRERIE S - BREETKZIIFTY BEKE
i3 Q)
B4 Labour Standards
B I8
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Recruiting Talents 81
practices to avoid child and forced labour. HRERNT
R T RS EAB R E T RRH ST -
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices Recruiting Talents 81
when discovered. BEMT
R IRE R IE R HR A BB BRI 05K -
Operating Practices
EEEH
B5 Supply Chain Management
frEdEEE
B5.1 Number of Suppliers by geographical region. N/A N/A
L= S D r e EE - (No disclosure @A
of relevant
information has
been made for the
Year.)
T EA
(REEETER
%)
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supply Chain 88
suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices Management
are being implemented, how they are implemented HEEE IR

and monitored.
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KPlIs Descriptions Sections Page
BB RIER 7R EEf =L
B6 Product Responsibility
EmEE
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject Quality Assurance 89
to recalls for safety and health reasons. B ERE
EERDIEREMERT R L2 HEZERIE R AR
WHEB DL o
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints After-Sales Service 93
received and how they are dealt with. BB R
BN EmERGEIRFEE AREE X -
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Improving 92
protecting intellectual property rights. Data Access
i B M ARIE B ERE R ER1E ) - Procedures
TEHBRLAER
2
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Quality Assurance 89
procedures. B E{RE
B ST RIEREREKIEF
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Data 91
policies, how they are implemented and monitored. Confidentiality
U B E B RMRE RALBECR - ARMEERTR BRRE

BEEIEA -
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B7 Anti-corruption
RES
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Anti-corruption 93
practices brought against the issuer or its employees BRIENERR
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
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B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- Anti-corruption 93
blowing procedures, how they are implemented and BRIENGERR
monitored.
A EREE R RRIET - URABERTRERS
VA e
Community
#HE
B8 Community Investment
HERE
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Charity 94
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, NmEE
culture, sport).
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited {5 7% "Rl (75 i)

43/F., Lee Garden One s HE AR A
8 . 3 33 Hysan Avenue T e
hlneﬂ)tng Causeway Bay, Hong Kong A TESE 3351 — 434

TO THE MEMBERS OF

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED

(originally incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Peace Map Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 106 to 291, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matter described in the Basis of Disclaimer of Opinion section of
our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other aspects, in our
opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We draw attention to note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group reported a net loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$633,492,000 and had a net operating cash outflow
of approximately HK$65,540,000 during the year ended
31 December 2017. As at 31 December 2017, the Group
had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
HK$73,311,000 and HK$288,794,000 respectively. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that
may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

In order to improve its liquidity and financial position, the directors
of the Company have been undertaking a number of measures
as set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends on the outcome
of these measures, which are subject to multiple uncertainties,
including (i) the successful negotiation with the noteholder for
the extension for repayment of convertible note due on 2 August
2018; (ii) the successful negotiations with all noteholders to
undertake not to demand for repayment of amounts due even
if any event of default or potential event of default might occur;
and (iii) successful negotiations with one of the substantial
shareholders to obtain financial support to the Group and
undertake all the liabilities that may arise.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above mentioned measures,
it might not be able to continue as a going concern as the Group
would be unable to meet its financial commitments based on
the current level of its bank balances and cash. Due to the
significance of the uncertainties associated with this matter, we
disclaim our opinion in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors of the Company determine it is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA and to
issue an auditor's report solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act and our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. However, because of the
matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Pang Wai Hang.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number: P05044

Hong Kong
29 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mAEEmK

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E2—F—+F+=-H=1—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’OO_O
B aE FHT FATT
Continuing operations FERE TR
Revenue Was 6 195,044 232,778
JCostofrevenue . CMGEPCK (255,989) ... (228,585)
Gross (loss) profit E(3B)F| (60,945) 4,193
Other income EHAbUg A 8 3,974 10,890
Selling and distribution expenses 5% &5 5 2 (24,625) (24,748)
Administrative and other TR REMEERY
operating expenses (86,544) (125,870)
Equity-settled share-based VAR 2 A48 0 ARR 19
payment expenses SN2 FX 37 - (2,215)
Share of result of associates DL E N B EE 19 (1,870) 1,618
Impairment loss of goodwil AR REEE 20 (285,807) (183,404)
Impairment loss of other HEMEpEE REREE
intangible assets B 21 (89,453) (220,793)
.Other gain and losses, net AfRmMERFE 9 i 84513) (41,281),
Operating loss R2ER (609,783) (581,610)
JFinancecosts L UBERE 10 .. (88960 (62,509)
Loss before taxation R Bl &S 1E 12 (668,743) (634,119)
Incometaxcredit . PiEREe 18 826 36,964
Loss for the year from R EXEB 2 FAEE
continuing operations (657,117) (598,155)
Discontinued operation Sl —F 3
Profit for the year from BRI
... discontinued operation . ZEER L ST .. . 77,862
Loss for the year FAEE (657,117) (520,293)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable ZNA &% A A FE(E S A
to owners of the Company: (E518) @A
— from continuing operations — REFELEER (633,492) (587,422)
......from discontinued operation T REEMIAERME o 77,849
Loss for the year attributable N/NSIE DN
...1oowners of the Company  fSFMEIE (633,492) .. (509,5783)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable FE3EA%FEZSFE(R A
to non-controlling interests: (B1E) = H:
— from continuing operations — REFELEHES (23,625) (10,733)
......from discontinued operation T REEMILAERE o 13,
Loss for the year attributable RS (R F NETE
.....Jonon-controlling interests o (23625) (10,720)
(657,117) (520,293)
HK cents HK cents
7l el
Loss per share BRER 15
From continuing and discontinued K B #5488 & 248 1F
operations KR ST
— Basic and diluted — EARREE (7.77) (6.25)
From continuing operations REFELCEER
— Basic and diluted — EARREE (7.77) (7.20)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEBEaRkEtAZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE_=—F—+F+=-H=+—HIFFZE

2017 2016
—E—+E —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Loss for the year FAEE (657,117) (520,293)
Other comprehensive income  HEMZHWA (FAx)
(expense)
ltems that may be reclassified BEIRAIEFT DR
subsequently to profit or loss: EmIEE
Exchange differences arising MEBINEBFTES
from translation 2 T R
of overseas operations 31,812 (68,979)
Reclassification adjustment R EBINEREE
for the cumulative loss (gain) FTABR 2 25TEE
included in profit or loss (W) e 2 B3
upon disposal of overseas Sak Sk
operations 1,977 (70,491)
Other comprehensive income FREMZERA(FAXZ)
(expense) for the year 33,789 (139,470)
Total comprehensive FREHERAXBEE
expense for the year (623,328) (659,763)
Total comprehensive expense AT S IEERFEA
for the year attributable to: P HEAXBEE:
Owners of the Company RARER A (602,650) (645,226)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R A (20,678) (14,537)

(623,328) (659,763)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SE BB R

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T~ BB R A 7

As at'31 December 2017 R=-F—+#+=-HA=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F —TE—REF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FExT FHTT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y3 RE MR 17 40,539 42 553
Interests in associates /NI ol e 19 3,962 11,697
Goodwill EES 20 116,186 404,076
Other intangible assets HEihEREE 21 126,434 230,466
Available-for-sale investment AHHERE 22 - 4,465
Defered taxassets EEREEAE 85 ol 48 .
e 287,121 ......693,305
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 25 901 886
Amounts due from B R F A TI2NE
customers of contract works 26 217,677 221,097
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E M EKIE 27 135,167 179,336
Finance lease receivables BERERWIA 28 2,161 2,010
Tax recoverable EEEEE] 6 6
Pledged bank deposits BIRRITIER 29 165 197
Bankbalancesand cash  RITE®ERE 80 101,197 158,582
e ABT2TA 562,114
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to customers ENRPEHIZHRIE
of contract works 26 2,815 11,902
Trade and other payables 25 REME 1‘JLt 31 375,251 258,107
Amounts due to A FETE AR AR B 3k
non-controlling shareholders 18 6,761 74,632
Amounts due to associates NN E R 18 6,168 44,135
Tax payables FETFRIR 1,675 5,648
Borrowings BE 32 43,386 30,624
Convertidlenotes ... ARBERR 33 94529 ... =
R . ... 930,585 ... 425,048
.Net current (liabilities) assets  Fn®@(Rf)&=Z @831 137,066
Total assets less HWEEBRBAR

current liabilities 213,810 830,371
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI E

As at 31 December 2017 R=-F—+#+=A=+—=H

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—REF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET T
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Amount due to a non-controlling & — & FEIE IR R FUIE
shareholder 18 62,629 6,168
Borrowings EEe 32 3,602 626
Convertible notes AR EE 33 427,856 469,282
Deferred income FEIEUT A 34 - 264
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIERE 35 8,517 19,497
502,604 495,837
Net (liabilities) assets F(EBEE (288,794) 334,534
Capital and Reserves EXRR #E
Share capital f&zx 36 81,568 2,039,195
Reserves et 38 (401,537) (1,756,514)
Equity attributable to owners ZiN/NCIEZ 2 = DN A e T
of the Company (319,969) 282,681
Non-controlling interests JEFER R = 31,175 51,853
Total equity e (288,794) 334,534

F106 2201 EFi# 2R EMBHRER=_Z—N
FZA-HNHKESSHEREETE - X H

The consolidated financial statements on pages 106 to 291 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

29 March 2018 and were signed on its behalf by: INTESREREE -
GUAN Hongliang LI Bin
BB R =)
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EREEHR

by

n

T—HIEFE

—A=

—

=

£

Forthe year ended 31 December 2017  #t

(v62'882) SLLKE (69661€) (c81128) 86695} - (ve8'z6) 265l 609 Slg'0e 508k - 918 H-+=H=+
FI-&=H L10¢ Joquisdaq g W
- - - $0¢ - - - (voe) - - - - - ([loetx)
B & E—ST (s l0u) Arepisons e o psodsig
- - - 68'7v0' - (292'280')) - - - - - - (229'256' (9g e10u)
(96RI) BEY Y uojjeziuebioal eyden
- - - - - 192'180' - - - - - (9z's80) - (OET 0BT (9¢ 810u) uogonpa1 feydeD)
(8ee'ez) (829'02) (0g9209) (ev'ee) - - 80e - - - - - - i 1eaf 9u} Jo} (asusdixa)
(XH)Y BTV 8UI00UI BAISUBYBIAWO0 (210
YHBEH L 8U00U] BAISUBYRIAW00 IO
e $e8SJBN0 JO [esodsip Uodn
B WE 2 md)E $50] 40 110/dl U papnjoul
£ 7TV 12E $50] BARINLIND 8U} Jo}
Y (HE MU JUaWSNipe UoRalsselosy
o8'le 1167 698°82 - - - 698'2 - - - - - - suojelsdo
FERE $28SJ8N0 J0 UOfRISUEL} LI0J
2EBYYEEES Buisue souaseyp abueyoxg
(zhh'299) (Gz9'e) (e6v'ee9) (ev'ee) - - - - - - - - - E1E(YED Jeaf U} Jo} 507
vES'vee £68'16 189282 (66s'vs67) 6695k - (029'set) 988t} 629'9 920y 508'ch 192'180°} 6616607 H-H-HF-&=\ L10g frenuep | 1y
(EEEH) (Blocmf)  (WeeRM)  (CloeTM)  (PlocTf)  (ClSCRM)  (@oeTH)  (EGIBLRM)  (9%EH)
(gg @0u) (Blggarou)  (Wggarow)  (Glggaroy)  (Plggaroy)  (Jggaron)  ((dlggaron)  ((elggaou)  (og aou)
Lgy Yt Lgy Yt Ygy vgy Lgy rgy Ygy rgy Ygt Lgy Yt
000$YH 000S)H 000$YH 000:$YH 000$YH 000:$)H 000.$¥H 000:$)H 000.$YH 000$)H 000.$¥H 000$)YH 000.$YH
] BUAEE L BOME  8BEEE SEVE $EYE SBIX $BOEVE  SERNW 9B4S  BRO v
fynba sjsalopul [eJoL 95507 HENG [ snjdins aMasal aMasal aMasal anasal aMasal wnjwaid leyden
[ejoL Buyjjonuod pajeNWNody  anasal painquiuoy  uopejsues;  Kionjeis uopdwepal  uopdo e aleys aleys
-UoN Kynba ajou leydes aleyg
8|qiusAu0)
RN YEHETY

fRuedwog ayy jo sisumo o} ajqeinquye Anbg



111

Cooococoooocoooooooonoooonnocooociittsodboodnao— noocooo

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3§

meREgER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AZFEhFE

—FF1=

—=
==

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #tZ.

e9ee £98'19 189782 (b6S'76c)  866'93+ (929°¢2H) 9871 6299 9eeer c08el 192/80'h  961'680C H—f=H=HV &% 940 Jo0Wweoaq 1€ I
B R R T e
(LER0g) XBZ SjueLAed paseq-e/eys
NEOAMTEHRAE paes-Ainbe jo uoyuBoosy
- = = 2689 = = = = (c68'9) = = - A Suodo a1euS Jo ainye04
798 98 - - - - - - - - - - ((o)sg s1ou)
(RO ENA IR SBUBIPISONS JO [esodsiq
/8¢ €/6'e - - - - - - - - - - (87 8100)
(SYRI)[2 7 & Lyjlel— ans e Jo uopensiBaieq
(892'659) (zeg'1) (9zz'sva) (e29'609) - (es9'sel) - - - - - - zeaf oy Joy
BHXMETME  osusdxs ansusyeidwoo lo)
R T T R e LT T DAL
KMETHHML  osuadxe snsusyeidwod LU0
L e
{0 [esodsip uodn sso|
10 Joid Uy papnjoul
BRHCWEZ YRR Upeb aenuino uy Joj
ZEEYVIEEEUESTY Wewsnipe uojeoysseoay
(626'89) (218'8) (c91'c9) - - (z91'99) - - - - - - 1eak oy Joj asusdxe
ANSUBYRIALIOD JBYJ0 pUe
suojelado sessieno
KHETHEMEY J0 UopeiSUes} Lo
RV T IYYE(BEY Buisue sausJayp sbueyoxg
(e62'02S) (0c2'01) (e5'608) (625'605) - - = = = = = = Yy 1ea au} 10} S50
Gv8'/86 €629 269'G26 (816'197'2) 86695 L6} 987+ 6299 £06'97 G08'cH 192'180°} G6+'6€0C H—H—-HN—2=W 9102 Arener | 1y
(SCTEM) (gemiy)  (Gloeml)  (PloeRly)  (llgemyy)  (ldeeTy)  (EBIBCTE)  (9LTH)
(eg 8100) (Wgceoy)  (elggeroy)  (plggaioy)  (ojgeeiol)  (lggeiol)  ((Elgesion)  (9g sjou)
vgd Yg Ygd Ygd Ygd gy Ygd gy Ygd Yy Ygd red
000.$3H 000.$%H 000.$3H 000.$%H 000.$3H 000.$%H 000.$3H 000.$%H 000.$3H 000.$%H 000.$%H 000.$%H
ay DT £8 HEEE YERRY  YEYH LEEES YEDHYE BEANE  $E4° FRYM i
fanbe SIsalelul [eloL 85507 = EIVEST] aMBSel EIVESST] QMBSel aMNBsal wniweid [eycea
1oL Buyjonuoo pejenuno0y  BMIesal oISl foneig vopdwepal  uopdo e e 8leys
-UON funbs s10u [enden 2y
8jqiueAue)
o2 NS HINA

fiuedwon) 8y} Jo Siaumo 0} gigeinaye Anb3



112 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED %k T Bl E R A R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GEEERER

For the yéar ended 31 December 2017 #Z_—F—+F+_-H=1+—HIFZE

2017 2016
—E—tF —Z—NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iz THET AT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES FSPrda)
(Loss) profit before taxation BREERT (B4R A
— Continuing operations — BELEEE (668,743) (634,119)
... Discontinued operation ... EREEERE T TT802
(668,743) (556,257)
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs BB 58,960 52,509
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hihmp & o B 35,683 53,368
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses WEREEWIARN S 2 X - 2,215
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ BERREZTE 9,075 12,520
Net loss on disposal of property, HENE « BFE L&
plant and equipment 2FER 100 65
Loss arising from change RS D RIS E)
in shareholding in an associate EE BB - 97
Impairment loss of exploration HERHEEEZRESSE
and evaluation assets - 175
Impairment loss of trade and other receivables B RAMEKTIE REEE 5,933 10,893
Reversal of impairment loss of trade receivables 2 5 EKEIE zma;ga BzEE (213) (6,057)
Impairment loss of goodwil BEZREBRE 285,807 183,404
Impairment loss of other intangible assets Hin BB E 2 RERSE 89,453 220,793
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% + BE MR E 2 RESE 1,872 =
Impairment loss of available-for-sale investment A HERE 2 FHEEE 4,614 7,011
Exchange (gain) loss, net S () BiFEE (102 9,890
Bank interest income RITH BIA (459) (654)
Government grants eREE (2,036) (5,720)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary HE—HNB AR BE - 4,718
Loss (gain) on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AR EE (W) 18,913 (80,228)
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—HBE AR EE 1,629 =
Loss on uncertainty in respect of collectability of BRI E P AH TI2ZUE
amounts due from customers of contract works ~ WREIE T E N HEE! \&*}Eﬁ TE 33,249 13,771
Reversal of loss on uncertainty in respect BRRKEPEANTIENE
of collectability of amounts due from W BB R HEE 1
customers of contract works BECER (2,360) (16,479)
Write-off of other intangjble assets Hiv BB E 2 M 822 4,880
Write-back of trade and other payables ‘éj 5 REAMPEIT IR 2 & - (4,166)
Write-off of trade and other receivables B 5 N E th PR RIE 2 s - 6,555
Allowance for inventories FERE - 365
Write-off of property, plant and equipment WE - BE R M 54 15,989
Share of result of associates AMEBE N R EE 1,870 (1,618)
Operating cash flows before HEESEHA
movements in working capital RERGRE (125,879) (71,961)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE M,/ R (15) 3,688
Increase in amounts due from customers EWEP &K TRFIAEM
of contract works (14,246) (15,004)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables & 5 R E M EE Iﬁﬁ// 25,727 (43,951)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due ENEFANTIRIE ) / i"?JI]
to customers of contract works (9,592) 6,840
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R EMERNFIRE M 67,719 69,320
Cash used in operations SEHH R (56,286) (51,068)
Interest paid on borrowings HEZBENHE (5,729) (1,939)
Interest received RGN 459 654
Income taxes paid BRAEH (3,984) (2,036)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES E£&ZEREAzHEFE (65,540) (54,389)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERBR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE_=—F—+F+=-H=+—HIFFZE

2017 2016
—E—tE ZERE
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
=3 THT THT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Payment for acquire other intangible assets BEHMENEE IR (9,306) (24,946)
Payment for acquire property, plant BEVE  WERREZNR
and equipment (6,203) (8,800)
Purchase of available-for-sale investment BERHLERE - (3,506)
Capital injection in associates REENREE - (6,360)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FHEEREITER - (197)
Payment for acquire exploration BEMRLTHBEZNR
and evaluation assets - (175)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HENE  BEK
and equipment RGBSR 16 963
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REEERBFTER 44 122,678
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, HEMB AR ZFEFUR -
net of cash disposed of THREENRE 39 792 7,301
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—RBE AR ZFTERIE 19 3,976 =
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REEDH (BA)EE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFH (10,681) 87,958
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
New borrowings raised IR 49,659 31,364
Government grants received BT 48 B 2,266 15,134
(Repayment to) advance from associates (B8 BIMEARZIE (186) 18,657
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders [RFEFEARAR 3R AR X (2,202) -
Repayment of borrowings EEER (36,281) (144,217)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RERDHEL (BA)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ZEERE 13,256 (79,062)
NET DECREASE IN CASH RERBEEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RO BE (62,965) (45,493)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FARERAEEEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 158,582 213,141
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREE) B 5,580 (9,066)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZAERALEEY

AT THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank
balances and cash

ERITESERES 101,197 158,582
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M E

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2—F—+F+=H=1—HILFZE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

(a) General information

Peace Map Holding Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 25 May
2004 as an exempted company with limited liability
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company was de-registered in the
Cayman Islands and duly continued in Bermuda as
an exempted company under the laws of Bermuda.
The change of domicile from the Cayman Islands to
Bermuda became effective on 24 July 2017 (Bermuda
time)/25 July 2017 (Hong Kong time). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the geographic information business in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) including
aerial photography, and remote sensing image
data collection (“data collection”), provision of
geospatial data processing services, softwares and
solutions (“business application and services”)
and development and sales of high-end surveying
and mapping equipment (“development and sales
of equipment”). The Group’s mining and exploration
business was discontinued during the year ended 31
December 2016 upon the completion of the disposal
of Fast Billion Investments Limited (“Fast Billion”),
together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Fast Billion Group”), on 20 September 2016.
Details of the discontinued operation are set out in
note 11.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE_=—F—+F+=-H=+—HIFFZE

GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

General information (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$”), which is also the
functional currency of the Company other than those
subsidiaries established in the PRC whose functional
currency is Renminbi (‘RMB”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
HKASs and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA,
the disclosures requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provision of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants in the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions
(i.e. exit price) regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. Details of fair value measurement
are set out in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS RRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2—F—+F+=H=1—HILFZE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Going concern

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group recorded a net loss attributable to the owners
of the Company of approximately HK$633,492,000
and a net operating cash outflow of approximately
HK$65,540,000. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group had net current liabilities and net
liabilities of approximately of HK$73,311,000 and
HK$288,794,000 respectively, and the Group’s total
borrowings amounted to HK$632,002,000 which
comprised interest-bearing amount due to a non-
controlling shareholder, bank and other borrowings
and convertible notes. Bank balances and cash and
pledged bank deposits amounted to approximately
HK$101,362,000. These events and conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Therefore, the Group
may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business. In view
of these circumstances and after critical review of
the financial position, the directors of the company
(“Directors”) have undertaken the following measures
to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—=F

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

1.

Active negotiations with the noteholder to obtain
an extension for repayment of the convertible
note due on 2 August 2018 and not to demand
for repayment even if any event of default or
potential event of default which might occur.

Active negotiations with the noteholders of
notes due in 2020 to obtain their consent and
undertaking not to demand the repayment of
amounts due even if any event of default or
potential event of default which might occur.

Active negotiations with one of the substantial
shareholders to obtain financial support to the
Group for its operation on a going concern basis
and undertake all the liabilities that may arise.

The Directors will continue to take active
measures to control administrative costs through
various channels including human resources
optimisation and containment of capital
expenditures to improve operating cash flows
and its financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS RRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—ZF

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Going concern (Continued)

The validity of the going concern basis on which
the consolidated financial statements are prepared
is dependent on the successful and favourable
outcomes of the above measures being taken by
the Directors and the outcome of these measures as
described above. Hence, the Directors are of the view
that the Group would be able to generate sufficient
funds to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due in the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis and do not
include any adjustments relating to the recognition
of provisions or the realisation and reclassification of
non-current assets and non-current liabilities that may
be necessary if the Group is unable to continue as a
going concern.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above mentioned
plans and measures, it might not be able to continue
operating as a going concern, and adjustments would
have to be made to restate the values of the assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to classify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities respectively. The effects of these
potential adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.
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REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE_=—F—+F+=-H=+—HIFFZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)”), amendments and
interpretations (“Int(s)”), issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 — 2016
Cycle: Amendments to
HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised
Losses

Except as described below, the application of the other
new and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current year and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E2—F—+F+=-H=1—HIFE

IR MR

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. The amendments do not prescribe a specific
method to fulfil the new disclosure requirements. However,
the amendments indicate that one way is to provide a
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances for
liabilities arising from financing activities.

The application of amendments to HKAS 7 has resulted in
additional disclosures on the Group’s financing activities,
especially a reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances in the consolidated statement of financial position
for liabilities arising from financing activities is provided
in note 47. On initial application of the amendments, the
Group is not required to provide comparative information for
preceding periods. Apart from the additional disclosure in
note 47, the Directors considered that these amendments
have had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE_=—F—+F+=-H=+—HIFFZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
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revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Financial Instruments!

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'’
Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle!

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle?

Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E2—F—+F+=-H=1—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 Assets between an

Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment
Property’

HK(FRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

HK(FRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

4 Effective date not yet been determined.

The Directors anticipate that, except as described below,
the application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE_=—F—+F+=-H=+—HIFFZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was amended in 2010 and includes the
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS
9 was further amended to bring into effect a substantial
overhaul of hedge accounting that will allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities in the financial
statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in
2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9 that
were issued in previous years with limited amendments to
the classification and measurement by introducing a “fair
value through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”)
measurement category for certain financial assets. The
finalised version of HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected
credit loss” model for impairment assessments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E2—F—+F+=-H=1—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as
follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 (2014) to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the end
of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designed as at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), HKFRS 9 (2014) requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as
FVTPL was presented in profit or loss.

° In the aspect of impairment assessments, the
impairment requirements relating to the accounting
for an entity’s expected credit losses on its financial
assets and commitments to extend credit were
added. Those requirements eliminate the threshold
that was in HKAS 39 for the recognition of credit
losses. Under the impairment approach in HKFRS 9
(2014), it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised.
Instead, expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses should always be accounted
for. The amount of expected credit losses is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit losses.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

o HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which
is more closely aligns hedge accounting with risk
management activities undertaken by companies
when hedging their financial and non-financial risk
exposures. As a principle-based approach, HKFRS
9 (2014) looks at whether a risk component can be
identified and measured and does not distinguish
between financial items and non-financial items. The
new model also enables an entity to use information
produced internally for risk management purposes
as a basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS 39, it
is necessary to exhibit eligibility and compliance with
the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics that are
designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are
based on an economic assessment of the strength
of the hedging relationship. This can be determined
using risk management data. This should reduce the
costs of implementation compared with those for
HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it reduces the
amount of analysis that is required to be undertaken
only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE_=—F—+F+=-H=+—HIFFZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Directors has performed a preliminary analysis of the
Group’s financial instruments as at 31 December 2017
based on the fact and circumstances existing at that
date. The Directors have assessed the impact of adoption
of HKFRS 9 (2014) on the Group’s results and financial
position, including the classification categories and the
measurement of financial assets, and disclosures, as
follows:

(@) Classification and measurement

The Group’s available-for-sale investment, including
those currently stated at cost less impairment, will
either be measured as fair value through profit or loss
or be designated with irrevocable election to present
in other comprehensive income the changes in fair
value.

(o)  Impairment

The Directors expect to apply the simplified approach
and record lifetime expected credit losses that are
estimated based on the present value of all cash
shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its amounts
due from customers of contract works, trade and
other receivables and finance lease receivables.
The application of the expected credit loss model
may result in earlier recognition of credit losses for
amounts due from customers of contract works, trade
and other receivables and finance lease receivables
and increase the amount of impairment allowance
recognised for these items.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)  Impairment (Continued)

The Directors will perform a more detailed analysis
which considers all reasonable and supportable
information for the estimation of the effect of adoption
of HKFRS 9 (2014). Based on the preliminary
assessment, the Directors expect that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 (2014) will not have other material impact
on amounts reported in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Thus, HKFRS
15 introduces a model that applies to contracts with
customers, featuring a contract-based five-step analysis of
transactions to determine whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

i) Identify the contract with a customer;
if) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
i) Determine the transaction price;

iv)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

v)  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE_=—F—+F+=-H=+—HIFFZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from contracts with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when
it becomes effective.

HFKRS 15 will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted.

The major sources of revenue of the Group are sales
of goods and construction contracts. Under HKFRS
15, revenue is recognised for each of the performance
obligations when control over a good or service is
transferred to a customer. The Directors have preliminarily
assessed each type of the performance obligations and
consider that the performance obligations are similar to
the current identification of separate revenue components
under HKAS 18 Revenue. Furthermore, HKFRS 15 requires
the transaction price to be allocated to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price basis, which
may affect the timing and amounts of revenue recognition,
and results in more disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the Directors expect that the adoption
of HKFRS 15 will not have a material impact on the timing
and amounts of revenue recognised based on the existing
business model of the Group as at 31 December 2017.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

In respect of the construction contracts, the Directors
have considered the guidance of HKFRS 15 on contract
combination, contract modifications, variable consideration
and the existence of significant financing component in
the contracts. The Directors have assessed that revenue
from these construction contracts will be recognised
over time during the course of construction. Furthermore,
the Directors have considered that the output method
currently used to measure the progress towards complete
satisfaction of these performance obligations appropriately
depicts the performance under the contracts and will
continue to be applied under HKFRS 15. The Directors
expect that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will not have material
impact on amounts reported in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and their treatment in
the financial statements of both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces
a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset
has a low value.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is
required to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which
consists of the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability, plus any lease payments made to the lessor
at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received, the initial estimate of restoration costs
and any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee. A lease
liability is initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Lease liability is subsequently measured
by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payment made, and remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications
or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
Depreciation and impairment expenses, if any, on the right-
of-use asset will be charged to profit or loss following the
requirements of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment,
while interest accrual on lease liability will be charged to
profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17 Leases. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify
its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to
account for those two types of leases differently.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards
including HKAS 17 Leases and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HFKRS 16 will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with early application
permitted provided that the entity has applied HFKRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers at or before the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$24,476,000 as
disclosed in note 40. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low
value or short-term leases. Furthermore, the application of
new requirements may result in changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

The Directors are in the process to determine the amounts
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position, after
taking into account all practical expedients and recognition
exemption under HKFRS 16. The Directors expect that
the adoption of HKFRS 16 will not have material impact
on the Group’s result but certain portion of these lease
commitments will be required to be recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (i.e. its subsidiaries).

Control is achieved when the Group (i) has power over the
investee; (i) exposed, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (i) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s
returns. When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, power over the investee may
be obtained through: (i) a contractual arrangement with
other vote holders; (i) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; (iii) the Group’s voting rights and potential
voting rights; or (iv) a combination of the above, based on
all relevant facts and circumstances.

The Company reassess whether it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiary

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognised as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUSs”) (or groups of CGUSs) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

BEASHEHE#)

mEE%EE)

SEARRENEERBR - #m - WA
i REAEEKE AR SHEBENRE
MERFEIKE 2B -

AEERAEHEAREEEERD
25

EARKBERELHMBATRZESIE - K ()
FEREEHIEE DR RE AR L FER TS
AAWEE(BEBE) RAE - (i) KEEH
REE BRI HER T AT A B R (AT R AR
R RaE(BRNSRIGE 2K
BEAE D) - K (i) EREKREN DR
RITAREBESN DA ERE - MAEELZ
ERERAER SN EERIGIB RN KRS
HEE -

]

RAEBAHEL ZBERKANRRFTRE
BER (nHE) Ak o

4

SUREAEME - BEROEESAPAK
BHIELZ BRMET XBZAEEZR
SEABU((REEEEMN]) (HRSEL
BRAER) o



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3§

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —ZF—+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The Group’s interests in associates are accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. Under the equity method, interests in associates
are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s share of the
profit or loss and changes in the other comprehensive
income of the associates are recognised in profit or loss
and other comprehensive income respectively after the date
of acquisition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

An interest in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate.

After application of the equity method, including recognising
the associate’s losses (if any), the Group determines
whether it is necessary to recognise any additional
impairment loss with respect to its interest in an associate.
The entire carrying amount of the interest is tested for
impairment as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
interests in associates. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the interests subsequently increases.

When the interest ceases to be an associate upon the
Group losing significant influence over the associate, the
Group discontinues to apply equity method.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate. The Group’s share
in the associate’s gains or losses resulting from these
transactions is eliminated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —ZF—+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods sold and services rendered
in the normal course of business, net of sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

— the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

— the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

— the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

— it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

— the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

The Group’s policy for the recognition of revenue from
construction contracts is described in the accounting policy

in respect of construction contracts below.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2—F—+F+=H=1—HILFZE

IR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Group’s policy for recognition of rental income is
described in the accounting policy in respect of leasing
below.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a business application and services
and data collection contract can be estimated reliably,
revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of
the reporting period, measured based on the percentage
of certified work performed to date to the estimated total
sum of the relevant contracts. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent
that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.

Where the outcome of a business application and services
and data collection contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —ZF—+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction contracts (Continued)

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers
of contract works. For contracts where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as
amounts due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position, as a
liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under trade
and other receivables.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as prepaid lease
payments in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE_=—F—+F+=-H=+—HIFFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

3.
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IR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
and buildings (classified as finance leases) held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible asset

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

— the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

— the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

— the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible asset (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any)
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses
on tangible and intangible assets below). Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible asset (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
(Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are carried
at costs less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any). Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Alternatively,
intangible assets acquired in a business combination with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the CGU)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on the first-
in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances and cash
with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances
and cash as defined above.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution plan (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal governments.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Payments to the MPF Scheme, central pension scheme
and the social insurance scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of wages and salaries in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables and available-for-sale investment. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
finance lease receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial asset

Available-for-sale financial asset is non-derivative that is
either designated as available-for-sale or is not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

Available-for-sale equity investment that does not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment of financial
assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

— breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and other receivables that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables and finance lease
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When trade and other receivables and finance lease
receivables are considered uncollectible, they are written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment loss on available-for-sale equity investment will
not be reversed through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into financial
liabilities at amortised cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including borrowings,
trade and other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders/associates and convertible notes are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities of the Group are offset and
the net amount presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position when, and only when, there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain both
the liability component and conversion option components
are classified separately into respective item on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible notes and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the convertible
notes into equity, is included in equity (convertible note
equity reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Convertible notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using effective
interest method. The equity component, representing
the option to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in the convertible note
equity reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in the convertible note equity
reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where the
option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
stated in convertible note equity reserve will be released to
accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

When the convertible note is converted, the carrying
amount of the liability component at the time of conversion
is transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. When the convertible
note is redeemed, the difference between the redemption
amount and the carrying amounts of both components is
recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability, equity component
and extension option components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible notes using the
effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of recognising and acknowledging the contributions that
the eligible participants have made to the Group. Eligible
participants including employees (including directors),
customers, suppliers, agents, partners, consultants,
advisers or shareholders of or contractors to the Group
or any affiliate, receive remuneration in the form of share-
based compensation, whereby eligible participants render
services as consideration for equity instrument (i.e. equity-
settled transactions).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date the
options are granted excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions. The cost of equity-settled transactions
with parties other than employees is measured by reference
to the fair value of the goods or services provided, unless
that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case
the goods or services received are measured by reference
to the fair value of the share options granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised as
an expense in profit or loss with a corresponding increase
in share option reserve within equity. If vesting periods or
other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated
using straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the best available estimate of the number of share
options expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised if there is indication that the number
of share options expected to vest differs from previous
estimates. Any adjustment to the fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss in the year
of the review with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting that relate to market condition (which is treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition
is satisfied).

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
contributed surplus (2016: share premium). When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s share-
based payment transactions, leasing transactions, net
realisable value of inventories and value in use of other
intangible assets for the purpose of impairment assessment,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised
the fair value measurements into three levels, based on the
characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level2 —  Valuation technigues for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 —  Valuation technigues for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Control over a subsidiary

Notwithstanding the lack of equity ownership in 1t =X T &l
HIERMAR AR (Peace Map Co., Ltd*) (‘Beijing Peace
Map”), the Group is able to exercise control over Beijing
Peace Map and its subsidiaries (“Peace Map Group”)
through a series of agreements with the majority of its
ultimate shareholders (the “Structural Agreements”).

* For identification purpose only
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Control over a subsidiary (Continued)

The Directors assessed whether or not the Group has
control over Beijing Peace Map based on whether the
Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of Beijing Peace Map unilaterally. In making their judgement,
the Directors considered the Group’s rights through the
Structural Agreements, and concluded that the Group has
sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the relevant
activities of Beijing Peace Map and therefore the Group has
control over Beijing Peace Map. Further details are set out
in note 45(j).

Renewal of licences in respect of geographic information
business

The normal operation of geographic information business
is subjected to successful renewal for the licences with
legal life of 2 to 3 years and renewable every 2 to 3 years
at minimal cost. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group
did not expect to have any major obstacles in the renewal
of the licences. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of licences is approximately HK$64,824,000 (2016:
HK$90,122,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$103,828,000 (2016: HK$69,790,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. Where the final tax outcome is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the periods in which such determination
are made. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are less than
expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal takes place. As at 31
December 2017, the carrying value of the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are nil and HK$8,517,000
(2016: HK$48,000 and HK$19,497,000) respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Impairment assessment on goodwill attributable to CGUs

For the impairment assessment on goodwill, the Directors
has taken steps in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”, by considering whether the carrying amount
of CGUs exceed the recoverable amount of respective
CGUs. The recoverable amount of the CGUs which
goodwill attributable to is determined based on value in
use calculation (2016: fair value less cost of disposal). As
at 31 December 2017, the carrying value of the goodwill is
approximately HK$116,186,000 (2016: HK$404,076,000),
net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$456,419,000 (2016: HK$174,885,000).

As described in note 20, the Directors use their judgement
in selecting an appropriate valuation technique to determine
the recoverable amount of respective CGUs. Further details,
including the recoverable amount calculation and key
assumptions used, are disclosed in note 20.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Revenue recognition

The Group recognised project revenue of a business
application and services and data collection contract
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period, measured
based on the percentage of certified work performed to
date to the estimated total sum of the relevant contracts.
Notwithstanding that the Directors reviews and revises
the estimates of both contract revenue and costs for the
contract as the contract progresses, the actual outcome of
the contract in terms of its total revenue and costs may be
higher or lower than the estimates and this will affect the
revenue recognised.

Uncertainty in respect of collectability of amounts due
from customers of contract works

The Group recognised loss on uncertainty in respect of
collectability of amounts due from customers of contract
works based on the assessment of the Directors that certain
contract works have been suspended or have not yet been
compromised with the customers on the amount of final
billing, as such the related carrying amounts of contract
works are not probable to recover. If the final billing is not
agreed by the customers, actual loss would be higher than
estimated. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount
of amounts due from customers of contract works is
approximately HK$217,677,000 (2016: HK$221,097,000),
net of accumulated losses of approximately HK$93,863,000
(2016: HK$60,028,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
an impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2017,
the carrying amount of trade and other receivables is
approximately HK$119,568,000 (2016: HK$142,329,000),
net of accumulated impairment losses of approximately
HK$23,345,000 (2016: HK$17,152,000).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group performs assessments on whether items of
property, plant and equipment have suffered any impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicated that
the carrying amounts of the assets may not be recoverable,
in accordance with the stated accounting policy. Where
there is an indicator of impairment, an estimation of the
recoverable amount is required. Such estimation is based
on certain assumptions which are subject to uncertainty
and might differ from the actual result. As at 31 December
2017, the carrying value of property, plant and equipment
is approximately HK$40,539,000 (2016: HK$42,553,000),
net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$19,973,000 (2016: HK$16,759,000).

BEEESHE R AT TEEMRN
FERFK®)

At T REMNEZRRIF (&)
B5 R HEMEBWEIE 2 BIERR

WERBEERTNLEREBSE  A5EE
ZRARRSREMGET - BEEE S5
TR E EREERMG RKRERE (D
BREREEZRKREEEBR) KEREE
2 RE BRI = (EIJW)JHEWMZa&%J
T)%EZEETEZ%%E o fiiE RIRER
IE%/}ILE{EEEA?EHE ! ﬁ'J—J Fi/ﬁfﬁ)@ﬂé"
RZE—+tF+=—A=+—H BEF5KEM
JE U SR IB Y BR B 49 4119,568,000/8 7T (=
T — N4 1 142,329,000 7T ) - Bk Rt
(B BT 18 49 23,345,000 7T (— B — /N 4F -
17,152,000 7T) °

Y3 - BB RRERE

zli%l/,ﬁE%FLL S TR AR B A E A
EHEBERBLBTRASBNYE  BE

HBEEE E’UEEETE?%%&@H&ZF@%@IE%%
BELIFRE - WERREEE - BIZEE
Hﬁz@%ﬁ%ﬁtfﬂﬁr ° %%%ﬁ?m%ﬁ“*?ﬁ
& BRETHEARNTE i ER
i*%TH s ZE—+F+_A —+—E :
MIE - BB MR Z BREEX) 540,539,000
BT (T — 754 : 42,553,000/ 7T) *
Br R TR B B 18 4919,973,000/8 T (=&
—7N4F : 16,759,000 7T) °



PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T~ BB R A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

Forthe year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—=F

IR MR

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of other intangible assets

The Group performs assessments on whether there is
impairment of other intangible assets whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
of other intangible assets are determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use
of estimates and assumptions made by the Directors on
the future operation of the businesses, pre-tax discount
rates and other assumptions underlying the value-in-
use calculations. For any instance where this evaluation
process indicates impairment, the relevant intangible asset’s
carrying amount is written down to the recoverable amount
and the amount of the write-down is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at 31 December
2017, the carrying value of other intangible assets is
approximately HK$126,434,000 (2016: HK$230,466,000),
net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$418,705,000 (2016: HK$302,725,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimation of useful lives of other intangible assets

Determining whether licences is indefinite requires an
estimation of ability to renew the licences, cost of renewal
in the future and the expected life of the licences to
generate net cash flows for the Group. Any changes in
these assumptions can significantly affect the useful life
of the licences. For other intangible assets except for
licences, the Directors determines the estimated useful lives
and consequently the related amortisation charges for its
other intangible assets. These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of intangible
assets. The Directors will increase the amortisation charges
when useful lives are less than previously estimated useful
lives, it will write off or write down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives.
Periodic review could result in a change in useful lives and
therefore amortisation expenses in future years.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. ®@THA
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €@ TAEH
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHEIT
Financial assets EREE
Loan and receivables BN EWFIE
(including bank balances ~ (BIERITEHEER K
and cash and pledged Re EE A
bank deposits) RITFHR) 223,091 303,118
Avalilable-for-sale investment a]ft HE IR E - 4,465
223,091 307,583
Financial liabilities =L
Financial liabilities at TR SH A AR B BR

amortised cost et =N} 977,299 841,036
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investment, trade and other
receivables, finance lease receivables, pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders/associates, borrowings and convertible
notes. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Financial risk management
Currency risk

The companies of the Group mainly operated in
their local jurisdiction with most of the transactions
settled in their functional currencies of the operations.
However, at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
majority of bank balances and cash and pledged bank
deposits of the Group are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the respective
group entities which expose the Group to currency
risk. The Group did not have a foreign currency
hedging policy as at the end of the reporting period.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

5.

TRIA#®

(c)

MBRRER(E)
E¥ kR (E)

AR B RE RR U S A A
B2 EEERIIT

Monetary assets

EMEE
2017 2016
—E—+5F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAETT
HK$ BT - 12,555
RMB AR 453 418
United State Dollar (‘US$”) Z=7t([%E7t]) 139 2,383

The Group is mainly exposed to HK$, RMB and USS$.

As the Directors consider that the currency risk
in response to the changes in exchange rate is
insignificant, sensitivity analysis on currency risk is not
presented.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group is exposed
to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-
rate pledged bank deposits (note 29) and fixed-rate
bank borrowings (note 32) (2016: fixed-rate bank
borrowings (note 32)).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group is also exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank balances (note 30), variable-rate amount due to
a non-controlling shareholder (note 18) and variable-
rate bank borrowings (note 32) (2016: variable-rate
pledged bank deposits (note 29), variable-rate bank
balances (note 30), variable-rate amount due to a
non-controlling shareholder (note 18) and variable-rate
bank borrowings (note 32)). It is the Group’s policy to
keep its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as
to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of the RMB Benchmark Interest Rate quoted by the
People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s RMB
denominated borrowings.

The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary actions when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 (2016: 50) basis points increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 (2016: 50) basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2017 would decrease/increase (2016:
decrease/increase) by approximately HK$80,000
(2016: HK$254,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank balances, variable-rate bank borrowings
and variable-rate amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and finance lease receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to the credit risk are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on each individual
receivable requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customers’ past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the counterparties
operate. The Group mitigates its exposure to risk
relating to trade receivables by dealing with selected
government agencies with sound financial standing. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable balance at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—ZF

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the concentration of credit
risk of the Group of the total trade receivables which
is due from the Group’s five largest customers within
the business application and services, data collection
and development and sales of equipment business
segment is 26% (2016: nil) while no trade receivable
is due from the Group’s largest customer as at 31
December 2017 and 2016.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s concentration
of credit risk by geographical locations is mainly in the
PRC, which accounted for 100% (2016: 100%) of the
total trade receivables.

The credit risk for bank balances and pledged bank
deposits are considered minimal as such amounts are
placed in banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants in order to
maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and long term.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the Directors have given careful consideration to
the future liquidity of the Group. While recognising
that the Group had net liabilities of approximately
HK$288,794,000 and a net current liabilities of
approximately HK$73,311,000 at 31 December 2017
and incurred a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$633,492,000 for the
year then ended.

Up to the date of these consolidated financial
statements were authorised for issue, the Directors
are satisfied that the Group would be able to generate
sufficient funds to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due in the foreseeable future, after
taking into consideration the measures stated in note
1.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end of the reporting period.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5, @I R®)
(c) Financial risk management (Continued) () BIRBRERE &)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RENE SRS (&)
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
EITARERRERE
Within Total
1 year or Between Between undiscounted
Carrying on demand 1and2 2and5 cash flow
amount —-ERg years years FHE
i EZXEE 152 2E5E RERELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Thr Thn i Thr Thr
As at 31 December 2017 REF-tF+-A=t-H
Interest-bearing borrowings RS 46,988 44,255 - 4174 48,429
Trade and other payables B A REERTE 332,368 332,368 - - 332,368
Amount duetoanon-controling PR —A3H kR R A
shareholder 69,390 6,761 66,083 - 72,844
Amounts due to associates ERBEATHE 6,168 6,168 - - 6,168
Non-interest bearing Convertble £ 8 #KZ%
. Note ity comoonent - SEHD %5 feew T B0 60580
977,299 489,552 66,083 564,754 1,120,389
As at 31 December 2016 RZF-AFT-A=1-A
Interest-bearing bank borowings 3t 817 S 31250 31,523 423 291 3,287
Trade and other payables A REMEMNE 215,575 215,575 - = 215,575
Amounts due tonon-controling ~ FETIERRERFUE
shareholders 80,800 77,026 4,561 2,040 83,627
Amounts due to associates ENBEATHE 44,13 44,135 - - 44,13
Non-interest bearing Convertiole £ 8 TARER
L Me-Riyamer | -RESS T TS . SO . .}
841,042 368,259 104,984 562,911 1,086,154
Note: 5T -
(@)  The amounts included above for variable interest rate (@ EHRFAFTAEERBEFEIAZ
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are SF - ASPFENARERIRE HIRE
subject to change when variable interest rates differ to TE 2 hETFIRE = RIS E -

those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of
the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The carrying amounts of amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders and borrowings as set out
in notes 18 and 32 respectively were approximate
to their fair values as the discounting effect is
insignificant.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
other current financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values due to
their short-term maturities.

£RTH®
(d) €RITAEZARES
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. € MIH@®)
(e) Offsetting of financial assets and financial le) EELTHMEERESREES
liabilities
The Group entered into set-off arrangements in REBRER-_ZT—+F+=A
respect of its balances of trade and other receivables =+—HBEMES REMERFIE
and amount due to a non-controlling shareholder NN —RBIEERBRRFIEB(ZE
(2016: trade and other payables) as at 31 December —R"FEZREMENFIE)N
2017 of approximately HK$14,721,000 (2016: HEERH14,721,0008 L (ZF — R
HK$7,328,000). F : 7,328,000 70 ) a1 K SH L HE -
Financial instruments subject to offsetting are set out AR 2 2/ T A5 0
as follows: ™
Gross amount
ofrecognised  Net amounts of
financial assets  financial assets
and liabilities (liabilities)
set off in the presentedin  Related amounts
consolidated  the consolidated  not set off in the
Gross amount of statement of statement of consolidated
recognised financial ~ financial position  financial position statement of
assets (iabilities) GAUE S4B financial position
EER MR R 8 HRRESz  CERGEHE
tHEE CEIGREE SREE WRRE 2 Net amount
(B 4% el (RE) 28 HBeE 28
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Tin Tin Tin TEL TEn
As at 31 December 2017 RZB-t&
+=A=t-A
Trade and other receivables EUELL e 134,289 (14,721) 119,568 (119,568) -
Amount due toanon-controling T —%A7EE
shareholder KA (84,11) 14,721 (69,390) 69,390 -
As at 31 December 2016 S
+ZA=1-H
Trade and other receivables BAREMENGE 149,657 (7,329) 142,329 (142.329) =
Trade and other payables A REMENE (222,909) 7,328 (215,575) 215,575 =
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6. REVENUE 6. =
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year from REBRAFEREFBELEEB 2 W2
continuing operations is as follows: DT -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Business application and HUE FE A ELARTS
services 139,397 157,697
Data collection SRR 54,727 73,387
Development and RS E
sales of equipment 920 1,694
195,044 232,778
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. SEEH
The Group’s reportable and operating segments, based BENESSEFERENER(EELS
on information reported to the chairman of the Board, REE)  AEERARERKEEDHBHE
being the chief operating decision-maker, for the purposes RO - REMERE RS ERBAGMES -
of resource allocation, strategic decisions-making and FEAERFTREEMIRBHER - T2
assessment of segment performance focuses on type KRR B TR 2 58 E 5 BB R PEAR R
of goods or services provided. No operating segments B2 HEnEs
identified by the chief operating decision-maker have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group,
Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments are as follows: HEEMs - ARENTmES AT -
(1)  Business application and services; (1) EuErE AR
(2) Data collection; and (2 EURER: &

(3) Development and sales of equipment. Q) REMREEE -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Operating segment regarding the mining and exploration
business was discontinued during the year ended 31
December 2016. The segment information for the year
ended 31 December 2016 reported does not include any
amounts for this discontinued operation, details of which
are described in note 11.

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results from continuing operations by reportable and
operating segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2017

DEE R (2)

HEEBELROREB BB K EDMEREE
“E-RFTZRA=T—HILFELL - &
BT RF+ZA=T+—HIEFEMER
ZAMERT BRI DR IEREER ZEM
SR FEIEERMIEE 1 -

ti

I

N

7 EB U s B SR AR

AREBR B ELE R 2 et MEERT
HENEESWEI D 2 OWTIAT

BE_Z—tF+-A=1+—HLEE

Continuing operations BHELSEEK

Business Development

application and sales of

and services Data equipment
B collection B Total
JE RS R HEER  WMHEKE Bt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TEx TER TER TAT
Revenue from external customers REIMPE P iEs 139,397 54,727 920 195,044
Segment loss S (417,079) (90,228) (12645)  (520,852)
Other income Hepl A 1,938
Finance costs RER A (58,960)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary mE—RRBAR EE (18,913)
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—HBE AR BB (1,629)

Impairment loss of AREERE ZREEE

available-for-sale investment (4,614)
Central administrative cost PRITHRAR (63,843)
Share of result of associates Gak ] AN (1,870)

Loss before taxation

BHAIEE

(668,743)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

N

7. DHER (&)
vk eI E T AC D)

BE-T—~F+-A=+—AILHFE

Continuing operations HEREER
Business Development
application and sales of
and services Data equipment
07 collection % Total
JER SRR HEER  HEEEE G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET TR TET
Revenue from external customers REIMIZ P 157,697 73,387 1,694 232,778
Segment loss DEER (155,165) (242,395) (57,546) (455,106)
Other income HA 4,055
Finance costs BEKAK (52,509)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary HE-HANBARCER (4,718)
Impairment loss of HREEREZAEESR
available-for-sale investment (7,011)
Central administrative cost PRITHRR (118,233)
Equity-settled share-based NEREET RN T RX
payment expenses (2,215)
Share of result of associates PMEBE A RFE 1,618

Loss before taxation

BRAIEE

(634,119
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IR MR

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment loss represents the loss from each segment
without allocation of central administrative cost, directors’
salaries, certain other income, equity-settled share-based
payment expenses, share of result of associates, loss on
disposal of a subsidiary/an associate, loss on deregistration
of a subsidiary, impairment loss of available-for-sale
investment and finance costs. This is the measure reported
to the chairman of the Board, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

There were no inter-segment sales between different
business segments for the year ended 31 December 2017
and 2016.

DEER (&)

7 EB U s B SRAR (F)

RENM S HRRENEIMEAEE 2
SRR AER - D EBEIERD P RIT
BHX EFFH HTEMBEA - AR
SEEI AP N2 - DEBER
A¥E HE-—HWBRAR MEARZ
B S -RNBARZEE  AHHE
BREZREBREBERARNER T &S
ZERE - WHRAEEFSIFE(TREERR
BIERMEZTE - BEDEERKFAE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

7. DEER (#)
DEHEEREE

AEBEERAERARE REES HED

liabilities by reportable and operating segment: ZOMWT ¢
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT Tt
Segment assets DEEE
Business application SR FE A SRS
and services 284,937 435,742
Data collection SIRIEER 271,152 501,620
Development and AR R E
sales of equipment 61,677 64,135
Total segment assets DEEEBER 617,766 1,001,497
Unallocated corporate assets AOBLHEEE 126,629 253,922
Total assets REE 744,395 1,255,419
Segment liabilities PEBEE
Business application HUE FE A ELAR TS
and services 197,156 125,088
Data collection SIRIEER 199,814 68,853
Development and RIS
sales of equipment 19,451 2,235
Total segment liabilities DI B ELREE 416,421 197,076
Unallocated corporate RofebERE
liabilities 616,768 723,809
Total liabilities BWEE 1,033,189 920,885
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than interests in associates, available-for-sale
investment, deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
certain corporate assets, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances and cash as these assets are managed
on a group basis. Assets used jointly by reportable
segments are allocated on the basis of the revenues
earned by individual reportable segments.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than tax payables, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders/associates, deferred tax liabilities,
borrowings, convertible notes and certain corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis. Liabilities for which reportable segments are
jointly liable are allocated in proportion to segment
assets.

AN

HER (&)

THEERARE#®)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2017

DEER (&)
H 5 2 & R
BE—Z—t&5+-A=+—ALEE

Continuing operations HEREER
Business Development
application and sales of
and services Data equipment
i collection %%  Unallocated Total
[ FIERBR S HEER  MREARE FARE Ait
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThEx ThEL ThERL TETL TER
Amounts included in the measure of FTASBERRAH
segment loss or segment assets: EEEZEH:
Additions to property, plant and equipment % - BERRERE 5,008 670 161 274 6,203
Additions to other intangible assets H B EELNE 7,982 1,049 252 23 9,306
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment % BERSEINE 5,928 779 187 2,181 9,075
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hiv B EE B 30,634 4,026 968 55 35,683
Impairment loss of goodwil BEZREER 43,900 220,193 21,714 - 285,807
Impairment loss of other intangible assets HthEREE RERE 76,914 10,108 2,431 - 89,453
Reversal of impairment loss of trade receivables B RN IE R ERE 2 BE (213) - - - (213)
Impairment loss of trade receivables EHRIGEZHERR 417 380 1,382 - 5,933
Reversal of [0ss on uncertainty in respect BARKEFANIENE
of collectability of amounts due from WEERNAETEER
customers of contract works pa: i (2,090) (270) - - (2,360)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 1% + BERREZREESE 1,609 212 51 - 1,872
Write-off of property, plant and equipment W - R R s 47 6 1 - 54
Write-off of other intangiole assets HitmpAE 2 M 822 - - - 822
Net loss on disposal of property, LENE  BERLEL
plant and equipment BiEFE 50 20 - 30 100
Amounts regularly provided to EHOTEEERRERE
the chief operating decision-maker BFRFASBERR
but not included in the measure of AHEETEZER:
segment loss or segment assets:
Interests in associates i AN 5 - - - 3,962 3,962
Share of result of associates DEBE R EE - - - 1,870 1,870
Bank interest income RITFIBMA (265) (35) ®) (151) (459)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale investment EMERE ZRERE - - - 4,614 4,614
Finance costs HARR - - - 58,960 58,960
Income tax expense (credit) FERRS (%) 246 32 (11,912) (11,626)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. IHER®
Other segment information (Continued) HibhpIER (#&)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE-_T—R"F+A=1T—HILHFE
Continuing operations HEREER
Business Development
application and sales of
and services Data equipment
B collection BN Unallocated Total
FERERS HEER TEsEHE AR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAL T T T
Amounts included in the measure of AL DEERANEEH B
segment loss or segment assets:
Additions to property, plant and equipment % - BERSHERE 8,520 6,356 1,235 30 16,641
Additions to other intangible assets Hit@MEAEZRE 15,321 7,649 1,976 = 24,946
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment % BERSEINE 7,654 3741 255 870 12,520
Amortisation of other intangible assets EthEEE 2B 34,743 18,381 244 = 53,368
Impairment loss of goodwil AEZREBR = 151,483 31,921 = 183,404
Impairment loss of other intangible assets At B AR 2 RERR 183,514 72,112 15,167 = 220,793
Reversal of impairment loss of trade receivables BARNFEZRERRE &R (233) (1,033 (4,791) = (6,057)
Impairment loss of trade receivables BoRMFE 2 RERR 253 342 7,401 = 7,99
Reversal of loss on uncertainty in respect BERNERANIENE
of collectability of amounts due from KEERANT T EEE AR
customers of contract works (12,966) (8,513 — — (16,479)
Write-back of trade payables BIRATE AR = (1,115) = = (1,115)
Write-off of trade receivables BARUGIE 2 M = 2,809 = = 2,809
Write-off of other intangiole assets Hitt@EAE 2 M — = 4,880 = 4,880
Write-off of property, plant and equipment 0% BEREE 10,858 5,048 83 = 15,989
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, LENE  BERLEL
plant and equipment (Wa) BiE 94) 159 — — 65
Allowance for inventories FERE = = 365 = 365
Amounts regularly provided to ERRIEEERRARE
the chief operating decision-maker BRFAIBERRI T
but not included in the measure of BEHEZSE.
segment loss or segment assets:
Interests in associates NNy = = — 11,697 11,697
Share of result of associates AMEBEAREE = = = (1,618) (1,618)
Bank interest income RITFIBHA (324) (56) (59) (215) (654)
Write-back of other payables HifER IR B = = = (3,051) (3,051)
Impairment loss of other receivables iR 2 REBR = = = 2,897 2,897
Impairment loss of available-for-sale investment AENERE ZHERR = = = 7,011 7,011
Write-off of other receivables Bt MR 2 s - = = 3,746 3,746
Loss on deregistration of a subsidlary FE-BRBAR EE = = = 4,718 4718
Finance costs BERK — = = 52,509 52,509
Income tax expense (credit) FiEhAx (E8) 2,563 1,058 78 (39,669) (35,964)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. IHER®

Geographical information HEER

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC. REBEEFANRE o

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing AR ASERBIFELEEB IR 2
operations from external customers is presented based W BRITIEREFPALEMEY - B
on the location of the customers. Information about the SEERBEEZ B NEREE 2 IR
Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the B (pimBms) mEy -

geographical location of the assets or location of operations
in case of goodwill.

Revenue from external customers RENBEF KRR
2017 2016
—E—tF —EREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
PRC h 194,756 232,778
Hong Kong e 288 -
195,044 232,778
Non-current assets FREBEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —F—N
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
PRC ‘:F' 286,513 687,642
Hong Kong B 608 1,150
287,121 688,792
Non-current assets excluded those relating to discontinued FERBEETBRFHDRILEEEBERLY

operation, financial instruments and deferred tax assets. BE  SRITARMEEFHIEEE
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding year
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are

DEER (&)

FREFER

REEEFREB10%BBANTF  RF
HEKAIT

as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —TRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TETT
Customer A P A 27,545 N/A N3 FH 2
Customer B! ®F B! 20,370 N/ATiE F 2

L Revenue from business application and services segment.

2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, none of the
Group’s individual customer contributed more than 10% to
the total revenue of the Group.

! BB IE R KRS #BUA -
2 FEREM AL S R AN SR B B BRI 10% 48 A ©
REBE-T—ARF+_-_A=1T—"HILFE

N AEBEWES —FPHARESR Y B
BEIBBE10% °



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3§ 193

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE_=—F—+F+=-H=+—HIFFZE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hfr A

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Continuing operations FEREER
Bank interest income HRITHLEUA 459 654
Exchange gain, net b 3 Y F 58 102 —
Subletting rental income iAKW A - 300
Government grants (note (i) BT A B (BT &E G)) 2,036 5,720

Write-back of trade B 5 KEAM
and other payables FETZRIE 2 #E[E - 4,166
Refund of consultancy fee ROFAE 1,000 —
Sundry income FETEHA 377 50
3,974 10,890
Note: Lz

() Included in the amount of government grants recognised () BEZZ—tF+-A=+—HILFER
during the year ended 31 December 2017, approximately RZBRHYEERAEES THEEE
RMB1,765,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,036,000) MIRTTEERMENR A (AEEEEER
(2016: RMB4,895,000 (equivalent to approximately B EEE) R 2O AR1,765,000 7T
HK$5,720,000)) were granted in respect of certain research (HEE 42,036,000/ 7TT) (B — /N4 -
projects and subsidy for finance costs from bank borrowings, A R ¥ 4,895,000 7 (18 & 1 495,720,000
which was immediately recognised as other income for the year Bon)) - WERFERBNRFERAEMBA

as the Group has fulfilled the relevant granting criteria.
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9. OTHER GAIN AND LOSSES, NET 9. HitmRESEFHE
2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHAT
Continuing operations FESEER
Reversal of loss on uncertainty ~ BRAEWEF G4 T2
in respect of collectability of IR EE R A
amounts due from customers THEEM BB 2B
of contract works (note 26) (FfE26) (2,360) (16,479)
Loss on uncertainty in respect of ARAEWEF & # T2
collectability of amounts FIBYEE A
due from customers of THEE BB
contract works (note 26) (Fff5E26) 33,249 13,771
Reversal of impairment loss of & 3 EUWFIA 2 /(A
trade receivables (note 27) B8 2 B (fizE27) (213) (6,057)
Impairment loss of trade B 5 R E b EYKIE
and other receivables IR IEEE 5,933 10,893
Impairment loss of AHHEREZ
available-for-sale investment REEE 4,614 7,011
Impairment loss of property, IE =54
plant and equipment R OREBE 1,872 =
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary & —REHi B A7 2 EE
(note 39(a)) (Fff5E 39(a)) 18,913 —
Loss on disposal of an associate 11 & — & A7) 2 E518 1,629 —
Write-off of property, Yz - WE K
plant and equipment A 2 Wi 54 15,989
Write-off of other intangible H A& B 2 MisH
assets 822 4,880
Write-off of trade and B 5 RE MR
other receivables FRIE 2 WisH - 6,555
Loss on deregistration of T —ENE AR
a subsidiary (note 48) 2 518 (I3t 48) - 4,718
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FINANCE COSTS 10. REE RN A
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Continuing operations BESEER
Interest on: ATEEZHE -
— Bank loans — IRITER 2,297 1,939
— Unsecured loan — RE—HRIFERK
from a non-controlling R EE B E R
shareholder 3,560 2,754
5,857 4,693
Imputed interest on BRI RER | 2
extended Convertible HE RS (FFE33(a))
Note | (note 33(a)) 44,452 39,037
Imputed interest on AMERERIZEHE
Convertible Note I F8 (Bf7E 33(0))
(note 33(0)) 8,651 7,879
53,103 47,816
Total FaES 58,960 52,509
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION M. ERLERESEK
The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement AREBHE-ZBYE=HWEF]) Iz
with an independent third party (the “Acquirer”) to dispose —IHEEH®E  HERSASEMAERER
of the Fast Billion Group, which carried out all of the Group’s DREBHRESE - HEREKESES
mining and exploration business. The disposal of the Fast BAREE 2 EthEBRHREN - HER
Bilion Group was effected in order to generate cash flows BEER-T—RFNLAZTHTK ' RZ
for the expansion of the Group’s other businesses. The AIRERE 2 EHEEBREWIET -

disposal of the Fast Billion Group was completed on 20
September 2016, on which date the control of the Fast
Billion Group passed to the Acquirer.

The profit for the period from the discontinued operation is HIRNERIEEEEB 2w NATAT -
analysed as follows:

2016
—E-RF
HK$’000
TET
Profit of mining and exploration ~ EAREREE & EhiR 75
business for the period (note a)  Z % (FfzEa) 3,390
Gain on disposal of mining HH S R I B PR 57
and exploration business ZWas (BFEE39(c))
(note 39(c)) 74,472
77,862
Note a: Bfizta :
The results of the mining and exploration business for the period from KEKXMEEFR=_ZE—"F—A—B&E=%
1 January 2016 to 20 September 2016, which had been included in —NFNAAZ+tEHEzEE (B AGREGER

the consolidated statement of profit or loss, were as follows: F)WT
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) M. ERLEREER =)
Period ended
20 September
2016
HE-Z—RF
HAA=+H
1EHAR
HK$’'000
T
Revenue Uz =
Other income E A A 745
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHE AR Z kS
(note 39(b) (Bi5:39(b)) 5,756
Administrative and other operating TR R E ML R
expenses (3,111)
Profit before taxation B A5 Al ) 3,390
Income tax expense (note) s EiA Y (M) —
Profit for the period BP9 A 3,390
Profit for the period from BRIKEEK A
discontinued operation BAEETHEE :
include the following:
Impairment loss of exploration R MFHE B E 2 RERE
and evaluation assets (175)
Exchange gain, net bE 5 Wes 5 58 5
Note: BdaE
Subsidiaries incorporated in Mongolia were subject to Mongolian REHBIFEMA S 2 B A B EMNE HBIFTE
income tax which was calculated at the rate of 10% on the first 3 billion o BERAMBEINERS MEBTUAT -
MNT of taxable income and 25% on the amount in excess thereof. No REE10% @ EFRFTSEIESRH BT
provision for income tax has been made as there were no assessable A ERERSD - BiER25% - HE—ZT—/RFNA
profits during the period ended 20 September 2016. ZT R - AR EEA R AT - B

EHMEHATREE -
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

Net cash inflow (outflow) arising from discontinued operation is as
follows:

M. CRIEREEK 2

ERIEEEXEBREEZRSRACORL)
JREANT

Period ended

20 September 2016
HE-_ZT—F
AA=+H
1EEAR

HK$’000

FHET

Operating activities KRS
Investing activities REEE
Financing activities BEEE

(2,180)
7,128

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Fast Billion Group
at the date of disposal are disclosed in note 39(c).

REEEZEERAGENHEARZREAERSE
RBIEE39(c) °
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Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging:

. BRBLRIE 1B

BRDLATER TO 8 H0RR T IR IRRSH

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Continuing operations BEREEK
Staff costs (including directors’ 8 LA (B3
and chief executive’s BER
emoluments) E=TBAEME)
— salaries and allowances — ¥re oERL 72,604 86,659
— retirement benefits scheme  — RIKEFIET 24T
contributions (REHETED
(defined contribution plans) 11,352 17,180
— equity-settled share-based — DAREREEI A
payment expenses BNz - 2,215
83,956 106,054
Amount of inventories wRAERX 2 FENIE
recognised as an expense 644 2,399
Amortisation of other intangible  E-fth /& 7 ~ 8 5
assets 35,683 53,368
Depreciation of property, Yz WE K
plant and equipment RE2ITE 9,075 12,520
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETN S 1,380 1,320
Allowance for inventories FERE - 365
Loss arising from change in P — Pt 8 A R IR
shareholding in an associate HHELEEHE - 97
Exchange losses, net b B EFEE - 9,895
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWZE - M= K&&E
plant and equipment < EEFERE 100 65
Minimum lease payments under BRI A it MIEF K
operating leases in respect HEEmpEEs
of rented land and buildings EREETZ
and other intangible assets RERENK 13,308 17,092
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13. INCOME TAX CREDIT 13. FIEHIER
2017 2016
—E—+E —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHAT
Continuing operations FESEER
Current tax for the year FRRNERTIE
— PRC Enterprise income tax ~ — FREIMEFTER
(“EIT”) ([ERBH]) 286 3,699
Deferred tax for the year FNIELETRIE
— Current year (note 35) — ANFE (M17E35) (11,912) (39,663)
Income tax credit St e (11,626) (35,964)

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
Bermuda and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group
is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands,
Bermuda and the BVI as there is no income tax imposed in
such jurisdiction.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for both years. No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as there were
no assessable profits generated for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate applicable to the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Accordingly, provision for
PRC EIT for the PRC subsidiaries is calculated at 25% on
the estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016, except for the following:

REFEHS AREMABRELES ([H
BELEE|)WZEZNER  ARXFEER
WERTEHAAEH - MAKEHABMET
MRASES  ARENABREEHEZME
i o

M EFEEEMNSH L b ERTOG MR
16.6% MR XFTESFH - ARBE—_T—t
FRIB-RF+A=+—HIFELE
ELRRTOEN - M ERBBNEHIEL
B o

REFBECEAEHE(EEREHED
REERREHEERA - FEREBRRZ
BERAREE —TTN\F-A—BER25% °
At - PEMNBARRBEEZE —T—tF R
E—RETA=+—RHIFEZEER
B MR Z P EIBRATS T B E R 25%
HE AT ERERS
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13. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

A subsidiary of the Company, It KX ~NEE ERMAR A
Al (Beijing Peace Map Information and Technology Limited*)
(“Beijing Peace Map Information”) was confirmed to be
recognised as a software enterprise and therefore is entitled
to a tax concession of full exemption from EIT from 2012
to 20183 and followed by half reduction in EIT rate of 12.5%
from 2014 to 2016. During the year ended 31 December
2016, Beijing Peace Map Information was recognised as
an approved high technology enterprise and therefore is
entitled to a tax concession period of reduction in EIT rate
of 15% from 2017 to 2019.

A subsidiary of the Company, Beijing Peace Map was
recognised as an approved high technology enterprise and
therefore is entitled to a tax concession period of reduction
in EIT rate of 15% from 2015 to 2017.

A former subsidiary of the Company, 1t FESE BRI
BRR/A7] (Beijing Haicheng Huatu Technology Limited*)
(“Haicheng Huatu”) was recognised as a software
enterprise in 2013 and therefore is entitled to a tax
concession of full exemption from EIT for two years from
2013 to 2014 and followed by half reduction in EIT rate
of 12.5% from 2015 to 2017. However, Haicheng Huatu
has been disposed of during the year ended 31 December
2017.

A former subsidiary of the Company, 1t R MER A
R E{EAR] (Beiing Shenghezhuang Technology Limited®)
(“Shenghezhuang”) was recognised as an approved high
technology enterprise in 2014 and therefore is entitled to
a tax concession period of reduction in EIT rate of 15%
from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. However,
Shenghezhuang had been deregistered in March 2016
and no tax concession was granted during the year ended
31 December 2016.

* For identification purpose only

13. FISRiIER (2

ERXRTEEEZMBERAR(TERXT
BER))  RARE—EMBAR - EHER
PR RE  MER - —F2-F
—=FZELEMBHERNRGES &
BR_T-MFE_T-RFEZARFLEE
ISR E125% < HBFER - BE-T
—ANFTZA=t—HLFE - ERXTE
EEEMRARASHRMERE MR _-F
—tFE_T-NFEZARBEEMBHRBK
E15% NTHERY

ERRTE - RARF—FHMBAR - B
RS BMEZE MUK —_T—AFE—
E—tEEERELEMEHHE15%H
MISEEE o

EFEEERERARAR (NEEER]) -
REART—HAMBRAR R-T—=
ERRSRAEMHEE MR —_F—=F
E_T-NEZALEMERE2LNHGE
L HER - A2 tFZHR
FEEEMBIHRERA25% 2 RBEER - A
- BERERER#BE_T—tF+_A
=t+—HLFEHE -

g

ot H

ERBMERZAREEAR] ([BHNE]) -
RARAR—FERIMBAR RZT—UFE
ERARMBINEE - SR T —F—
A—BE-_ZT—RF+-A=+t—"HEAR
EEEMERHE1%NHBEEL - A
o BMEER - T NF=_AHEE - ™
BE_Z-—RE+_A=1T—HILFEIE
ERTRGES -
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13. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or EEHRAT
loss as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Continuing operations =T CdF 30
Loss before taxation BREFATE R (668,743) (634,119)
Notional tax on profit calculated % #1878 =) A #E & 5
at the rates applicable to profits & %% R 51 & 895% 7
in the jurisdiction concerned HERU (142,457) (142,890)
Tax effect on share of (loss) profit G HE A &) (B2 ) %7
of associates IR E (467) 405
Tax effect on non-taxable income HZEREAUNA 2 T TH 52 (447) (6,676)
Tax effect on non-deductible PRIRFAZ 2 HIE 2
expenses 107,865 96,111
Tax effect on tax losses RIERTIBEIEZ
not recognised BT E 23,880 17,086
Income tax credit FrigHiE e (11,626) (35,964)
14. DIVIDEND 14. IRE

Income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss

13. FTEHER &)
AEE 7 FERE S R A 1825 % 2 BFAT

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended
31 December 2017, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period (2016: nil).

BHE_T—tF+-_A=t—HIEFEAM

EIRN S RFRM RS, -

EEFEIK N EARE (ZF

B ¥HEHRE - I

—RE B .
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a) From continuing and discontinued

operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based

on the following data:

. BIRIEE

a) REFHECERCRIEEEXREK

RRBEB ANRESRERLESE

BIER NIRRT

o <

BB
Loss
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Loss for the purpose of DGR E AR KB E E
basic and diluted loss BitE 2 B8
per share
— loss for the year — RRRIHAE A
attributable to FEIEFREE
owners of the
Company (633,492) (509,573)
Number of shares ROEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
’000 ‘000
T T
Weighted average number — FhERRE A K #EEE B
of ordinary shares for the FTE 2 R
purpose of basic and INFEF 580
8,156,781 8,156,781

diluted loss per share
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15. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 15. SREE (2
b) From continuing operations b) REFELEEK
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share RAEHER AEESRER RS EE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based BIERTIISEESDL ¢

on the following data:

Loss BB
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Loss for the year RAEEE AN
attributable to owners FAEBE
of the Company (633,492) (609,573)
Less: profit for the B ANAR A ARG
year attributable to FARBERIEE
owners of the Company ES vl
from discontinued
operation - (77,849)
Loss for the purpose MEREARREEEE
of basic and diluted STERERELE
loss per share from Yt
continuing operations (633,492) (687,422)
The denominators used are the same as those FTEL 2 B i B AR E AR s E 18

detailed above for basic and diluted loss per share. St EER o



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3§

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE_=—F—+F+=-H=+—HIFFZE

15. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

c) From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the
discontinued operation attributable to the owners of
the Company is HK0.95 cents per share for the year
ended 31 December 2016, based on the profit for the
year ended 31 December 2016 from the discontinued
operation of approximately HK$77,849,000 and the
denominators detailed above for both basic and
diluted earnings per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per
share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 did not assume the
exercise of the Company’s share options as the exercise
prices of the share options were higher than the average
market price for shares. The computation of diluted loss per
share for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 did
not assume the conversion of the Company’s outstanding
convertible notes as the conversion price of the convertible
notes would result in a decrease in loss per share.

15. SREE (2

) RECKRLLEEXRE

BEZZT—AR"FT-H=T—HLHF
EARNBHEARGERIELEER
ZEREAREERN AFR0.95F
i WhERESE-Z—X<F+=A
S+ —BLEFERBORIEECEER
23 F #977,849,00078 7T K b it A%
EAREBERANND o

BE_Z—+FE-_T—FRF+-_A=1+—
BILEEE SRBESEBSENERELES
18 -

EEREITEERRO FImES  WEE
R+ EFRIF-ARF+ZA=1+—H1E
FESREEHEBZTETEBRARRZ
BT - AIRREERN LIREE
HEREBRL  MBEZT—tFR=F
—NEFE+-_AZ+—BLFESKREEEE
ZETEWEBRADE 2 MARITE AT BRARE
BRI o
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16. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

For the year ended 31 December 2017

1&§$~%Eﬁﬁkéﬁﬁézm

a) EEM=

BE-S—tF+-A=+—HL#F
E
Emoluments paid or receivable

in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

MERESREZBARBCAIRUME (BRREAALANHMELTRE)

Equity-settled
Retirement  share-based
benefits payment
scheme expenses
Salariesand  contributions DERE
Fees allowances BIRER LRDY G Total
we FeREH Bl X ZH% fam
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx Tix TR THr TR
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Guan Hongliang BEEE 120 991 131 - 1,242
Mr. Wang Zheng FEEE - 1,495 150 - 1,645
Mr. Li Bin (note | e (i) 81 - - - 81
Ms. Mu Yan (note | Bt (aEi) 81 - - - 81
Mr. Zhu Dong (note i) RESEHE (M) 90 695 55 - 840
Mr. Feng Tao (note i RS (FsEin) - 785 14 - 856
Mr. Li Chengning (note i FRELE (W) 30 - - - 30
Mr. Xu Jian (note i) trfe s A (Riatii) 30 - - - 30
Independent Non-Executive BY¥HTES
Directors
Mr. Zhang Songlin SRAMKSLAE 60 - - - 60
Mr. Zhai Shenggang (note V)~ ZZBRL 4 (Mitztiv) 45 - - - 45
Mr. Kang Hua (note iv) RS (Fistiv) 45 - - - 45
Ms. Li Nan (note v) Tt (ftitv) 15 - - - 15
MrXuleifotey) mERENEY) L R ) T 8
612 3,966 407 - 4,985
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16. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

16. EE - ERTHAERES 2
&)

a) EE=M= @)

BE-T A4 +t-A=t—AL%

3

Emoluments paid or receivable
in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

MERBSRECEARBENIERME (B

AB R

MARASEANBRTAR)

Sy =)
Equity-settled
Retirement share-based
bengfits payment
scheme EXPenses
Sdlariesand  contributions Py
Fees alowances RINER BWHRH Total
ik e Rohh STEIRE X ZFx o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THr THx T
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Guan Hongliang (note vi)  BEVES 204 (Mt wi) 120 993 123 252 1,488
Mr. Zhang Chuanjun (note vi)  REZ 564 (Fitstvii) 30 — — 252 282
Mr. Wang Zheng (note vii) TS (ki) = 1,098 138 252 1,488
Mr. Zhu Dong S 120 734 64 252 1170
Mr. Feng Tao BERA - 898 87 252 1237
Independent Non-Executive BY¥HTES
Directors
Mr. Zhang Songin RIS 60 = = = 60
Mr. Zhai Shenggang BEELE 60 = = = 60
Mr. Kang Hua FREEfE 60 = = = 60
MeHaYatonoten)  RCREEMMEN) LI S PR ..
560 3,723 412 1,260 5,955

Mr. Guan Hongliang resigned as the chief executive
officer with effect from 4 January 2016 and Mr. Wang
Zheng was re-designated as chief executive officer
on the same date. Their emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by them as the
chief executive officer.

MR AECBETRAE B B
“E-RE-AWBARER S THE
ERZBERER/TTHRAEER - £
BEEEcHFMBREEETHRE
B ARTS A F BN o
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16. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Appointed as executive director on 28 April 2017.

(ii) Resigned as executive director on 1 October 2017.

@iy  Appointed as executive director on 1 October 2017.

vy  Resigned as independent non-executive director on

1 October 2017.

(v) Appointed as independent non-executive director on
1 October 2017.

(vi) Resigned as chief executive officer on 4 January 2016.
(vi)  Resigned as executive director and deputy chairman on
1 April 2016.

(vii)  Re-designated as chief executive officer on 4 January
2016.

(ix)  Resigned as independent non-executive director on
21 July 2016.

No director and chief executive waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.

16. EE - REITHAEREEZM
&)

a) EEM= (@)

BIaE -

i) W-ZE—+FWA-+/\BEZTAE
YITESE o

iy RKRZE—tF+A—HETRTE
$ °

iy MN-ZE—EF+A—BEZTAHT
BEo

ivy H=ZT— ’EETL)E] A B¢ S 3E
1

v RZZE—tFTA—BEZEABL
IEHITES ©

V) RZE—R"F—AEBABEETHRE
ﬁo

Vi) RZZE—ANFHA—BEIRTES
REIESE °

(i) RZZT—AF—ANHEHEZETE
TR -

ix) RZZE—AR"FEtAZ+—HEEEL
FHEMITESE -

BMEEZRERTRABRERRAE
BMEHE_Z—+HFR_ZT—F
+—A=+—HLFEZEMABE -
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16. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 16. E5 - EETBRAEREE 2B

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) cAC )

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) AEZESFHFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in rEEREZERFATH =R (=ZF
the Group, three (2016: three) were Directors and the —NF =R RESERARRIRSIT
chief executive of the Company whose emoluments BAE  BE 2SR L3 (@) %
are included in the disclosures in note (a) above. BoEBNTHRTME(ZE—FRF W
The emoluments of the remaining two (2016: two) BIANTZEAT ¢

individuals were as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Salaries and allowances e KoERh 1,830 1,654
Retirement benefits RRBAIFT IR
scheme contributions 145 142
Equity-settled share-based LA zE 45 & 30 LA (D
paymentexpenses XMZBX ~. J. 255
1,975 2,051
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate HE-Z—+tF+-A=+—H1tF
emoluments of the above two (2016: two) highest B EilMmEa(ZTE—RF: ME) K
paid non-directors individuals fell within the following REHHFEFATIMEBEEN T T3
bands: #E -
Number of individuals
A
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 77T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — 1,000,001 &L=
HK$1,500,000 1,500,000 7T 1 1
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and RBE_Z—+tFE_F—RE+=
2016, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the A=1T—RILFE ZAEEVERE
Directors and chief executive of the Company or any ERARNBREITHRABREMAS
of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement Rag ATINEMME - (ERBE
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation BEMAREESLBEMAREE R

for loss of office. < ZE)SHERBERMAE -



NOTES. TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AU BREME

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T~ BB R A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E2—F—+F+=-H=1—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. W% - BMEKRKE

Furniture, Plant,
fixtures and machinery Mine
Land and equipment Leasehold Motor and tools development
buildings G- improvements vehicles BE assets Total
THREF ZERHR BENEEE e HBERIA EERREE Aif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THTL THL AT TR TR THL
Cost A
At 1 January 2016 RZF—"5-A-A 18,485 14,004 20,175 4441 32,198 24,742 121,645
Addtions HE 453 2,058 6,326 1,242 6,562 - 16,641
Wiite-of i = = (24560) = = - (04560)
Disposals e = (654) - (1.945) 68) - (2,567)
Disposals through disposal of ERLEREATM
subsidiaries (notes 390 and (o) HE (K 390) (@) (10,637) (1,041) (1,729) - (5.907) (24.049) (43,563)
. Echangereaigment L35 R 6o .. (128,............ B8 B9 8. ... 0759..
At31 December 2016 RZE-AFTZA=1-A
and 1 January 2017 k=F-t5-A-H 4329 13,241 6,945 3419 29,909 - 57,843
Addtions HE - 410 435 215 5,083 - 6,203
Wrte-of L = (7560 - - - - (7560
Disposals & = (219) - (1) = = (333)
Disposals through disposal FRLE-ENELATM
of asubsidlary (note 39) & (FE39) = (273 = = = = (273
. Dchageredigent BREE S | AR L S L R 2T T 438
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+ZA=1-A 4,656 13,221 7,884 3,842 37,459 - 67,062
Accumulated depreciation ZERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2016 RZ5—7E-A-H 14,521 4,465 8413 887 10,035 24,742 63,069
Charge for the year ERZL 8 3063 5217 1Al 3440 - 12,50
Elminated on write-off el = = 8,571) = = = 8571)
Eliminated on disposals HERHE = (502) = @7 (65) = (1,539)
Elminated on disposals FRLENBAAM
through disposal of LR (300 k()
subsidiaries (notes 39(b) and (c)) (10,637) (1,041) (1,729 - (5,907) (24,249) (43,563)
. Echangerealgnment ERBE BO8............ (9. (N 111/ 0234............ ... 6629)..
At 31 December 2016 RZB-"ETZA=T-H
and 1 January 2017 R=E-tF-f-H 215 5,226 2,998 522 6,269 - 15,290
Charge for the year FRZ 48 2626 1,195 661 4175 - 9,075
Impairment loss recognised FNERAEEE
during the year = = = = 1,872 = 1,872
Elminated on wite-off MR = (702) - = = = (702)
Fiminated on disposals L ERH S - (145) - 72) - = 217)
Eiminated on disposals EELE—RNBADMLER
through disposal of 3 (H39(a)
a subsidiary (note 39(a)) - (225) - - - - (225)
. Bcngeredigent BRAE o T B B 0 T e T, 1430
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tE+ZB=+-H 730 7,137 4,446 1,174 13,036 - 26,523
Carrying values EE
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+ZA=1-A 3,926 6,084 3,438 2,668 24,423 - 40,539
At 31 December 2016 RZE—E+ZA=1+-R 4,054 8,015 3947 2897 23,640 — 42,553
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

No depreciation for mine development assets was provided
for as the production of the coal mine site has not yet
commenced up to the date of disposal.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except
for mine development assets, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Land 2%

Buildings 10%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment  10%-33"/5%

Leasehold improvements 30% or over lease term
if shorter

Motor vehicles 10%-20%

Plant, machinery and tools 10%-33"/3%

During the year, the Directors conducted a review of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment and determined that
a number of those assets were impaired, due to technical
obsolescence based on a valuation performed by Roma
Appraisals Limited (“Roma Appraisals”), an independent
valuer not connected to the Group. Accordingly, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$1,872,000 has been
recognised in respect of plant, machinery and tools, which
are used in the business application and services and data
collection segments. The estimates of recoverable amount
were based on the assets’ fair value less cost of disposal,
using the market approach or where no second hand prices
are available, the depreciated replacement cost approach.
The market approach requires adjustments to the second
hand prices regarding the differences in age, condition
and utility between the assets under appraisal and the
comparable, and the estimation of costs of installation and
dismantling. The depreciated replacement cost approach
requires an estimation of the new replacement cost of
the assets from which deductions are then made to allow
for physical deterioration and all forms of obsolescence
and optimisation. The fair value on which the recoverable
amount is based on is categorised as Level 3 fair value
measurements.

17. V% - BMENRRE &)

BHRZARSREELE B HHARE -
B EAESREEERNE °

BREESFRBEEEI - LAlYE - BENMERE
B NERERER NIFERFAERE

+ith 2%

EF 10%

R - KB MR 10%-33 1/3%

THEMEEE 30% sk % A &
(fWE52)

yRE 10%-20%

BiE - SR TR 10%-33 /5%
RAFEENRN  EFHAKEYE - BENE
TR - WREBEESERFEER AR
([ BRI |) (— MR [ RS
B FHEED) BEE B AP B T & A R R Al
RECLRE - Bt - SLBURER KRB K
BBREDHMAMERNBE - #as T -
E R E B R 491,872,000 7T © AT
ENGEDRATSAREEENAAE
MHERAFTE - NI & FERHIER
TMRITEEEXANETH - MIBEART
HEERATLREERESH - AR EAE
F 77 BN R A Ko 223K R AR E R0 b 5t XA
BFER - TEEERNEATEEEDN
MEBEXAN @ MEBRBRENAE AR
ENENEE - JRESBEKENAA

DERB=-RAAETE -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

18.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had not obtained
the land and building ownership certificate for a land
and building with carrying amount of approximately
HK$4,054,000 from the relevant PRC government
authorities. In the opinion of the Directors, the absence
of formal title to this property does not jeopardise their
values to the Group as the Group has paid in full purchase
consideration of this land and building and the probability of
being evicted on the ground of an absence of formal title is
remote. Subsequently, the Group has obtained the land and
building ownership certificate on 28 March 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has pledged land
and buildings with carrying amount of approximately
HK$3,926,000 (2016: HK$4,054,000) to secure a bank
borrowing granted to the Group.

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS/ASSOCIATES

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

17.

18.

M  BMERSKE®)

R-E—RF+-_A=1+—"H AEEL
REBEAPEBABFANEEREBELR
4,054,000 L2 THREFZ THEKERE
FTERR -EERE ARAEBEEEHE
N REFHEERE  RERZYED
FAEBRTESAEEERMEZEEETE
R B R A TE 3 ZE R T 4 SR A Pl B 1 B o
HgN - Z—+F=F-+/\B  K&EEC
RSt R EEMEREE -

R-EBE—+F+_A=+—"H AEEH
A R T {E #93,926,0008 T ( —ZF — /N -
4,054,000 ) 2 BB L RIEF - B
ERTAEEZRITEEZIEM

FET SRR MR B A R

FEAS IR IR IR SRR TE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FB7T
Current liabilities mENEE
— Current accounts (note a) — mENRIA (fiska) 6,761 21,073
— Unsecured loans (note b) — EIEHREK (Mi5EDb) - 37,958
— Unsecured renovation loan — RIS ER
e dnoted) CBIEEC) e, T.....15,601
6,761 74,632
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
— Unsecured loans — S EK (M5EDb
(notes b and c) KHizEc) 62,629 =
— Unsecured renovation loan — EIRRERER
Lnoteo) (IREC) . . 6,168




ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3§

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —ZF—+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

18. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS/ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

(o)  On 3 March 2017, the Group and P4/ Z=EBEAR A
(CATIC Siwei Co., Ltd*) (“CATIC Siwei”), a non—controllmg
shareholder of the Group, have mutually terminated an operating
lease agreement, the rental included in the current account of
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of approximately
RMB10,921,000 (equivalent to HK$13,112,000) for the period
from 16 August 2014 to 29 August 2016 payable by the Group
to CATIC Siwei under the tenancy agreement was converted into
a two-year loan payable on 31 December 2018 by the Group
to CATIC Siwei (“‘Unsecured Loan I”) which carried interest at
1-year RMB Benchmark Interest Rate per annum quoted by the
People’s Bank of China over the outstanding balance of the loan
plus any accrued interest.

As at 31 December 2016, included in unsecured loans in
aggregate of RMB34,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$37,958,000) (“Unsecured Loan II”) represented borrowings
from CATIC Siwei for financing the general working capital of
the Group. As at 31 December 2016, it carried interest at 1-year
RMB Benchmark Interest Rate quoted by the People’s Bank of
China and repayable within one year.

On 3 March 2017, the Group and CATIC Siwei have mutually
agreed to extend the Unsecured Loan Il in aggregate of
RMB?34,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$40,824,000)
to be repayable on 31 December 2018, which carried interest at
1-year RMB Benchmark Interest Rate per annum quoted by the
People’s Bank of China.

On 31 December 2017, the Group and CATIC Siwei have
mutually agreed to extend the repayment of principal of the
Unsecured Loans | and Il to 31 March 2019.

* For identification purpose only

18. EAFFIERRIR & A RIRIR

(&

-

PRI IR R R (48)

A REER - RERARELER -

RIEBE—+tF=ZA=H xEERAEE
SEYERRAR R U e E AR A &) ([ 4
Mz ERBERIE—GHEERSHE -
BE-Z—NFENA+ASBE_Z—XF/\
BZ+NBHM  AEEREAEREE
5T PO 4 i 2 A9 AR < 5T A FE A JE IR R AR ER
FRIBR)ERER 49 A R % 10,921,000 7T (48
E1M13,112,0000870) * BEHRAEAEH
RZFE-N\F+A=+—AENTHE%
Mz —EmF R E R ([EIEFER]) -
AR E R MEF S AP RHARBIT—F
HARBEEFREFULERZ KEELE
& I EER REFE o

73’3:7 /\¢+ ﬂ + =] E?KTE@
B A H AR % 34,000,000 7T (& R4
37,958,000/87T) Hﬁa?&#ﬁﬁlu %E;KQ |
BEMZEZEBE  DAAER—REEES
BE RN T—NFt+= H—Jr—av
SEFIRTBRARRBITASRZ — EH}%/\E
B ELER KT EF B RAR—FREE

RZE ftE:H:El © AN 55 [ B P A i
= KA E R A £ A KB 34,000,000 7T
(& q,@40,824,000/%7c)z,ﬁﬁﬁ#fﬁm
BT N\FF+_A=+—8  FB&%TF
Bl ARIRITZ —FHIAREE L EFFK5T

= o
el

RZZE—+F+_A=+—H " AEEK
E%&ﬁ%é‘—iﬁ%ﬁﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬂﬁllmﬁ
SEEMRERE-_T-NF=ZA=1—
H o
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18. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS/ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) As at 31 December 2016, unsecured renovation loan
represented borrowing from CATIC Siwei for financing the
renovation incurred for the office rented from CATIC Siwei.
On 15 May 2014, the Group entered into an operating lease
agreement with CATIC Siwei as landlord in relation to the
tenancy of a nine-storey building (the “Property”) (the “Tenancy
Agreement”) of which the renovation amount of the Property
(the “Loan”) was fully financed by CATIC Siwei amounted to
RMB19,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$21,769,000)
with the repayment term of five years. The Loan carried interest
at 5-year RMB Benchmark Interest Rate per annum quoted
by the People’s Bank of China over the outstanding balance of
the Loan plus any accrued interest. The Group was required to
repay not less than 20% of the principal amount of the Loan and
interest of the Loan annually. Based on the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreement, RMB13,975,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$15,601,000) shall be repayable within
one year after the end of the reporting period and classified as
current liabilities. And the remaining balance of RMB5,525,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$6,168,000) is classified as non-
current liabilities. Further details are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 15 May 2014.

On 3 March 2017, the Group and CATIC Siwei have mutually
agreed that the unsecured renovation loan of RMB19,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$23,414,000) (2016: equivalent
to approximately HK$21,769,000) was converted into a five-
year loan payable on 26 May 2019 by the Group to CATIC
Siwei (“Unsecured Loan IIlI”) which carried interest at 5-year
RMB Benchmark Interest Rate per annum quoted by the
People’s Bank of China over the outstanding balance of the
Loan plus any accrued interest. Further details are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 5 March 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Unsecured Loan Ill of
approximately HK$14,721,000 (2016: nil) was offset against the
Group’s trade receivables.

18.

FEAIEIZRIR R, I N B R
(%)

FEAS FEIZ IR R SR FRTE (48)

BeE « (&)

€ R-ZZE—RE+-A=+—H EE[RE
EERERENEMZENER - HAEA
M ZENRATETREREES - KB
—TNFERATHE - AEBEEOEMR
=(ERE T ) RBEE—BRAEEF (&
MEDITL—HeEHEna((ZHa
WEl) ZWENEER(ZERD
HOgEMERHE2BES  HSBEEAR
#£ 19,500,000 7T ( 18 & 7 4921,769,000 7%
L) REFREE - 2FEIRERER
EHRIRIBETFBRARBITRAFHARE
EEFFERTE - BMNBRERERTFS ©
AEBESFEETERZERAS 2
20% RZERF B - RIEE R IHEH
JEEEFRAH - AR 13,975,0007T (48
R #915,601,000 87T ) ER RS Rk —
FREE UHEARDEE - B THA
K ¥ 5,525,000 7t (18 & 7 476,168,000 7
TL) DR AEREAE - E— LB IER
AARBRA-ZT—WNFRAA+RABZA

=

R-EBE—+F=A=0 AEFEMH
MELARBGEZERREBEERARYE
19,500,000 7T (18 & 7 4923,414,000 % 7T )
(ZZ—7"%F : HER# 21,769,000 7T )
M AREFN-_SE—LERA -+
AEMFIUAEMEN —BRFHER(E
EHRERIN])) - ZEFFETNRFEAR
IRITRF AR EEFFRFEUAETER
EEEH M EEMRETFE - E—2PFF
B #@RARFBPAE-_T—tF=AA
= d/N=

RZB—+F+-A=+—0 st AEK
FE I Z 414,721,000 T ( ZE — /<
F D) BHEEAERZERE SFE -
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AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS/ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

18. FEAIIFIZRMR HE QTR
(%)

FEAS FE =R R SR FRIE (48)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) BosE : (&)
©  (Continued) © (&)
Carrying amount repayable (based on the scheduled repayment FEEEEEE (REBEERBZAETEE
dates set out in the loan agreement): BXHER) -
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
On demand and within TREER
one year —FREE — 15,601
After one year but within —FERBEEMENR
two years 8,693 4,354
After two years but within MEREBEREA
five years — 1,814
8,693 21,769
Amounts due to associates PE A Bk FIE
The amounts due to associates are unsecured, interest-free ERHE AT FIEAEER  RENEARE
and repayable on demand. SKIEAE -
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 9. RER&E N T 2R
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET THETT
Cost of unlisted investment REEE N FIFE LT
in associates W& Z KA 5,360 7,537
Share of post-acquisition MU EER (BE) &2
(losses) profits (1,398) 4,160
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RE&E QT 2= (&)
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had RZE—+tER T —REFE+A=1—
interests in the following associates: B AEERTHEE AR HEEER -
Proportion of
ownership interests or
participating shares
Principal indirectly held by the Group
Countryof place of Registered AEEEERE Proportion of voting
Name of entity Formofentity registration  operation  capital BERERISH power indirectly held Principal activity
ER4R BRI AR TEEENY ftes it BRSEREELH 1T

2017 2016 2017 2016
i i A

Bejing PeacePower  Incomorated ~ PRC PRC RMB9,900,000 NATER  1475% NATER  1475%  Technology and software
Company Limted® ~ 3EMR HE HE ARE9,90000070 (note) (note) (note) (ote) ~ application development
(*Beijing Peace (W) (Bst) (i) (Wt)  RiTREfERRE
Power’)

IRATEERES
BiERAT
(X TEZH
=)

Jiangsu Peace Map Incorporated ~~ PRC PRC RMB20,000,000 32.46% 32.46% 32.46% 3246%  Technology and software
Informetion RayA i G AR 20,000,000 7 applcation development
Technology Limited" FihafERRE
(‘Jiangsu Peace Map’)

LHATRESHA
BRAA (NI TE))

Beijng Bai Mi Incorporated ~~ PRC PRC RMB10,000,000 16.23% 16.23% 16.23% 16.28%  Sale of computer programs
Technology Limiteo® ~~ EfAkz HE HE ARE10,000,0007C and electronic equipment;
(‘Beijing Bmi’) data processing;

FREAHEARAR engaging in aeral photo
([F7RX)) taking

HETERERR
ST BERE
2 &

* For identification purpose only
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Note: The Group was able to exercise significant influence over Beijing
Peace Map Power because it has the power to appoint one out
of five directors of that company under the provisions stated in
the Articles of Association of that company. As at 31 December
2016, the Group indirectly held 14.75% equity interest in Beijing
Peace Power through its 81.15% equity interest in Beijing
Peace Map, which held 18.18% equity interest in Beijing Peace
Power. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
disposed Beijing Peace Power to an independent third party at
an aggregate cash consideration of RMB3,447,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$3,976,000), with a loss on disposal of
RMB1,272,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,629,000).

The Group indirectly held 32.46% and 16.23% equity
interest in Jiangsu Peace Map and Beijing Bmi respectively
through its 81.15% equity interest in Beijing Peace Map,
which held 40% and 20% equity interest in Jiangsu Peace
Map and Beijing Bmi respectively for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

The financial information and carrying amount, in aggregate,
of the Group’s interests in associates that are not individually
material and are accounted for using the equity method is
set out below:

9. REFE R T 2 ()

MitE : AEEEAEIERATE=MESITFEE
AR AAEGEBREZAREHEE
MR EXEEZ AR AL EST
Eqﬂf%oﬁé:;ﬁﬂ‘—\¢+:ﬂz+f

 REBFEBRAIERATES15%
E’JHxﬂWéﬁF‘ﬂﬂ#ﬁibE%Tl SEER
H14.75% BRI AN MRS - db KT ElH
BIERKTEZ=EE B/ 18.18% KR A
B o BE_T—tF+=-_A=1+—8
WEFE AEBEUAERERBARKE
3,447,000 7T ( 1 & 7 #73,976,000%8 7T )
M—EZBUE=FHHEILRKTEZEREE
B HEEEAARY1,272,000 7T (8
A4 1,629,000587T) ©

2Tt FR_F—AFt+A=1+—
HIEFE @ ER KX TED B 1I&HK N8
R AE T E K H 40% F 20% Hy B A REZS - AN
SEFEBIFHILRKTES1.15% K IR A1
=D RIFERFATIHRTERIERAKD
32.46% K 16.23% HIAE At e o
REERB AR T%/\—’\(jﬁkﬁfl%@ﬁ&
i AREREYR) WIS ER RAREER
AT -

2017 2016
—E—tfF ZEAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
The Group’s share of (loss)/profit  ANEE Sk (EE) & (1,870) 1,618
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHAT
Carrying amount of the Group’s $'¥IEA3FEK ey
interest in immaterial associates A AIAERS 2 BREIE 3,962 11,697
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20. GOODWILL 20. HE
HK$’000
FHAT
Cost 3RS
At 1 January 2016 R-—E—x&E—A—A 671,140
Disposals through disposal of subsidiaries (note 39(c)) %48t & MIE A &l & (FizE39(c)) (35,506)
Exchange realignment b 5, S (56,673)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZZE—R"F+=ZA=+—H
N_T—+F—H—H 578,961
Disposals through disposal of a subsidiary (note 39(c)) &t & —RMIE R &M & (M5 39(c)) (48,071)
Exchange realignment BEE 54, 8 B 41,715
At 31 December 2017 R=B—t&H+=A=+—H 572,605
Accumulated impairment ZiEE
At 1 January 2016 R-E—~x&—A—H 35,506
Disposals through disposal of subsidiaries (note 39(c)) & id & EB A Al EE (M 39(c)) (35,506)
Impairment loss recognised during the year FRERREESE 183,404
Exchange realignment b 5, S (8,519)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZZE—R"F+=ZA=+—H
N_T—+F—H—H 174,885
Disposals through disposal of a subsidiary (note 39(a)) #iB & —RME R &M & (M5 39(@)) (28,050)
Impairment loss recognised during the year FARERZREEE 285,807
Exchange realignment bE 54, 8 23,777
At 31 December 2017 R=-ZB—tF+=-HA=+—H 456,419
Carrying values BREE
At 31 December 2017 R=B—t&H+=A=+—H 116,186

At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+-_A=+—H 404,076
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20. GOODWILL (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to three individual CGUs and representing the
three operating segments of the Group.

The Group conducted impairment review on goodwill
attributable to the respective CGUs at the end of the
reporting period by reference to the estimated recoverable
amounts of each CGU. The carrying amounts of remaining
goodwill (net of accumulated impairment losses) as at 31
December 2017 and 2016 allocated to these units are as
follows:

20. & (#)

SUREREME @ HECEIEE=(ERE
ELBM - YRERAKEN=(AZENH

AEBERHERRSBEENSBCELS
e RO EEARREELEVRIEHE
EITRERT - RZTE—LFRZZT—RF
ToA=1+—8  sEEZFEL2RGHE
Z(MRRRERR) 2fREENT :

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
— Business application — BUERFE AR
and services 26,957 71,177
— Data collection — BURER 84,782 306,580
— Development and sales — RIEHREHE
of equipment 4,447 26,319
116,186 404,076

During the year ended 31 December 2017, an impairment
loss of approximately HK$285,807,000 (2016:
HK$183,404,000) was recognised in profit or loss. The
basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs and
their major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

HE-T—+tF+-A=+—HIFERN
B ESIE 4 285,807,000 7T (=T — /<4 -
183,404,000/ 1) E R B2 iR o Lill3]
SELBMzRESERE T ERBRER
L EERGRAT
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20. GOODWILL (continued)

Business application and services, data collection
and development and sales of equipment

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors and Roma
Appraisals, an independent valuer not connected to the
Group, based on the assumptions made and business
review, determine that value in use calculation is considered
as more appropriate and representative method to
determine the recoverable amount in current year due to
the loss-making status of the Group. The Group has been
suffering from losses as a result of high cost of services for
certain projects and operating expenses over 2014 to 2016.
Directors decided to improve the performance of the Group
by way of i) focusing on projects with higher profit margin
and ii) try the best to stringent control of project cost.

The Directors expect to turnaround the Group’s
performance progressively and can only be fully reflected
in a number of years. Therefore, value in use calculation
to determine the recoverable amount is considered as
more appropriate to reflect circumstances for expectation
of turnaround of the Group’s performance progressively.
Hence, there has been a change in valuation technique
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

As such, the recoverable amount of the goodwill attributable
to the three CGUs is approximately HK$116,186,000 and
has been determined based on a value in use calculation
as that calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by Directors covering a 5-year
period, and a discount rate of 14.90%. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 2.60%
growth rate. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations related to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross margin,
such estimation is based on the unit’'s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount.

—tF A=+ —HIFE

20.

BE e

BEEARERE - BEERUARRE
MREHEE

RZZB—tF+_A=+—H  BEMER
REFRBOE  EFRESERFE(—HE
BN BV BRE A B AT (A ED) IREAE
Tﬁu‘l‘ S TE AN E H) P U B & B B ARAR R
BRERKENTTE  RERRNEERE
Tﬁ}iﬁ/ﬁ REER _T-—NFE_T—RF
HME T18 B ARG AR B R & ER M
SXEE c EFRTEBEUATHEBRERE
BRI ) SN SN EYE ;&II)%%K
28 N BUBIESITE B A o

ESEHESTHEAKENKRE - MZ&RR
REEEETERRD R - FIt - EEATI
& BNERBEEFERRASEEE RRE
Bﬁﬁ*?ﬂ%ﬁ‘ili‘%fﬁﬁ’ﬂ e B - RE
—tFT-_A=t—HLFEEHXRE

ﬁ‘—HHH/j&_C’
EHit - = ERESEASBMEGEENAIE

S5 49/2116,186,000/8 7T * JIBBE BB
BfEET  ZERARBESIED

hF I BTEE RBGE F 14.00 % /ETEH
BERETEA - BBSFHNBLREMFH
BEM260%EERETHESE - FHEE
EMNEMAFERREGTRESRA T
(PEEEHERREMNR)GH@ - ZHtE
RZEMNBARREEEEHMSRENTE
B ERERE  EAZEBRENEMNEGE

AR b T S BRI ER B AT KB 42
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20. GOODWILL (continued)

Business application and services, data
collection and development and sales of
equipment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the recoverable amount of the
goodwill of approximately HK$404,076,000 had been
determined based on the fair value less cost of disposal
using market approach. Fair value was determined with
reference to a valuation report prepared by Roma Appraisals
based on the price-to-earnings multiples (“P/E Multiple”)
of comparable companies with similar business nature and
operations as the CGU. The average P/E Multiple of 50 and
marketability discount rate of 21% and control premium of
40% were used. Other key estimation included the cost of
disposal based on estimation by the management of the
Group. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of the respective CGUs to exceed its
recoverable amount. The level in the fair value hierarchy in
arriving the above recoverable amount is considered under
Level 2 with observable inputs for the assets directly or
indirectly.

20. & (#)

HERRERE -  HEERUKRRE
MREHEE (&)

R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—8  BENTk
o] & B8 49 404,076,000 8 7T Ty A TH 45 /A 1%
DAERHEEKAETE - RABENREES
BT RIERE AR (A B RUEBHE
MR EEEBMNKEER) NIMARREH
((TEEEHFEROEEREETE - AT
KAMNFEHMABRGE A0 miEH R
WMER21% - IEHEBERI0% - HivE
EHEREERAEEEREEMFTNEENX
R BERERR  EAZERENEMEE
AR b T e BBEER e EEBMAER
AEERBEAIKESE - B it arikE
CHENARBESRERAE R (ABEERE
SEEEEN B SE ASE) o
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21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21. Hth\BEE

Deferred
Distribution development Customer Imaging
Licences  Contracts  Copyrights costs  Software Tradename relationship data Total
R AHAN §E BERZHA g BESRE  EFBE  yEuE &3t
HKS000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HK$O0OO  HKS000  HKBOO0  HKBOOD  HKSO00  HK$O000
T TATL TATL T TATL TATL T TATL T
Cost i
At1 January 2016 W-F-~F-A-A 170984 %8B 148680 115144 160301 2,10 1703 101,601 756,361
Addions i - = = 2,076 = = = 670 20,946
White-off i - - - - (8,691) - = = (8.691)
Transfer in (out) EN ) - - - (63,779) 63,779 = = = =
cageredigment  EXZE (10m2) . ....@39 . 86 . G6% 2y 039 (10.......B810 149574
At31 December 2016 WZF-AETZA=1-A
and 1 January 2017 RE-t5-A-H 159912 Y52 130,052 606 202618 18,808 159 95,661 722,042
Addions i - = = 0284 2 = = = 9,306
Disposals through disposal & E—EHBAT
of asubsicary (rote 39f) it 5 (£ 39(a) (3204 = (4,185) (1,53) (4,80 = = = (13726)
Wite-of i - - - (22) - = = = (62
Transfer i out] EA(I) - - - (4.39) - = = 4302 =
Bcegeredgment | BAEE OO O SO L1 SO SO W TR S
At31 December 2017  WZE-tE+ZfA=1-A 168,652 7054 145,196 A 212938 20,28 113 107457 TIH09
Accumulated amortisation E i &R HE
and impairment
At 1 January 2016 W=F-7F-f-R 8,080 16,400 46,385 32,760 75,404 6,321 7% 83277 24942
Charge for the year Efg - 3579 17910 - 18559 2,689 Rv2) 10,309 53,368
Eimnatedonwrie-of i HH - - - - (3811) - - - [3811)
Impament loss recognised  FAREZHESIE
during the year 65,985 15,167 47,804 29,153 43675 1,664 75 7200 2079
Echergnet | EXEE L O OO U U OO IO ) OUURROY OO O .1
A3t December 2016 H=F-7ETZAZt-BR
and 1 January 2017 “2-+E-A-R 69,790 BT 106,164 50513 125403 10,567 1124 8768 491576
Charge for he year Efxi - 1,245 7,398 - 17,759 2,180 243 6,858 3,683
Disposals through disposal &R E—FHEAR
of asubsiciary (rote 39f) it (3£ 39(a) (3204 - (4,185) (1,53) (4,80) - = = (13726)
Imparment loss recognised - FAETEBEHE
during the year 30,840 = 26,580 3345 2449 = 3 4963 89,453
Dcageredgment | EXEE b4 2 29 A8 T & B0 6953 . 4169
At31 December 2017  WZE-tE+Zf=1-A 103,828 7054 145,196 65004 173781 13,634 1466 103822 644675
Carrying values REE
At31 December 2017 W=E-tE+-f=1-A 64,824 - - 1,077 30,157 6,504 87 3635 1264%
A3t December 2016 WZE-AETZA=1-A 90,122 1205 30,888 10433 77215 8,241 469 083 230466
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21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Development costs are internally generated. The above
licenses, distribution contracts, copyrights, trade name and
customer relationship were acquired as part of a business
combination in prior years.

The intangible assets, other than licences with indefinite
useful lives and deferred development costs, are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the following periods:

Distribution contracts 8 years
Copyrights 6-8 years
Software 5-10 years
Trade name 10 years
Customer relationship 10 years
Imaging data 3-8 years

No amortisation for deferred development cost was
provided as the developing software is not ready for use.

Copyrights represented a group of registered copyright
of software which related to aerial photo modeling and
processing.

The software mainly represented the graphical and
managing system which can reform the raw data into the
readable outputs, for example: 3D modified graphics and
graphic application software.

Imaging data represented the database of aerial photos
called Digital City, which was established for future sales
of aerial photos and further development of relevant data
collection works.

21.

Hi\B\EEE &)

FREBEKRARAREL - LARR - 246
#) - iiE - mIRERAEPEARVBEFE
BERAHPESHNED -

BEE (BRERAMERFH R NE
HIE 59 3 A ANBR SN ) R B AR IS DA T HiI )
35

DAL 84

hi BE8F
;4 52104
Bl 104F
EPHBR 104
MR EE 3E8F

BT R B RN S R S A - Th R R B
R ARIERE

R — A RMIIF REE MR 2
At A o

X BRI SRS IEEE SR E &
BB RERRS =B KE
A& -

FREEER /BB AR - HET
FEARRHENBE R RAAEBE R ETE
LR o
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21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Licences represented Class-A Certificates of Surveying
and Mapping Qualification and Class-B Certificates of
Surveying and Mapping Qualification issued by the Bureau
of Surveying and Mapping. The licences have legal life of 2
to 3 years but are renewable every 2 to 3 years at minimal
cost. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group would
renew the licences continuously and has the ability to do
SO.

As a result, the licences are considered by the management
of the Group as having an indefinite useful life because it
is expected to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely.
The licences will not be amortised until its useful life
is determined to be finite. Instead it will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that it may be impaired.

As at 31 December 2017, the recoverable amounts of the
licences with indefinite useful life have been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation used
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the Directors covering a five-year period, with discount
rate of 15.90% (2016: ranging from 15.49% to 16.35%)
per annum. The cash flows beyond the five-year period
were extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 2.60%
(2016: 3%). The growth rate was based on the relevant
industry growth rate forecast and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. The
key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation related
to the estimation of cash flows included gross margin and
discount rate. Gross margin represents budgeted gross
margin, which is based on past performance and the
management’s expectation for the market development.
The discount rate used is pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the risks specific to the relevant
industry. As at 31 December 2017, the recoverable amount
of the impaired licences is approximately HK$64,824,000
(2016: HK$90,122,000) in aggregate and the impairment
loss on licences of approximately HK$30,840,000 (2016:
HK$65,985,000) has been recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

21.

H\B\EEE &)

e H P BRBEZAEHIEER REE
ACUEELEES N CECABELEEE) »
BRAEME-FAZHR - BBME=F
ANREKRAEFHHFF  EFRS A%
B SHESHEFEER - B A HEES

e
AB °

At - XEBEERER R RES ERER
- REBHAERERRSIRAFE - 2
R T ey EEHERNETAER -
AMEEFRMELITBRETREHHLET
BRI -

R-E—+F+_-_A=1+—"H BEHER
FRFRZER KB CEIZFEREER
AEEF - FEMANReRERANE
RESHECAFHVREE - FIHAX
B15.90% (=T —RNF : N F15.49% %
16.35%) - AFHLIIMIREREFARE
BRER2.60%(ZF—7/RF :3%)HR -
BHEERDNERBBTEEREBABETS
HBAERATENTHIRAERE - FHE
BFfECFERJVEFAENERITAX
ZEeREMFTEE ENXREEERN
X HRATRAREEBYHMSERRNE
H o FTARITIR R ARAITIRE - REMERETT
¥ARRARCERMENE RZZT—+t
F+ZA=+—H  BREMNERZTK
O & FA T4 564,824,000 7T (= —<
% :90,122,000 L) s REBE_FT—+
FH+ZA=ZT—HILEFE EEIRERR
{EE5 1B #) 4 30,840,000/8 7L (Z T — /N4 ¢
65,985,000 7T ) °
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21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors
further conducted a review of the Group’s other intangible
assets apart from licences as mentioned above and
determined that certain of these assets were impaired
based on the estimated recoverable amounts with reference
to their value-in-use. The value-in-use was determined
based on the estimated future cash flows discounted at
a rate ranging from 15.90% to 17.90% (2016: 12.17%
to 17.49%) per annum. As at 31 December 2017, the
recoverable amount of the other intangible assets apart
from licences is approximately HK$61,610,000 (2016:
HK$115,592,000) in aggregate and the impairment losses
of other intangible assets of approximately HK$58,613,000
have been recognised during the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: HK$154,808,000).

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

21. BB EE &)

REBEE-_Z—+E+-_A=+—"HILEE -
EEE—SHASE EMEREE (L
MRRRRAIN) EITEN  UTHREE TREEE
EREGEATIKESESREFEAEBER
B FREBBAEDBREN TEF15.90% =
17.90% (=T —NF : 1217% £ 17.49%)
FTIREZEHARRREREETE - NZF
—tF+-A=1+—8 ' BREBAINEM
B\ EEZ JREIEEAF#H 461,610,000
BIL(ZF—7F : 115,592,000 7T) ° B
HE_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—HLFE" E
e o EL b B T2 & B R (B B5 18 49 58,613,000
BT (ZZ—7NEF : 154,808,000/ 7T) °

22. AHHERE

2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHAT
Unlisted equity investment in RAELZ3EET

the PRC, at cost RAIZE - KA 12,007 11,476

Less: accumulated B RETREEE
impairment loss (12,007) (7,011)
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

(Continued)

The above unlisted equity investment represents investment
amounted to RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$12,007,000) (2016: RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$11,476,000)) in unlisted equity interest
in a private entity incorporated in the PRC. The investment
is measured at cost less impairment at the end of the
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the Directors are of the
opinion that its fair value cannot be measured reliably.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, in view of the
recurring operating losses of the private entity, the Directors
conducted a review on the available-for-sale investment and
determined with reference to a valuation report prepared
by Avista Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent valuer
not connected to the Group, that its recoverable amount
is less than its carrying amount. As a result, an impairment
loss of approximately HK$4,614,000 (2016: HK$7,011,000)
is recognised.

22. AMtHERE #)

L3k EMRAREIRE — MR E M
B BFLARR 2 FELTIREEE AR
10,000,000 7T ( 18 & B #912,007,000 7 7T )
(ZZF—7"F : AR%10,000,0007T(HE
R#)11,476,000/87C)) 21X & o ZIEER
WEEREKNARERTE - BREEARE
HEt 2 EEAK EFRBEQAABEEER]

SEHHE -

BE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—HIFE &
RALEEREEHCERE  E22RY
EHTEEAERAR (—HEAERYL &
BERB L ATEEN) R [ EREE ] H
HEREEITRNTETHTKESE IR
HEREE - Bt R EEE44,614,000
BT (ZZ—7F 1 7,011,000/87T) °

The movement in the impairment loss of available-for-sale AR HEREREBEHES T ¢
investment is as follow:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
At 1 January n—HA—H 7,011 —
Impairment loss recognised EHERBIEEE 4,614 7,011
Exchange realignment bE R 382 —
At 31 December W+—_A=+—H 12,007 7,011
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23. RIERR R

Cost
At 1 January 2016

Disposals through disposal of subsidiaries (note 39(c)) & &

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2016

Accumulated impairment
At 1 January 2016

Eliminated on disposals through disposal of

subsidiaries (note 39(c))
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2016

HK$’000
T
AR
R-E—R&—H—H 1,431,161
HEME AR mHE (M5E39(c)) (1,402,635)
ME X A= (28,526)
RZE—RF+-_A=+—H =
ZitBE
R-ZE—R"F—A—H 1,431,161
BB EMB AR M SR E
(M5 39(c)) (1,402,635)
M 5 5= (28,526)

Carrying values
At 31 December 2016

ERE{E
RZE—R"F+-_A=+—H =

7
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23. MINING LICENCES (continued)

Mining licences represented the carrying amounts of
four mining rights held by Tugrugnuuriin Energy LLC
(“TNE”) located in Tugrug Valley (“TNE Mine”) within the
administrative unit of Bayan Soum of Tur Aimag in Mongolia
covering area of 1,114 hectares in aggregate.

Pursuant to the Mineral Law of Mongolia which was
adopted in 2006, a mining licence was granted for an initial
period of 30 years and a holder of a mining licence may
apply for an extension of such licence for two successive
periods of 20 years each.

No amortisation for the mining licences was provided
for as the production of the coal mine site had not been
commenced since 2009.

The mining licenses of TNE Mine were subject to
impairment review whenever there are indications that the
mining licences’ carrying amount might not be recoverable.
The mining licences were fully impaired during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had
disposed of these mining licences through the disposal of
the Fast Billion Group (note 39(c)).

23. FRIEEER (&)

BRAR & FRFE Tugrugnuuriin Energy LLC ([ TNE J)
BT B (LA 5 0 B Bayan Soum of Tur Aimag
FTTER B2 Tugrug Valley ([TNE#E |) &
EH A 114 REZ WIARRE 2 BREE -

BRE_ZTRNFRAZRERBESL » IR
H 2 BRUE R IR B R A B0 F - BRIR MR IR+
BAFEERBFERMIR - BR20% -

R R ES B — T TN F AR E RILE -
L 0 488 A BR AR AR PR 4 L B 5 o

TNERS 2 SRIBHR BB A B DR BB R IR B hE AR
2 BRTEE AT RE AU Bl BRI TRUE R T © B
E-T-NE+_A=Z+—HILEFE ' KB
[RRREREURE -

BE-TAET-AST-BLEE &
S5 2 5 R 1 SR BT 0 5 U AR
HGELOE



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3§ 229

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE_=—F—+F+=-H=+—HIFFZE

24. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 24, R NFEERE

Licences Others Total
MR Hith et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FHAT
Cost 2
At 1 January 2016 H-E—xE—A—H 4,775 17,609 22,384
Additions NE — 175 175
Disposals through disposal EBHENBRARMEE
of subsidiaries (note 39(c)) (FfH5E39(c)) (4,681) (17,434) (22,115)
Exchange realignment bE R (94) (350) (444)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+ZH=+—H — — —
Accumulated impairment Z5HEE
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—RF—H—H 4,775 17,609 22,384
Impairment loss recognised FREERZBEEE
during the year — 175 175
Eliminated on disposals through i@ 5 &K B A 7l
disposal of subsidiaries &R E 8 (IR 39(c))
(note 39(c)) (4,681) (17,434) (22,115)
Exchange realignment PE 5 R (94) (350) (444)

At 31 December 2016

Carrying values
At 31 December 2016

RZE—RF+-_A=+—8H

Licences represented the cost of obtaining or acquiring

exploration licences to certain area in Mongolia with gold,

ERIERSIUBEBRLEEAES MK
AR 2 A TR B IRAR IR 2 AR R EoAth

TEEEME MMRYERAS - B - 21
FABTREAZRA BERERTEE
HZRRA - BIERHE AT R SRS T
EEEZRA - URITERDRED 2 EE
BT -

copper and coal deposit and others mainly comprise
geological and geophysical costs, costs incurred for drilling,
trenching and excavation works, costs incurred for sampling
and laboratory works, costs incurred for evaluation such
as environment assessment and feasibility study, as well
as depreciation and labour costs directly attributable to the
exploration activities.
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24. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSET

(Continued)

The exploration licences comprise of the following:

Three exploration licences in respect of a coal mine located
in DundGobi, Mongolia, covering an area of approximately
14,087 hectares in aggregate. During the year ended
31 December 2016, impairment loss of approximately
HK$175,000 had been provided as the exploration and
evaluation activities had not yet led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of minerals and there had
been no further plan for substantive expenditure on further
exploration and evaluation of mineral resources in the area.

Pursuant to the Mineral Law of Mongolia which was
adopted in 2006, exploration licence was granted for an
initial period of three years and holder of an exploration
licence might apply for an extension of such licence for two
successive periods of three years each.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had
disposed of these exploration licences through the disposal
of the Fast Billion Group (note 39(c)).

24, NIRRT HEE &)

BREREETIISIA

=I8% MRS 5 B DundGobi & 7B & 1a
H#914,087 AE 2 EE 2 BIRER - BLE
—E-RE+-_A=t—BIEE" LA
175,000 BT 2 BEEBE T IREE - =F
BRI EB MR IR A GEMEAIITT
HERRE - BrARBE—TEEIFNZM
EE—THERRTEREEREEAEFAT
HETTHRE -

BRER_ZTZRNFRAEHBEBEE - FI
R RERYIZ RI=F - BiREER
BATEERBEHNAR - GR=F -

RE-T—AFT-AS+—HILER &
S E D F R S R ERE T & SRR
R (Ff3E 39(c) °

25. INVENTORIES 25. &
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHAT
Raw materials and supplies R B R S FE fh 685 637
Finished goods an 216 249
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26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS OF 26. B (H) BEFEHNIREIE

CONTRACT WORKS

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHT

Costs incurred to date plus HEBRIMEA ZKA
recognised profits N2 R E 474,133 521,374
Less: Progress bilings to date  J&k - £ B RIM) LIZEE & EHIE (259,271) (312,179
214,862 209,195
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T

Analysed for reporting purpose as: 7t B ¥} B 89947 -

Amounts due from IR P& ATIZHIE
customers of contract works 217,677 221,097

Amounts due to ENREFAEHIENRE
customers of contract works (2,815) (11,902)
214,862 209,195

REEEMNTE BETAHNIREEFM
REXPRRELRBESEEKLH - Bt -
EAEHNI R REBERE 2 ATEETK °
HE_ZT—+tHF+-_A=+-HUIEFE B
BREKEFAHTRFBREIER 2 THEE
M 2 B518 47 33,249,0008 T (— T — /< &F -
#913,771,0007% 7T ) K AR @8 #5121 492,360,000
BIL(ZZ—7NF 1 16,479,000 L) E &
BIRBE AR (HFE9) »

Based on the assessment of the Directors, certain
contract works have been suspended or have not yet
been compromised with the customers on amount of
final billing, as such the related carrying amounts of
contract works are not probable to recover. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, loss on uncertainty in
respect of collectability of amounts due from customers
of contract works of approximately HK$33,249,000
(2016: HK$13,771,000) and the respective reversal of
approximately HK$2,360,000 (2016: HK$16,479,000) was
recognised in the profit or loss respectively (note 9).
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. ES R EMEWRFRIE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHAT
Trade receivables Z 5 W IR
— From third parties — RBE=H 87,271 101,865
— From a non-controlling — KRB —BIFERRR
shareholder - 13,688
87,271 115,553
Less: accumulated impairment loss & : 25T R/EEE (18,698) (12,831)
68,573 102,722
Prepayments and deposits FERRIERIZES 16,881 34,456
Amount due from JEW?FEHXHX%ME
non-controlling shareholders 119 3,075
Amount due from an associate  JEUX — B E A B FUIE - 452
17,000 37,983
Other receivables H fib e Us KT8 54,241 42,952
Less: accumulated impairment loss & : 25tREE B (4,647) (4,321)
49,594 38,631
Total trade and other receivables B 5 K& E i FEUGRIE 458 135,167 179,336
The Group did not hold any collateral over the trade and RNELEN R E 5 K At FEURIB 15 A (E 1A
other receivables. TG o
The Group has a policy of allowing credit period to its AEBBRTHEFPEESR  HREEN T
customers, ranging from 90 to 180 days (2016: 90 to 180 EIBOKR(ZE—/RNF : 90FE180K) °
days). The Group may, on a case by case basis and after IR ER B A S () B AE N A R (A ETF R R =
evaluation of the business relationship and creditworthiness, Bi% - A THBITAE Fﬁm%ﬁ’ﬂf%ﬁﬁkﬁ ’
extend the credit period of certain government related AREZOERBERE  APER—FNUL -

entities and normally over 1 year as low default risk.
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net
of allowance for impairment of trade receivables, presented

27.

ESREMEWFIE#)

AT ARREDRR - RREEAH27NE
5 FEWKIR (HIRR B 5 B MR 2 R B R )

based on invoice date, at the end of the reporting period. ZBRER AT o
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Within 90 days 90K 29,531 38,869
91 to 180 days 91 &£ 180 KA 7,301 6,649
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365 KA 13,067 14,700
Over 365 days 365 KA E 18,674 42,504
68,573 102,722

The aged analysis of trade receivables which are past due

EEMMERRIE < 8 5 B IR 2 Rk DT

but not impaired is set out below: AR :

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Neither past due nor impaired BL R 80 A TR (B 42,922 56,392

Past due but not impaired BEEERRE
Within 90 days 90 KA 7,082 21,311
91 to 365 days 91 £ 365K 12,789 21,624
Over 365 days 365 KA 5,780 3,395
68,573 102,722
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired as
at 31 December 2017 and 2016 relate to a wide range of
customers. Based on past experiences, the management
believes that no other impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

The movement in the impairment loss of trade receivables

B REMEWRE®)

RIBE—+rFR-F—R"Ft+-A=1T—H
ZEBBERBBELBEFEUHEERZE
P - BEBATLER  BRERA AR
EEEEWEEAEE WS EHRDBAE
HE MR ERE - R F AR DR R PR
W@l o

B I RMFIR REBRESMT

is as follows:
2017 2016
—T—+tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
At 1 January n—HA—H 12,831 11,748
Impairment loss recognised on & ZEKGRIBMER
trade receivables LR EEE 5,933 7,996
Eliminated through disposal of & i@ & — kT B A 5k
a subsidiary ER | (1,014) —
Impairment loss reversed (note)  SEE E51EEEE (Fta) (213) (6,057)
Exchange realignment B 54, 8 B 1,161 (856)
At 31 December W+_HA=+—H 18,698 12,831

Note: As at 31 December 2017, included in the reversal of impairment
loss was nil (2016: approximately HK$4,577,000) which was
offset against trade and other payables

fisx: R-ZT—+F+-A=+—8 ¥E(=
T — X4 44,577,000 7T ) 5t AT (E
EsiE R E DU SHE 5 K H A FE T 50IE -
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movement in the impairment loss of other receivables

27. EZ R EMEWRIE®)

Hitb IR R ER RS T ¢

is as follows:

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

At 1 January n—H—H 4,321 1,662

Impairment loss recognised FEE A FE U IR FERR

on other receivables ZIRIEEE - 2,897
Exchange realignment b 5, S & 326 (238)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8 4,647 4,321

As at 31 December 2017, included in the impairment loss
of trade and other receivables are individually impaired with
an aggregate balance of approximately HK$23,345,000
(2016: HK$17,152,000) which are due to long outstanding.

As at 31 December 2017, amount due from an associate
was nil (2016: approximately HK$452,000 represented
the trade deposit paid to an associate in relation to the
operation of business application and services).

The amounts due from non-controlling shareholders
included in other receivables were unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

R_Z—+tF+_A=+—H ;tABSR
H A FEUGRIE < B EEE A E R & B R UK E
ZEREE S MEAMBKGRIE - BREEHL
23,345,000 7L (ZF — /<4 : 17,152,000
BT °

R-T—+HF+-A=+—08 - El—EH
ERAFIEAEZT(ZE—/NF  49452,000
PETT T8 A B FE R B AR 7 m) — S &
NAXNNESERS) °

A A EL M B MR IR 2 e R IR AR A SR 2 3R IR
REER - RENARBEREER -
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28. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 28. MiEHEEWFIE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHT FH&TT

Finance lease receivables R E T E e FUE 11,600 10,786
Less: accumulated impairment loss A : RatmfEsAE (9439 (8.776)

2,161 2,010

Certain of the Group’s cameras are leased out under
finance leases. All leases are denominated in RMB. The
average term of finance leases entered into is one year.
The present value of minimum payments is approximate
to its carrying amount and thus, finance lease receivables
are classified as current assets. The lease term had been
further extended to 31 December 2017.

The finance lease receivables are interest-free and secured
over the cameras leased. Included in the finance lease
receivables balance with carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,161,000 (2016: HK$2,010,000) which is past due
as at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss because it is still
considered as recoverable.

AEEETERERDREREREEL - /7
BHEDNRAREE - PRI ZBEHE
ZFEFERME—F - RIEMNRZREEER
EERE @ WREHERUGIADIDERR
HEE - HEE—SERE_T—LF 1+
H=+—H8-

MEHERKKEBAEERIAFMEEZE
B - ST AR E S RN FIRA KRR
H{E % &£2,161,0008 T(ZF — N F:
2,010,000 7T ) 2 FIER R E HARE @ Hf
EEDEARARE - RS B &Rt 1
R E R A -
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FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movement in the impairment loss of finance lease
receivables is as follow:

28.

REMBHRRME

—EFF = AI S SEhFE

AMEREEWE
REHERNIEZ REBREBMT

RIE (4)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
At 1 January n—H—H 8,776 8,637
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 8 BE 663 139
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—H 9,439 8,776
As at 31 December 2017, included in the impairment —tF+ZA=1+—8H  FHAREM
loss of finance lease receivables are individually impaired ERWIE 2 R EE B A RIARYKE 2 55
with balance of approximately HK$9,439,000 (2016: EIRERREEH) 9,439,000/ 7T (— T — R ¢
HK$8,776,000) which are due to long outstanding. 8,776,000787T) °
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 29. BIRIRRITFER
As at 31 December 2017, bank deposits of approximately RZE—tFF+_A=+—80 ' &&%
HK$165,000 (2016: HK$197,000) in aggregate have been 165 OOO/%TE( T — N4F : 49197,000/%8
pledged to banks to secure certain projects in relation to TC) KERITIERE R T RITAERE TH
data collection and will be released upon completion of ?Jfﬂ%ﬂilﬁiﬁ : IUETE?WJ%EAEWE%:HEVH—?
services pursuant to the agreement. The pledged bank R - EEMBITERDIDEARDEE -
deposits are classified as current asset as these projects will AZEE B R EHEN —FENEK - EE
be completed within one year pursuant to the agreement. RRTFHIREEFMNE0.35% (ZF—X

The pledged bank deposits carried interest at fixed rates at
0.35% (2016: ranged from 0.35% to 1.50%) per annum.

F: NF0.835% F1.50%) 7T & °
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30. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with maturity within three
months or less from the initial inception. Bank balances
carried interest at market rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.10%
(2016: 0.01% to 1.23%) per annum as at 31 December
2017.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entities to which they relate:

30.

RITERREE

RITEBR IR BRRAEERFENRE KT
BER A EE =8 A sk LA T B 8 2 52 5
RITFER - RITEHRIZ T —tF+=A
=+ —BZmEBFENEOI%ET10%aT
B(ZE—RF :001%E1.23%) °

TIRERINGEER AN E8IIEZ £
FEASRTTRESR MRS

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

HKS$ BT - 12,555
RMB AR 453 418
USs$ =TT 139 2,383

As at 31 December 2017, bank balances and cash of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$92,819,000 (2016: HK$119,732,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into currencies. Under the Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
foreign currencies through banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

R-T—+E+-A=+—H KEEMAUA
REFHE 2 RITHEBRRIRE#/492,819,000
BT (ZZ—754F 1 119,732,000/ 7T) ° A
RETITEHLRAEME - REFBERA
HEYHNE B IR G R AETE - EIE RTEEER
RE - ANEBFEBEREEITINEEEHR
THEARE IR ABINE o
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31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on invoice date at the end of the reporting

31. B Z REMENKE

ATERBERR - RBERBHZINE

I FRIAZ Rl DA

period.

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT

Trade payables aged 5 RN FUERER
Within 90 days 90K 107,470 74171
91 to 180 days 91 180K 27,128 19,228
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 108,738 32,297
Over 365 days 365 KA _E 60,932 59,214
304,268 184,910
Receipt in advance TE U GRIE 12,575 13,964
Other tax payables HAb B T8 30,308 28,568
Other payables and accruals HMENFRIENRER 28,100 30,665
375,251 258,107

The credit period granted by suppliers and sub-contractors
is normally 90 to 180 days as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
90 to 180 days). The Group has financial risk management
policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled

within the credit timeframe.

RZZE—+F+_A=+—H #HEFELD
BEERTHEERBEANEIBOKR(ZE
—REF : 90E180K) - AEEHIE T M
ERE IR B R AR A EN B RAMEE

HIRR A4S ©
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32. BORROWINGS 32. BE&
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHTT
Current liabilities REEE
Secured bank loan (note a) BEIPRITER (HizEa) - 376
.Unsecured bank loans (note b)  AEMRITEAR (Makb) . ...48386 80,248
e 38,386 30,624
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
.Secured bank oan (note a) - AERRTER (M) 3602 ! 626
Total borrowings EEMHRE 46,988 31,250
Carrying amount repayable FEERREE (BE
(based on scheduled ERBEmEEE
repayment dates set out EIRA)
in the loan agreements):
On demand and within one year [EEREEN —FAEE 43,386 30,624
After one year but within —FREEMEN
two years - 376
After two years but within MERBERFENR
B ............. 3,502 U
46,988 31,250
Notes: BaE
(8  Asat31 December 2017, a secured bank loan of RMB3,000,000 @ RZZE—+tF+ZA=+—H  —HAR
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,602,000) (2016: #% 3,000,000 7t (#H& 72 49 3,602,000 /& 7T )
RMB898,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,002,000)) is (ZZE—R"F: AR¥898,0007Tt (FHER
secured by the Group’s land and building with carrying amount #91,002,000/8 7)) 2 BEBIRITE KA
of RMB3,270,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,926,000) REEREEERSARES3,270,0007T (HBE
(2016: RMB3,631,000 (equivalent to approximately 493,926,000 87T ) (ZF—RF : AR
HK$4,054,000)). The loan carried interest at a variable rate of 3,631,000 7T ( 18 & 5 #94,054,00078 7))
6.18% (2016: fixed rate of 6.2%) per annum for the purpose of 2T RAEFIERE - ZERAE—RE
general working capital. BETS KEF6.18% 2 FHFER(ZF
— N 6.2% ZBEEME)FTE
(o)  Asat 31 December 2017, unsecured bank loans of approximately ) HR=ZZE—tF+-_A=+—H HARE

RMB36,134,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$43,386,000)
(2016: RMB27,094,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$30,248,000)) were used for the purpose of general working
capital

36,134,000 7T, (#HE 7 4 43,386,000 7% 7T )
(ZZ—"4F : AR¥ 27,094,000 7T (HE
R #730,248,000/8 7T ) ) 2 EIKIPIRITE K
RAE—MEBEES -
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32. BORROWINGS (Continued) 32. EE#)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate AEBEEMERNEESRKRAOT
changes is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Fixed-rate borrowings EEMEE 30,018 8,922
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 16,970 22,328
46,988 31,250
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal ARBEREZERAE (RSRRSLFIR)
to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are REEMT -
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —EB—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Effective interest rate: BERA= -
Fixed-rate borrowings EEMEE 5.66% 5.7% t0 6.2%
Variable-rate borrowings EREE 5.66% to 6.18% 6.18%
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32. BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, secured and unsecured bank
loans amounting to approximately RMB39,134,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$46,988,000) (2016:
RMB27,992,000(equivalent to HK$31,250,000)) were
guaranteed and indemnified by a director of the Company
and a subsidiary of the Group.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had available banking
facilities of approximately RMB70,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$84,049,000 (2016: RMB370,898,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$414,071,000)), out of
which approximately RMB33,368,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$40,065,000 (2016: RMB342,906,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$382,821,000)) was not
utilised.

32. EE®)

RZZE—+F+-A=1+—H BEEKE
EIRIBITE KL B AR 39,134,000 7T (48
E 1 #946,988,00087C) (ZE—RF : A
K #27,992,0007T ( 8 & 7 31,250,000 %
TL))  AARAR—REBRAEE B
NAREEREBERE -

N-ZB—+E+-A=+—08 X&EEHH
Al AIRTTREE 4 & AR % 70,000,000 7T (48
M #184,049,00087T) (ZE—RF : A
R 370,898,000 7T (#HE 7 47 414,071,000
BIr)) - HP 4 AR % 33,368,000 T (8%
M #740,065,0008TT) (ZE—RF : AR
& 342,906,000 7T ( /8 & P 49382,821,000
) WARBNA o
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 33. AIRRERE

2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT

Convertible Note | (note a) AR ER (Kiita)
Liability component BEHS 427,856 383,404
Equity component WS Eb 139,915 139,915
567,771 523,319

Convertible Note Il (note b) e ESEANC IR
Liability component BEHS 94,529 85,878
Equity component B 17,083 17,083
111,612 102,961

Liability component: BE#D

Current portion mEE o 94,529 —
Non-current portion EmBIE > 427,856 469,282
522,385 469,282

Equity component T 156,998 156,998
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 17 June 2010 (the “Issue Date I”), the Company issued
a five-year zero coupon convertible note in principal amount
of HK$954,100,000 (the “Convertible Note 1”) as part of
the consideration to acquire 100% interest in MIG Resources
Limited (formerly known as Well Delight Holdings Limited). The
Convertible Note | was matured on 17 June 2015 (“Maturity
1), subject to an option of the holder of the Convertible Note
| (“Noteholder I”) to convert the whole or part of the principal
amount of the Convertible Note | into ordinary shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$1.1 per share (adjusted
from HK$0.22 per share as a result of the share consolidation on
20 November 2012). The Convertible Note | is non-redeemable
prior to the maturity date. The Company has the right to extend
the maturity date in respect of the outstanding amount of
the Convertible Note | for another five years (the “Derivative
Component”), which has been exercised on Maturity I.

The Convertible Note | was stated at fair value on the Issue
Date | which amounted to HK$948,237,000. The Convertible
Note | contains three components — liability component, equity
component and the Derivative Component. The fair value of
the liability component of the Convertible Note | was calculated
using cash flows discounted at a rate based on an equivalent
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond.
The fair value of the equity component and the Derivative
Component were determined based on the valuation carried out
by Asset Appraisals Limited, an independent professional valuer,
by using Binomial valuation model.

33. MR EE (&)

RZZT—TFA+EE(#TAEI) -
N R B T AN % B8 A 954,100,000 7% 7T
ZhFHEZE A MRER ([ ATRREE
1) & U B MIG Resources Limited ( Bl T8
[Well Delight Holdings Limited|) 2 100%
A RE - IRKRERIN=_Z—H
FRATERIBA(REAALD - TRRE
BIZHEA(EBHEALD AERR1
BTz ABRE(R-_ZT——F+—A=1+H
B E MM ER0.22B T FTIAFE) &
ARRER I 2 NeBEE D LIRAAR
ARz EBA% - PTHRRERR | AR H AT
AIfE[E o ANA RIAREAS AR IR | 2 MR
HBSBE PR ERAF([FTEIR
B - AREIREEAB I 21TEZER -

AR ER IR RBIZ AR B
4 %85 948,237,000 7 ° A AR ZIE |1 E
FE=AHERED — BEDS - ok
PTETAZD - AIRRERIZAaESDH 2
AREXRARSIENRRES 2 RAEMS
FEARSREIIR A ETE - #2535
EITET AT 2 AR BERERBEIEE
FHEEIP BEE ENERM AR A BRA
ZIEAHERRET 2 HEEE -
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

On Maturity |, the Company exercised its rights to extend the
maturity date of the Convertible Note | for another five years,
from 17 June 2015 to 17 June 2020, with the outstanding
principal amount of HK$560,580,400 (‘Extended Convertible
Note I”), the then liability component, equity component and
the Derivative Component were derecognised. No other terms
and conditions of the Convertible Note | have been amended.
The Extended Convertible Note | was stated at fair value on the
Maturity | which amounted to approximately HK$463,636,000.
The Extended Convertible Note | contains two components
— liability component and equity component. The fair value of
the Extended Convertible Note | as a whole, which comprised
liability component and equity component, was determined
based on the valuation carried out by Roma Appraisals, an
independent professional valuer, by using Binomial valuation
model. The fair value of the liability component of the Extended
Convertible Note | was calculated using cash flows discounted
at a rate based on an equivalent market interest rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond. The fair value of the equity
component of the Extended Convertible Note | was calculated
by subtracting the fair value of the liability component from the
fair value of the Extended Convertible Note | as a whole.

33. MR EE (&)
B - (&)

(@)

(%)

REEE | - AR R BEITEREFE TR E
BIZESHABERASE =T —HFN
A+tHERZE-_ZT-_ZT&FA++tH"
m) AR & 53R 8 7K & ¥E A& 560,580,400 7% 7T
([BEHTRBRERI])  WRIEERE R
MEEHD RO RITETEHSS °
WS BT ATHRRR TR IR | 2 EL A TR B R4 o
KGEHART MR R R IIRR BB 1 2 A 2 B
8 - & %8 4) 5 463,636,000 JT o 4L HA
ATRRER I BEMEAKTS —BEHD
NI o KT R ERI (EAB—
EEE) 2 AAERERERS RERY
o RIE AT B LA RS BT
FAZEAGERRETZHEETE - &
EHTRBRERIZEBES D 2 AR EHK
ARSI ES 2 RAEmiGH =R
SREE A EFTHE - LT ARRZE
ZRER TN 2 DA BN KT AR E |
(EA—EZE) 2 AABEREEEDDZ
NRERTE °
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 33. AIRIRERE (&)
Notes: (Continued) PE : (42)
@@  (Continued) @ (&)
The movement of the liability component and the equity FR - AIRRER I 2BEH D kiEmE S
component of the Convertible Note | for the year is set out ZEEHIOT
below:
Liability component Equity component
8 &BH5 ERIH
2017 2016 2017 2016

—E2—+tf ZT—RF ZT—tF ZT—KF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHIT FHT FHIT
Carrying amounts BREE
At 1 January n—A—H 383,404 343,467 139,915 139,915
Imputed interest expense of KGE BRI |
Extended Convertible Note | HEF S (D)
(note i) 44,452 39,937 - -
At 31 December W+=-—A=+—H” 427,856 383,404 139,915 139,915
Notes: BRE -
()  The liability component is subsequently measured () BEISIEREAERNREREEKA
at amortised cost using effective interest method by e MERAZERERNER11.59% (=

applying an effective rate of 11.59% (2016: 11.59%) T—RNF:11.59%) c HERBBHZ L
per annum. Imputed interest expense of approximately 44,452,000 87T (=& —73% : 839,937,000
HK$44,452,000 (2016: HK$39,937,000) was recognised BT ERBE=T—+tF+=-A=+—8H
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 IEFE 2 EEER(KIEE10) ©

(note 10).
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

On 2 August 2013 (the “Issue Date II”), the Company issued
a five-year zero coupon convertible note in principal amount of
HK$1,170,000,000 as part of the consideration for acquiring
100% interest in Sinbo Investment Limited (“Sinbo”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Sinbo Group”). Subject
to adjustments, convertible note in additional principal amount of
HK$80,000,000 in aggregate (the “Contingent Consideration”)
would be issued also as part of the consideration for acquiring
100% interest in Sinbo Group (together with the convertible note
in principal amount of HK$1,170,000,000, the “Convertible
Note II"). The Company issued the Convertible Note Il in
aggregate principal amount of HK$80,000,000 on 26 March
2014. The Convertible Note Il will be matured on the business
day falling on the fifth anniversary of the date of issue, subject to
an option of the holder of the Convertible Note Il (‘Noteholder
II”) to convert the whole or part of the principal amount of the
Convertible Note Il into ordinary shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.25 per share (subject to adjustment)
at any time from the issue date up to maturity date.

The Convertible Note Il comprises of three parts:

— a principal amount of HK$80,000,000 in aggregate
Tranche A Convertible Note Il which is subject to
adjustment;

— a principal amount of HK$870,000,000 in aggregate
Tranche A Convertible Note Il which is not subject to
adjustment;

— a principal amount of HK$300,000,000 in aggregate of
Tranche B Convertible Note Il which is not subject to
adjustment.

The Company cannot unilaterally redeem all or any part of the
Convertible Note Il prior to the maturity date without the prior
written consent of the Noteholder Il. Subject to the consent
from the Company, the holder of Tranche B Convertible Note ||
may request the Company to redeem up to all of the principal
amount outstanding under the Tranche B Convertible Note Il on
one or more occasions at any time prior to its maturity date.

REMBHRRME

—EFF = AI S SEhFE

33. MR EE (&)

(s

(b)

()

R-E—==N\A=-B(RFTEHN)) -
RN A E 172N % B8 & 1,170,000,000 7% 7T
2 AFHTZEBRKRER - (EAWREH
BEREBRAFR(HE] RAKE AR A
(BRI EEE])100% s 2 oK
B EAKBHELEE100% R 2D
RE - EHFAZE  TEREIINETASE
280,000,000 87T 2 AT R ER ([RER
Bl) GERZA <% A1,170,000,000 7 7T 2
RS - BA [ TREREREID) - AR
AN —ZE—NE=F -+ NBETRLHE
¥6.80,000,000 7% 7T 2 A] #A A% Kl o A] #8
BREZINBETARERARFTHNEEE
X038 URRERIZEHEEA(ER
BEANEEEETABMEZZEA
IFBERFIE TR 0.25 8 o 2 AR E (7] 734
B)EABRBRERIZ AR K
BARARZ LB -

AR RE 2 E = EARE D

— AMABRBRERIZALEA R
80,000,000%73(7%5@%) ;

] o sie

R X

— A#HAEBRBRERIZ A& R
870,000, ooo,%n:WT%W ﬁé) ;

—  BitA#pk
300,000, oooﬁérc (‘A F A

ERIZEAEHEAR

A%)

~

HP

o\

ARBREHAF - ERESEEFAAN
MEXAEERE  NMEEHTEEL2E K
EAIE D AR RE - AR REER
BHEAIM AR IR I 2 F5 B AR KA QAR
FH AR — X% RAEERS RBH
AHREZFIETEHEREL IR A
B
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)

The Contingent Consideration would be adjusted in the event
that the audited consolidated net profit after tax of Sinbo Group
attributable to the owners of Sinbo (net of minority interests) for
the nine months ended 31 December 2013 (the “PAT”) was less
than HK$80,000,000, and the consideration shall be adjusted
by deducting the sum equivalent to the shortfall between the
PAT and HK$80,000,000 subject to a maximum deduction of
the sum of HK$80,000,000.

The Tranche A Convertible Note Il with the principal amount
of HK$870,000,000 in aggregate which was not subject
to adjustment and the Tranche B Convertible Note Il with
the principal amount of HK$300,000,000 in aggregate was
accounted for using split accounting as the corresponding
conversion option can be settled by issuing a fixed number
of the Company’s own equity instruments. They were initially
recognised at fair value on the Issue Date Il amounting to
approximately HK$923,758,000 which comprises liability
component with fair value on the Issue Date Il of approximately
HK$723,889,000 and equity component with fair value on the
Issue Date Il of approximately HK$199,869,000. The fair value
of the liability component was calculated by Roma Appraisals
using cash flows discounted at a rate based on an equivalent
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The
fair value of the equity component was determined based on the
valuation carried out by Roma Appraisals using option pricing
model.

The Convertible Note Il contains three components —
liability component, equity component and the Contingent
Consideration.

—tF A=+ —HIFE

33. MR EE (&)

fia -

(b)

(%)

(#&)
WREBE-_T—=F+_-_A=+—Hith
BAFEHEE AL EER 2 LT/
ARrFEAT ([BREERE]) (kR D E0R
B %) 1K 7280,000,0005% 7T+ Bl 7] # &

HANE  BZREEHRERFE R A
80,000,000/ L2 ZRMm AL - &% Al
380,000,000 7T,

MARAEZ AR EREITAR A
AEETHEZBRATAEERN  BAS
%8 & #£ 4 870,000,0007% 7T 2 At 7] #2 f%
ZBINTATUAR) RASEERR
300,000,00078 7T < B AT 32 AL Z 45 1l J5 4
BB EAR - ZEEHEARNET
B 5 132 A A {E 49 923,758,000 7 TTHERR. »
BREABEDY (RETHHIZARELD
723,889,000/ 7T ) R m= & (R # 1T H
Bl 2 AR (B A #7199,869,000/87T) - &

DRZAREHESBEE I HEARSE
#EH@M;%ZWEW%%WWEW;‘FE

FRTTEAE - BB 2 RAEREH
7 55 B .Jrﬁﬁﬁ%)ﬂﬁﬂf“*ﬁfﬁ%ﬁ 12
HEEE °

AHRRER I BRE=ERKED — BERD
o~ HEmEb D R ARE -
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)

On 26 March 2014 (“Issue Date llI”), the PAT has been met
and the Company issued the Tranche A Convertible Notes Il
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$80,000,000. They
were initially recognised at fair value on the Issue Date Il
amounting to approximately HK$108,486,000 which comprises
liability and equity component with fair value on the Issue
Date Il of approximately HK$51,149,000 and HK$57,337,000
respectively. On the same date, the Contingent Consideration
was no longer existed and derecognised. The fair value of the
liability component was calculated by Roma Appraisals using
cash flows discounted at a rate based on an equivalent market
interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The fair
value of the equity component was determined based on the
valuation carried out by Roma Appraisals by using option pricing
model. As at 31 December 2015, the Tranche A Convertible
Note Il with aggregate principal amount of HK$80,000,000
has been fully converted. The outstanding principal amount of
Convertible Note Il is HK$100,000,000.

The movement of the liability component and the equity
component of the Convertible Note Il for the year is set out
below:

33. MR EE (&)

fE

(b)

Liability component

(%)
(%)

R-B—NE=A=-+~A(RTAH
M) - BRHEFEEIERRANAAZEITA
% #8 %8 /80,000,000 7T 2 AHt AT 2 %
ZRI- ZEEZBEARNBETREBINEA
o {E#7108,486,000/8 LR BIFAE
MiERBs (RETBHIZARED
#951,149,000 % 7t M 57,387,000 7T ) °
FH kBRETBFE  WRIEER-
BEBOPZARERESEETHERAR
LI RRESF 2 AEMHEHEARE R
EWMMAETE - EXH D 2 AR ERE
&SRB GRS e EE T
CIHEEE R-E—RAE+-_A=+—
B - N4 %8%8 /80,000,000 7T 2 A4t A
HRR IR | R B IR - ARSI A K
B8 A £%85100,000,000/8 7T °

ERTHRBERI BEBD RS 2
SRR :

Equity component

& &BH I
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tF —T-AE CE-tE T AF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FiET FHET FT
Carrying amounts BREE
At 1 January n—A—H 85,878 77,999 17,083 17,083
Imputed interest expenses HEF S (FED
(note i) 8,651 7,879 - =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 94,529 85,878 17,083 17,083
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 33. TEEREE (&)
Notes: (Continued) PE : (42)
(b)  (Continued) L) (&)
Notes: BaaE -
()  The liability component is subsequently measured at ) BEBDEEEAERFREILEH
amortised cost using effective interest method by applying MAGE  FIERCERENES
an effective interest rate of 10.07% (2016: 10.07%) 10.07% (ZZ—7<4F : 10.07%) °
per annum. Imputed interest expense of approximately B H B X 48,651,000 (==
HK$8,651,000 (2016: HK$7,879,000) was recognised in —7N% 17,879,000 L) EREE
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 (note —E—+tF+-A=t+—HIEFEZ
10). BamiER (MEE10) ©
34. DEFERRED INCOME 34, IBIEWA
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHT
At 1 January n—H—H 264 4,658
Derecognised through disposal % & — M B A &)
of a subsidiary 4% TR
(notes 39(a) and (c)) (B¥3E39(a) X (o)) (501) (4,152)
Additions during the year F RGN 230 276
Exchange realignment bE R 7 (518)
At 31 December R+=—HA=+—H - 264
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and REBE_ZT—+tFRZFT—R"F+=A
2016, a subsidiary in the PRC received a subsidy from = t—HIFE - —BRPEAKE AT
the government of the PRC for financing a business WK B BB ATRMHEL - ARBIRERE
application and services project. Since the project has not RISIEB IR E S - ARIBR REARFAR
yet commenced, the received subsidy is recognised as WHWHMRIERB B EANRRBIELTK

deferred income in non-current liabilities. A e
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION 35. IELEFIIE
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax assets NTAREEREAR(EE) MM BHREHE
(iabilities) for financial reporting purposes: T2 -
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Deferred tax assets BRI EE - 48
Deferred tax liebilties  EEBEAE 8517) ....[19497)
Balance at 31 December R+—A=+—Bz#&% (8,517) (19,449)
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) NTREZE-FE—tFR-F—FF1+=A
recognised and movements thereon during the years ended =T BLFEMERZEERLERE(E
31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follow: E)RHEE
Fair value
adjustment
arising from
acquisition of
subsidiaries
W BB BT S 2
EBEEZ Others Total
AREFE Hity a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—x&E—A—H 60,212 (137) 60,075
Credited to profit or loss  HEzETA (39,663) - (39,663)
Exchangerealignment  BEEi#% Q052 89 (969),
At 31 December 2016 HZ=ZE—A~F+=—A=+—H
and 1 January 2017 R-—E—t%5—H—H 19,497 (48) 19,449
Credited to profit or loss  HEzETA (11,962) 50 (11,912
Exchange realignment  [& i #8% 982 ) 980

At 31 December 2017 R=-ZF—+tF+=-HA=+—H 8,517 - 8,517
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$53,783,000 (2016: HK$44,043,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$53,783,000 (2016: HK$44,043,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets for tax loss arising in
PRC of approximately RMB224,527,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$269,590,000) (2016: RMB107,416,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$119,919,000)) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The loss will expire
after five years from the year of assessment to which they
relate to.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
tax has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately RMB79,831,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$95,853,000) as at 31 December
2017 (2016: RMB84,623,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$94,473,000), as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

35.

ERERIE ()

RZTE—+tF+=ZA=+—H x5EZ
RE AR IEEE H#53,783,000/8 T (=F
— 75 1 44,043,000 7T)  AJEL AR
R A o R AR s F 7 & 2 8] T8 A
M- A BE4953,783,00008 L ( = F — /X
44,043,000 7T ) ERIBELETIBEE ©
ZEVIEBEERRLE -

R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—8 > ARKRXK
wmHREZ AR - NEEWEFER
o B EE A AR IR B R A A R 224,527,000
7T (A8 E R #9269,590,000/8 T) (ZZT—7~
F M ARK107,416,000 T (B E R L
119,919,000 7T ) ) ERIEEHIBEE © %
EEREEEANTERREAFERIE -

RIBEFBECEMRERE TS N\F— A
— B BRABEMNBARRR GRS
R BEBRBNMEN - ARAER
B £ 12 ) BT B M = E 2 B O B B BT
ERUETSENBRAKER - R &
REEMBERERANEATEWNB AR
T—tF+-_A=+—BZREFEN
TS EREHARE 79,831,000 7T (FHE R
#795,853,00087T) (ZE—RF : AR¥
84,623,000 7T (#8E 7R 4994,473,000 8 7T ) )
SRR IR -
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(@) As announced by the Company on 2 June 2017, the Company

proposed to:

@)

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. [
Number of
Par value ordinary shares Total
H{E ERREE HMEE
HK$ HK$'000
BT FAxT
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2016 and R=-B—XRE—HA—H
31 December 2016 EZZE—XRHF
+=A=+—H 0.25 30,000,000,000 7,500,000
Increase in authorised share BAHIRmES
capital due to capital reduction LOETERRA 2 N
(note a (ii)) (Ff=Ea (i) (0.24)  720,000,000,000 —
At 31 December 2017 A\—E—tF
+=HA=+—H 0.01 750,000,000,000 7,500,000
Issued and fully paid ERITRAR
At 1 January 2016 and R=ZE—R"F—H—H
31 December 2016 MZF—7RF
+=—A=+—H 0.25 8,156,781,091 2,039,195
Capital reduction (note a) BRI (MfsEa) (0.24) — (1,957,627)
At 31 December 2017 R=-ZB—+tF
+=HA=+—H 0.01 8,156,781,091 81,568
Notes: BaE -

BMARBER —_F—EFRNA-_BHAA

& ARAEE

U

cancel the entire amount of approximately
HK$1,087,267,000 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company and to transfer the
credits arising from such cancellation to an account
designated as the contributed surplus account of the
Company (the “Cancellation of Share Premium
Account”);

)

FHHEARRRMDEER 2IERS
£8#91,087,267,000/87C © Y%A #H
FEIHATE S  EREEE IR TE AN
AEEBBHREZRS ([FHEKRHG
EERR])
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36. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@) (Continued)

(ii) implement the capital reorganisation (the “Capital
Reorganisation”) after the change of domicile becoming

effective which involves the following:

the issued share capital of the Company would
be reduced through a cancellation of the paid-up
capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.24
on each of the ordinary share(s) of HK$0.25 each
in the existing issued and unissued share capital of
the Company prior to the Capital Reorganisation
becoming effecting (“Existing Shares”) such that
the nominal value of each issued Existing Shares
would be reduced from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01 (the
“Capital Reduction”);

immediately following the Capital Reduction taking
effect, all the authorised but unissued share capital
of the Company (which shall include the authorised
but unissued share capital arising from the Capital
Reduction) would be cancelled in its entirety and
forthwith upon such cancellation, the authorised
share capital of the Company will be increased to
HK$7,500,000,000 by the creation of such number
of additional ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each
in the share capital of the Company immediately
after the Capital Reorganisation becoming effective
(“New Shares”) as shall be sufficient to increase
the authorised share capital of the Company to
HK$7,500,000,000 divided into 750,000,000,000
New Shares;

the credits of approximately HK$1,957,627,000
arising in the books of the Company from the
Capital Reduction would be credited to the
contributed surplus account of the Company
within the meaning of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda; and

36. BA (&)

BizE : (48)
@ (&

(i) FEBMERRETRAZTA(RE
Bl WESRTIIE

— ERFEHEARRBERA(E
N R = A N
BFEBITRARBEITRA (R
ERHADFEREBE025HE
TLZ R R Z F%0.24
BT BEERERITRAE
BAp 2 BB 0.25 B TTEIRE
0.01 BT BIRAR Az B %
TTREAS ([ R ZAEIR )

— ZREBRAHBAEME 2EH
EHARAAAAEBRE
TR (82 45 e B A B ORL E £
ZAEEBRETEAR) - R
EIHA R FEENE S
ERAERERTZARAF
BRA IR R EINFRO0.01E
TTH E B (T #H RG]
(R LAIZ AR 2 BA E B A
£7,500,000,000/&7T *
#$750,000,000,000 8 3 i
D) EMARBDEERA S
7,500,000,000/% 7T

—  GEARFRE R RARARENE
EE 4 2 # BR %91,957,627,000
BB ARNR R 2 B ARG
R(EERBRE1981F QA
E) R
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36. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 36. A& (&)
Notes: (Continued) PiE - (42)
@  (Continued) @ (&)
(i)  (Continued) iy (#&)
—  the amount of approximately HK$3,044,894,000 — ERRBRBRBEZIERSELD
standing to the credit of the contributed surplus 3,044,894,000 % 7T B FI A 5 RE 1 8
account be applied to set off the accumulated AT 2 BETEE - SIRBETARI &
losses of the Company by the amount of such AREMBEREEVER T ZER
credit or be applied in any other manner as may be HEam=ERA -

permitted under the new bye-laws of the Company
and all applicable laws of Bermuda.

The Capital Reorganisation was approved by the BASEHDNR - —+F A+ BHETHA
shareholder of the Company by a special resolution at an NEIPEERERIAS FESRIRZRAE - I
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on KRB —+F N\ BHIUHEER - JRANEHE
10 July 2017 and became effective on 14 August 2017. BEHARARIBEA-Z—+F /A "H -
Details of the Capital Reorganisation were set out in the —E—4+F+A+EE_TE—+ENA+T
announcements of the Company dated 2 June 2017, 10 HH AL RARATIBE A —_ZE—+F,5H
July 2017 and 14 August 2017 and the circular of the +NBHEGEE

Company dated 16 June 2017.
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

On 26 May 2016, the Company has adopted a new share
option scheme (the “Scheme”). The previous share option
scheme was adopted on 25 February 2006 and has already
been expired on 24 February 2016 (the “2006 Share
Option Scheme”). The outstanding share options under
the 2006 Share Option Scheme remains valid. The purpose
of the Scheme and the 2006 Share Option Scheme are
to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that
the eligible participants have made or may make to the
business development of the Group. Eligible participants of
the Scheme and the 2006 Share Option Scheme include
(i) the Company’s executive, non-executive or independent
non-executive directors or a director of an entity in which
the Group holds an interest (the “Affiliate”); (ii) other
employee or officer of the Group or any Affiliate; and (iii)
customer, supplier, agent, partner, consultant, adviser or
shareholder of or contractor to the Group or any Affiliate.
Eligible participants of the 2006 Share Option Scheme also
include (iv) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which
or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which
include persons under (i), (i) and (iii); and (v) a company
beneficially owned by any persons under (i), (i) and (iii). The
principal terms of the Scheme and the 2006 Share Option
Scheme are summarised as follows:

(1) Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the Company as consideration for the grant.

—tF A=+ —HIFE

37. MR BER ZARRXS

R-ZT—R"FRA-T/"H  KABEMN—
BT IRERTE ([ &5t 81)) - RARIZAT
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B2 AERSHEERE () ARRZHMIT
I TRIB L IR TEST R AR ERE T
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

@

The subscription price in respect of each share under
the Scheme and the 2006 Share Option Scheme
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of the Company'’s shares; (i) the closing price
of each share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer to the eligible
participant, which must be a day on which licensed
banks are open for business in Hong Kong and the
Stock Exchange is open for business for dealing in
securities (“Trading Day”); and (i) the average closing
price of each share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five consecutive
Trading Days immediately preceding the date of offer
to the eligible participant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme and the 2006 Share Option
Scheme at any time during the period which shall
not be more than 10 years from the business day on
which the option is deemed to have been granted.
There is no minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised.

The maximum number of the Company’s shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Scheme and the 2006
Share Option Scheme and any other scheme of
the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange. The Scheme mandate limit may
be refreshed by the shareholders in general meeting
from time to time provided always that the Scheme
mandate limit so refreshed must not exceed 10% of
the total number of shares in issue as at the date of
approval of such refreshment by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting.

37. LR AER 2 IRRZ @)

@

ZETEI R TN R EIET
BRBOHZREBETSERTI =4
R i&mE - () ARRRGD ZEE ; (i)
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(4)  (Continued)

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Scheme
and the 2006 Share Option Scheme, the maximum
number of the Company’s shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and the
2006 Share Option Scheme and any other scheme
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time. Unless approved by the shareholders of the
Company, the maximum number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
any eligible participants (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue
from time to time.

As of 31 December 2017, the total number of shares
of the Company available for issue under the Scheme
is 815,678,109 shares representing approximately
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
of the date of this report. The remaining life of the
Scheme is about 8 years.

The 2006 Share Option Scheme expired on 24
February 2016.

(5) Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

37. LR AER 2 IRRZ (&)

)
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(Continued)
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37.

No share options were granted since the adoption of the

Scheme. Details of specific categories of options granted
under the 2006 Share Option Scheme are as follows:

REMBHRRME

—EFF = AI S SEhFE

URBABER2IRRS @)

E T%FHEA%E\J PAZRIE 1% h RE ASHE © IRIR—
TREBREA SR D 2 BREZFER
%‘J.#\ﬁZIDT :

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price Fair value at grant date
RtAS EBY s 8 RRERSZAAE
Before After Before After
adjustment  adjustment  adjustment  adjustment
(note)
(Hz)
25 August 2009 N/A 26 August 2009 to 31 August 2012 HK$0.385 HK$1.925 HKS0.144 HK$0.72
“EENE NBE “EENE\A_THAZE 0.385%1 1958T 01448 0728
NA=t4aA “£-—F\f=T-H
25 October 2010 25 Qctober 2010 to 24 Apri 2011 25 April 2011 0 24 October 2020 HK$0.171 HK$0.855 HK$0.059 HK$0.295
“5-%% ZE-TETACTHA “E——FNAZtHA 18T 08%%T  0059%T 029587
+A=+%R E-5——%MAZtEA EZSCRETACTRA
25 October 2010 o 24 October 2011 25 October 2011 to 24 October 2020 HK$0.171 HK$0.855 HK$0.066 HK$0.328
Z2-FFTA-TRA e W il AT 085AT  0066%T  0.328%T
E5—%tAZ1RA E-ECEEAC1IA
25 Qctober 2010 o 24 Apri 2012 25 April 2012 t0 24 October 2020 HK$0.171 HK$0.855 HK$0.071 HK$0.356
ZE-TETACTHA 1) s i BT 08%%T  00MET  03%%%
EE-—FMAZTIA EECREACTIA
25 October 2010 0 24 October 2012 25 Oc tober 2012 to 24 October 2020 HK$0.171 HK$0.855 HK$0.076 HK$0.381
Z2-FFTA-TRA “E-FtA-tER 1AL 085AT  0076%T  0.381HT
~%--F+A=F0A EECEEAC1IA
25 Qctober 201010 24 Apri 2013 25 Apri 2013 to 24 October 2020 HK$0.171 HK$0.855 HKS$0.081 HK$0.403
ZE-TETACTHA “E-ZENAZTAA 18T 08%%T  00B1%T 0403871
E-5-Z¥MA-tRA EZRCRETACTRA
25 October 2010 to 24 October 2013 25 Oc tober 2013 to 24 October 2020 HK$0.171 HK$0.855 HK$0.085 HK$0.424
Z2-FFTA-TRA “E-=F+A-t1A AT 085AT  008AT  04M4BT
EF-=F+AZ1MA EECEEAC1IA
9 October 2012 N/A 9 Oc ober 2012 to 8 October 2022 HK$0.05 HK$0.25 HK$0.009 HK$0.045
ZZ-ZEtRAR TER “E-CETANREECEHANR 006  026%T  0009%T 004557
9 October 201210 1 April 2013 2 Apn\ 2013 0 8 October 2022 HK$0.05 HK$0.25 HK$0.009 HK$0.045
“ECFTANRECE-ZEMA-A —=¥MA-AZ-E__F+ANA 0.05%T 05%T  00093L  0045%T
9 Oo tober 2012 to 1 October 2013 2 Oc tober 2013 o 8 October 2022 HK$0.05 HK$0.25  HK$0.009  HKS$0.046
Z3-ZETANRE Z3-ZF+AZH 005  025%T  0000AT  0046ET
“E-=£1h-A Z-F-E+ANR
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. URHGREB 2 NRRZ (&)

(Continued)
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price Fair value at grant date
Riti A8 RS s g RELABZALE
Before After Before Atter
adjustment  adjustment  adjustment  adjustment
(note)
(&)
26 September 2014 N/A 26 September 2014 to 31 December 2017 N/A HK$0.26 N/A Directors:
“E-E AER “E-MENAZTAR NER 0.267T A EER
A=A ECFtFT2A=t-H HKS0.072
0.072787
Employees:
&
HK$0.061
0.061 BT
26 September 2014 to 26 March 2015 27 March 2015 to 31 December 2017 N/A HK$0.26 N/A Directors:;
“T-MEAAZTAR 3 NER  026%T NER EEX
E_E-RF=AC17H ECEtETZA=t-H HK$0.078
0.078%T
Employees:
&
HK$0.070
0.0707%7
26 September 2014 to 26 September 2015 27 September 2015 to 31 December 2017 N/A HKS$0.26 N/A Directors:
ZZ-MEAAZTAR ZE-RFAACTER NER 06T R E%:
EZ5-RENAZTRA E-5-tE+-R=1-R HK$0.082
0.08277
Employees:
&
HK$0.076
0.076 %7
Note: Upon the share consolidation becoming effective on Mz - RZTE——-F+—-AZTHROEHE
20 November 2012, the exercise price of share options has Wig - BREZITEED TUAAE-
been adjusted. Details of the adjustment of share options have BREARZE ZFBERARARIRRA=S
been disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 9 ——FF+ANBZAEHHEE -

October 2012.
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Movements of the share options and their
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weighted average exercise price

37. URMBER M

=h 2}

TAX

2 (%)

BRESBKEMEFIITEE

Number of share options

BRERE
As at As at
1 January 31 December
2017 2017
Grantees Options grant date R-E—tH& Forfeited R-Z2—+t&
S IN BRERLAE —A—H 2R +=A=+-H
’000 ’000 ’000
TR TR TR
Directors 25 October 2010 36,700 - 36,700
% S W e il=
9 October 2012 14,080 - 14,080
—T-—FtANR
26 September 2014 260,000 (260,000) -
............................................ B B ]
... . 310,780 ... (260,000) ... 50,780
Employees 25 October 2010 8,000 - 8,000
B8 —E-TF+A-thA
9 October 2012 440 - 440
—T-F+ANR
26 September 2014 27,200 (27,200) -
............................................ R A B
35,640 (27,200) 8,440
Suppliers of services or goods 25 October 2010 13,000 - 13,000
BRERERSER. R R A E R
Total 359,420 (287,200) 72,220
st
Exercisable at 31 December 2017 72,220
R-_E—+tF+-_RA=+—HAF
Weighted average exercise price
(HK$ per share) 0.32 0.26 0.73

91T ME (B k)
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. LR AEBZ2ARRKRSZ (&)

(Continued)
Movements of the share options and their BRESBREMETIGTEEE)
weighted average exercise price (Continued)
Number of share options
FBAESA
As at As at
1 January 31 December
2016 2016
Grantees Options grant date RZFT—RF Forfeited RZFE—RF
HEA FRRRER L B —A—H B8 +=ZR=+—H
'000 '000 '000
T T T
Directors 25 October 2010 36,700 — 36,700
2 —T-TF+A-+hHE
9 October 2012 14,080 — 14,080
—T-—%TANAE
26 September 2014 325,000 (65,000) 260,000
............................................ SRR AT R e
OO TRORRTRR P 875,780 .......065000) ... 310,780
Employees 25 October 2010 8,000 — 8,000
B8 —T-TF+A-thA
9 October 2012 440 — 440
—E-_F+ANA
26 September 2014 53,200 (26,000) 27,200
............................................ T A B
61,640 (26,000) 35,640
Suppliers of services or goods 25 October 2010 13,000 = 13,000
PRTS S L FE S —T-TF+A-+hHE
Total 450,420 (91,000) 359,420
5t
Exercisable at 31 December 2016 359,420

RIZE—A"F+-A=1+—HaHE

Weighted average exercise price
(HK$ per share) 0.34 0.26 0.32
TS EE B/ R)
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2017 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.64 (2016:
1.64) years.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 287,200,000
(2016: 91,000,000) vested share options granted were
lapsed (2016: forfeited upon the resignation of grantees).

The fair value of the share options granted to the Directors,
employees and sub-contractors was determined based on
the fair value of the equity instruments measured on the
date of grant. Share options granted to the sub-contractors
are an incentive to them for their continuing contribution to
the Group for providing services similar to those rendered
by its employees. The fair value of the share options
granted to the consultants and suppliers was determined
based on the fair value of the share options granted.

The fair value of the share options granted were calculated
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model or Binomial
option pricing model. Details of the inputs to the model are

37. LR AER 2 IRRZ @)

R-EBE—+F+=- A=+—BHKRTEER
ERIMEFHBTEYNFHREB04F(ZZ
—NE 1.64%F)

RBE-T—tF+-A=+—RHLFE"
278,200,000 % ( = & — 7 #F : 91,000,000
B ERENERBBBRERM(ZF—X
F - AAEEABTBORML)

RYES RBEADEBZBRERAET
BREXELBERAE ST AAAENE
T AN ERXHZBEERSEBEER
AEE-EREREREMEHRERS 2R
BAEL 2 BBt - X T ER KRS 2Bk
BAAEDREARLEREZ AR EME
=

ERNBERERAERRE 2 -FB A
T EEA g E AR EEEET
T8 o BXANBAZIB ZFERHIIT

as follows:
Inputs into the model BEX A SE
25 August 25 October 9 October 26 September
2009 2010 2012 2014
—EENF —E-2F —EB—=F —E-mF
NA=+&EHB +A=+EH +ARE RA=+7xB
Exercise price 1TfEE HK$0.385 HK$0.171 HK$0.05 HK$0.26
0.385/87C 017187 0.05/87T 0.26 87T
Expected volatility 87.04% to 102% 57.78% 51.22% 53.74%
& B
Expected life 0.5-2years  4.8-7.2years 7.5-7.6 years 3.3 years
TRERFHf 05FE2%F A48ET2F T5FET64F 3.3%F
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0%
TEEIAR B &
Risk-free rate 0.16%-0.522% 2.0970% 0.7510% 0.9507%

e\ ) 2
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Expected volatility is determined by reference to the
historical volatility of weekly return for companies in the
same industry. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on the Directors’ best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

Risk-free interest rate represents the yields to maturity of
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note with respective terms to
maturity as at the valuation date.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used
in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the best estimate of the Directors. The value of an
option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

No expenses (2016: approximately HK$2,215,000) was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2017 in
relation to share options granted by the Company.

RESERVES

(@ Share premium represents shares issued at a
premium. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the share premium account is cancelled upon the
Capital Reorganisation (note 36).

(b) The merger reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the aggregate
share capital of subsidiaries acquired over the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange pursuant to the reorganisation of the Group
taken place before the listing of Company on the
Stock Exchange.

—tF A=+ —HIFE

37.

38.
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38. RESERVES (Continued)

()

Share option reserve represents the fair value of share
options granted.

Capital redemption reserve represents the transfer
from accumulated losses of the amount equivalent to
the par value of the shares repurchased.

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, entities
established and operated in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of their after-tax-profit (after offsetting
prior year losses) as determined in accordance with
the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50%
of the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of a dividend to
equity owners.

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations.

Contributed surplus of the Group represents the
transfer the credits of share premium account from
the cancellation upon the Capital Reorganisation (note
36).

38. f#&E &)

(©)
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. HEMHB QA
(@ On 18 June 2017, the Group disposed of its indirectly @ RZE—tFATNH - XEEN
owned subsidiary, Haicheng Huatu, which engaged R REARY1,000,0007T (FHE R
in technology and software application development #91,153,000/870) A—RBBILE=F
business, to an independent third party for a cash HEHMEZEHRBARESEER (HER
consideration of RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to T B FE RS ETS) - ZIBER HE
approximately HK$1,153,000). The transaction was RZE—tFNA=HAZTK °

completed on 3 August 2017.

The net assets of Haicheng Huatu at the date of BEERNTEEHH 2 EEFEN
disposal were as follows: T
Consideration received: 2 W fRE :
HK$’000
FAT
Cash consideration received BEWBRERE 1,153
Analysis of assets and liabilities over BRERGRZEEREBEI M :
which control was lost:
Goodwil B 20,021
Property, plant and equipment . E Y 48
Amounts due from customers for contract works JEWE & #) T2 1A 2,679
Trade and other receivables Z 5 RE M EKIA 9,128
Pledged bank deposits EHEARITER 1
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR RIRE 361
Trade and other payables B 5 LA MR FRIE (13,120)
Tax payable FERS TR (5628)
Deferred income TEIELA (501)

Net assets disposed of BEHEZEEFE 18,089
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. HEMB AT (®)
(@)  (Continued) @ (&)
HK$’000
FAT
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—BENBE QT ZEE :
Consideration received BRE 1,153
Net assets disposed of BEHEZEEFE (18,089)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of 7Sk 2= S FT B A A% HIHERS 15
the net assets of the subsidiary reclassified B AREEFEREREN
from equity to profit or loss on loss of control DEEBRELC RFTENER
of the subsidiary (1,977)
Loss on disposal HEEE (18,913)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEREEZHESRATE .
Cash consideration HEeRE 1,153
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BEHEZIRITHEBRKIRS (361)
792
The disposed subsidiary had no significant impact on EHEZHBAREASEHEZE_Z
the results and cash flows of the Group for the year —tFERZFE-RE+A=+—8H
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. IFEHERRERESBEANY

2,
=
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. HEMB AT (®)

(b) On 5 February 2016, the Group disposed of its by RZZETE—A"E-FAH  AEE
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Grand State 5 & K B738,000E ;L (B E R4
Holdings Limited (“Grand State”) which was engaged 5,756,000 70 ) M — BB E = H
in mining and exploration business, to an independent EERERBEAMREBHEEDZE
third party for a cash consideration of US$738,000 B2 A B Grand State Holdings Limited
(equivalent to approximately HK$5,756,000). The ([Grand State]) - ZEX FNR_F
transaction was completed on 18 March 2016. —NF=ZATNEHZEK °
The net assets of Grand State at the date of disposal Grand State R H & B Hi 2 B EFEN
were as follows: T
Consideration received: BWRRE :

HK$’000

FAT
Cash consideration received BYERERE 5,756
Analysis of the assets over which EREEHEZEEDN
control was lost:

Property, plant and equipment MR BEREE o
Net assets disposed of BEHECEESE —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—BEREA Tz :
Consideration received EWRMRE 5,756
Netassets disposed of . EREZHEERE o
Gain on disposal (note 11) o Yeas (fisE11) 5,756
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HENELZRESRAFE
Cash consideration ReRE 5,756
The disposed subsidiary had no significant impact on DHEZ B ARYAERHE-Z
the results and cash flows of the Group for the year —RNE+—A=+—HIEE &

ended 31 December 2016. R el EEATE
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39. HEMB AT (&)

As referred to in note 11, on 20 September 2016, (c)
the Group discontinued its mining and exploration

business at the time of disposal of Fast Billion Group,

to an independent third party for a cash consideration

of US$200,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,560,000). The transaction was completed on

Wt s AT - R

/\ﬁj-l.rﬂ

—+BAXREBE R AR £ R {E 200,000
=t (HHE M 491,560,000 7t ) [A] —

ZEIE=NHEREEERFKILE
REBELBREY - ZBXFER_F

—RNFRAZTHEZEX -

20 September 2016.
The net assets of Fast Billion Group at the date of REEBHRESEBE 2EEFEN
disposal were as follows: T
Consideration received: BWRRE :
HK$’000
FET
Cash consideration received BEWBRERE 1,560
Analysis of assets and liabilities over BREERGRZEEREBEI N :
which control was lost:
Goodwill kS —
Mining licences PRiERE R —
Exploration and evaluation assets iR R E B E —
Inventories 2 9
Trade and other receivables 2 5 &AM W GRIE 843
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB KRR E 15
Deferred income IEFEWA (4,152)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEAEZFE (3,285)
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c) (Continued)

39. HEWEB AT (&)
© #&)

HK$’000
FAET
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMB ARzl :
Consideration received 2R E 1,560
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEAEFE 3,285
Non-controlling interests FEER R =R (864)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect IR EET B A A1 b e R
of the net assets of the subsidiaries MEBAREEFERERENHE
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on EESEACRITIELER
loss of control of the subsidiaries 70,491
Gain on disposal (note 11) & Yas (fisE11) 74,472
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEBELECZRERAFEE
Cash consideration BHERE 1,560
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BB CRITERKIAS (15)
1,545
The impact of Fast Bilion Group on the Group’s results REEBEHASEBE_T—~F

and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2016

is disclosed in note 11.

+-A=1+—BIEEFEZEENES
MERNFERERWE -
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40. COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties
and an intangible asset which fall due as follows:

40. 7EIE

REHEERE
REBERFEBA

RBMERR - AEBERBENATRHELEHEE
A THER —RENEEZRKRER
ENFURERT ¢

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT F&TT

Within one year —FR 10,106 16,883
In the second to fifth years, F_FEFRF (BEEEMT)

e Oy e, 14370 30,969
24,476 47,442

The Group leases certain properties and an intangible asset
under operating leases. The leases are negotiated for an
initial period of one to five years (2016: one to five years),
with an option to renew the leases and renegotiate the
terms at the expiry date. Rentals are fixed for an average of
two years (2016: two years).

Capital commitment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following capital commitment:

AEERBELEHERES TYEL —AE
WEE  -ZSHEREZNTFMA—ER
F(ZEB—RF: —Z20F)  WATARSH
AAREHEREREDIER - HeRFHF
HME (ZF—RF : MFIEE -

BARESE
RMERR - NEREBATEARIE

2017 2016
— —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHAT
Contracted for but not NI E= ]
provided for in the BETAMER
consolidated financial RERE B ISR
statements in respect of 5
— Intangible asset — EREAE 3,602 —
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BEBAERS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BRiZE M BRREMBOBEEIN  XEE
statements, the Group had the following material BB AHEUNTEARARS -
transactions with related parties:
(a) Transactions with related companies (a) EEEABEARIZR S
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
()  Subcontracting cost payable to e —FEiE 2 R A
an associate o EER 22,575 38,419
(i)  Rental expenses for office premises  FE — & IFEILILER A
payable to a non-controlling WAMERSHRX
shareholder — 4,149
(i)  Rental income receivable JE U — eI B 22 A B A
from an associate AL UWA - 300

The related party transaction in respect of (i) above
does not constitute connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The related party transaction in respect of (i) above
constituted a continuing connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The term
of the tenancy expired on 29 August 2016. Details are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 3
March 2017.

The related party transaction in respect of (iii) above
constituted a continuing connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, however it
is exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

BRELXEWRZBEB TR 5L EE
R EMRAEIAATIE THER S
RERERS -

B B L3 (i) 1R 2 BB T R S B A Hr
BB Z(EER LMHRRE14A
B) - I AEWZEER T —RFN
AZ+THhBEH - FENERAAR]
BRA—T—tF=-A=AZRE

08 SO (i) 6. BB 7 2 S
EMER S (EER ETRBIE14A
&) TR RS L HAILE 14
52 BB -
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 41.

(b) Key management personnel

Included in staff costs is key management personnel
compensation which comprises the following

BEMAERS &)

(b) EEEEAER

BTRABREATSHEZERZEEA
E#E -

categories:

2017 2016
—ET—+tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FAET
Short-term benefits g HAE A 4,578 4,283

Equity-settled share-based LA RS A5 E N LA
payment expenses AN P53 - 1,260
Post-employment benefits BRI T 407 412
4,985 5,955

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 42,

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital and to support the
Group’s stability and growth.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes borrowings, convertible notes and interest-
bearing amount due to a non-controlling shareholder, net of
bank balances and cash, and pledged bank deposits.

e

EEREBTERABNFMEFINE
2R EEEMNALHRIR LTSS

B °

1
18

EXEHE

AREZERNEEBRRRENKERERE
e AmAaRRERDR  FRERER
i E 2 - WEITREZEARRBEIN
IR B AR - LA R M4 AN R B 2 R AN
£ o

AEE 2 EARRBERIEHEY - FHEBEE
B8 - TRERENREN —BIHERRRZ
SEEFA - HRIRITRBR MRS KB ERIR
1T
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42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

43.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
gearing ratio, i.e. net debt to equity. To maintain or adjust

the capital structure, the Group may issue new shares as

it sees fit and appropriate. No change was made in the

objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

M

(i)

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, certain
trade and other receivables of approximately
RMB12,261,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$14,721,000) (2016: RMB6,564,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$7,328,000)) in aggregate were
offset against the amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder (2016: trade and other payables),
pursuant to the set-off agreements. Details are set out
in note 5(e).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, amount
due to an associate of approximately RMB34,234,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$39,485,000) was
transferred to trade payables following the disposal of
Beijing Peace Power.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, inventories
of approximately HK$5,372,000 were transferred to
property, plant and equipment at its fair value at the
date of transfer.

42.

43.

EXRER &)

AEERERNB B REAEZIEHEARR
B REERDRFETRAEDSE - B4
FGAEEARE  MRA/ELEE - K
SEXEEITHRD - REE-FT—tFK
“E-RFTA=THILFE  *&E
MEENEANEE ZBR  BORIIEF °

EXFRERS

) REE=_TE—tF+-A=+—AH1t
FE - ETESREMEKRKES
HH AR #12,261,0007T (FHE R K
14,721,000 7L) (ZE—RF : AR
& 6,564,000 7T ( 1 & 7 497,328,000
BIT)) EARBIEE R EEEN —R
IR RAFB(ZE—ARF: EH5K
HALEFRIR) o FEBENHIZES(E) °

i) MEBEE=—Z—tF+=-A=+—¢H
HFEE BN —RHEBEQRRE
4 A R #34,234,0007T( B E R4
39,485,000 % 7T) RIEEIL R K TEZE
MEEREREE FEMNKIE -

iy RBEZZE—AR"F+-A=+—HL
FE - 495,372,000 8 THFED IKE
BEHNAAEESREDE  BEX
A o
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4L4. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 4G4, RN T 2 IR &R
THE COMPANY

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T FET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries  WHIEARZES 91897 857,904
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other TEA 508 K E At FE U RIR
receivables 1,014 786
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEULBTE A &) 30E 58,353 38,346
Tax recoverable AT g B 75 T8 6 6
_Bankbalancesandcash  &iTEmEZRE 3587 . 82,960
e 02960 72,098
Current liabilities REAEE
Other payables and accruals HiENFIBREAER 2,232 1,854
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEST B B A B R IE 8,074 8,082
_Convertiblenotes AR e 94829 o
o e 104,835 . 9,936
_Net current (liabilities) assets #n® (Bf)&E (41,875) 62,162
Total assets less HEERRBARS
_..currentliabilities 9822 620,066
Non-current liability FERBEE
_Convertiblenotes R, e 427,856 469282
Net (liabilities) assets FEE (378,334) 150,784
Equity R
Share capital % 81,568 2,039,195
Reserves 1t (@) (459,902) (1,888,411)

Total equity R (378,334) 150,784
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4L4. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF LG4, KNT) 2B ARREK (&)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: BiisE -
(@) (@)
Convertible
Share Capital note equity
Share Contributed option redemption reserve  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve TEREE losses Total
RitiafE EON:LS BhERE  EABEHE ERff ZitFi Eh
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
(note 3)
(M£33)
At1 January 2016 R=E-~"5-A-A 1,087,267 76,249 46,903 6,629 156,998 (2,528,424) (1,154,378)
Loss and total comprehensive EMBERZENGLE
income for the year - - - - - (736,248) (736,248)
Forfeiture of share options Rk - = (,892) = = 6,692 =
Recognition of equity-setfied ERNEREE TR
... Saebased payments (le 3 xfiZmx(Ess) SRR T T T, T2
At 31 December 2016.and 1 January 2017 R=E-7~E+=f=1-H
R=F-t+£-A-H 1,087,267 76,249 42,206 6,629 156,998 (3,257,780) (1,888,411)
Loss and total comprehensiveincome ~~ FABERZ AMNZAE
for the year - — — — — (629,118) (629,118)
Capttal ecuction (note 36) BBl (BzE 36) (1,087,267) 1,087,267 = = = = =
Capital Reorganisation (note 36 TRAEAR (i 36) = (1,087,267) = = = 3,044,804 1,957,627
lapseoishaeoptons  BEERK RO T ey R ant. T
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t#+-A=1-H - 76,249 20,515 6,629 156,998 (720,299) (459,902)
Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between KRB A BERE T B BT B A ml R & B A
the costs of investment in subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value HARARAN A R EE AR FT LT 2 AT S B E 4R
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange pursuant BRI AN A RRAEE 2 HH =5 o

to the reorganisation of the Group taken place before the listing of
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange.
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. TEMBRAAFE
SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December RZE—+tFR-_ZT—ARF+-_A=+—H
2017 and 2016 are as follows: ZEEKMBARGEBUOT
Paid up issued/ Percentage of effective equity
Place of incorporation registered ordinary interest and voting right
or establishment/ share capital attributable to the Group as at
Name of Company operation BB/ RUTASREBER Principal activities
ARER dfday/SEonk  EREERRK ERRERRERESY IEEH
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
“E-tE I
TZA=t-A  t-A=t-H
Interests held directly:
ERGRER:
Brave Lion Investments Limited BV US$1 100% 100%  Investment halding
ABRUES 157 RERR
Jichang Investments Limited BV US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBRAES 137 REARR
Polar Sea Ventures Limited BV US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ABRLES E RERR
Interests held indirectly:
BEsEER
Peace Map Management Hong Kong HKS1 100% 100%  Provision of administrative
Senices Limited 3 1871 senvices in Hong Kong
A NEERREARAA EERRMEERE
Peace Map Technology Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Technology and software
Company Limited &k 1,000,000 70 application development
A NEREARAA R RE RS
Sinbo BVl HK$10,821 100% 100%  Investment holding

g AERARS 1082170 REER
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Paid up issued/

45. FEMB A RFE ®)

Percentage of effective equity

Place of incorporation registered ordinary interest and voting right
or establishment/ share capital attributable to the Group as at
Name of Company operation 4rogr/ RUT SR EEER Principal activities
ARER dfay/ Sk ERSERRK ERBERARREIN IERH
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
“E-tE 2R
t=Azt-B_ +7A=t-8

Interests held indirectly: (Continued)

BEEEER (£

Beiing Peace Map Information (note v) PRC HK$179,000,000 100% 100%  Technology and software

IRATEES (i) hE 179,000,007 application development

BB AR
Beiing Peace Map (note i) PRC RMB29,170,000 81.15% 81.15%  Data processing of geographical
JHFATE (i) EF AR 29,170,000 (note) (note) data, research and development
(MzEi) (Bzki) of geographic information
system (“GIS") in the PRC
BT R RRE
WRHERAENEES 25
([HBEEZL])

Beiing Peace Map Aerospace PRC RMB1,000,000 81.15% 81.15%  Sales of geographical data
Technology Limited * # ARE1,000,00070 (note ) (otei)  HEMBHR
("Peace Map Aerospace’) (PsEi) (P3Ei)

(note )

IR TERARIERAT
([XTERX])(Fiztv)

AVIC Siwei (Beijing) Aviation PRC RMB15,000,000 53.56% 53.56% Data processing of geographical
Remote Sensing Technology e AR 1500000070 (note i (note i) data and tracing of aerial
Limited” ("AVIC Siwei") (note ) (B i) (Prsti) photo taking cameras

PRLE (R MEERRITER AT BB HERENR
([ ) (Ftw) EETTHRGHE

Clear Aerial Technology Co. Limited” PRC RMB2,150,000 21.32% 21.32%  Manufacturing and trading of
("Beijing Langtian Botai) ote )~ F AR%2,1500007 (note i (noteii unmanned aircrafts and

IRPRERREARAT (Rt (Bzkii) related equipment

(TERExmE]) ()

LEREEREARBLEERE
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. TEMBRARFE )

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Paid up issued/

Percentage of effective equity

Place of incorporation registered ordinary interest and voting right
or establishment/ share capital attributable to the Group as at
Name of Company operation 4rogm/ RUAT SR EEER Principal activities
AAER dfay/ Sk ERSERRK ERRERREREY IERH
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
“E-tE E5
t-B=t-A +ZA=1-A
Interests held indirectly: (Continued)
BEEEER (£
Yunan Tugun Information Technology PRC RMB3,000,000 81.15% 81.15%  Trading of sef-cleveloped products
Limited® (note i) HE AR¥30000007C (notei hotei)  EERTREER
EHESHEREERAR (Mh) (HizEi) (M)
LR MR RINERAT PRC RMB3,000,000 48.69% NA  Notyet commence business
(notes v vi) EF AR 3,000,000 (note ) NER  HARE
(HizEi, vi) i)
RRRTEEEASERER AR PRC RMB3,000,000 41.40% NA ot yet commence business
(notes v, vi hE AR%30000007 (notei) MNER  WARE
(HzE, vii) i)
Haicheng Huatu PRC RMB15,000,000 - 81.15%  Technology and software
(note iv) # AR 15,000,000 (note v (note i) application development
BEEE (M) R3] (M) HERBEERRE
Zhejiang Peace Map Information PRC RMB6,000,000 81.15% 81.15%  GIStechnology and
and Technology Limited" (note i) e AK%6,0000007 (note i (note i) software application
IR TEHEEERTERA (B3 (Hain) development
(MfzEiv) HREEZRRR

AR
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Paid up issued/

45. FEMB A RFE ®)

Percentage of effective equity

Place of incorporation registered ordinary interest and voting right
or establishment/ share capital attributable to the Group as at
Name of Company operation 4rogr/ RUT SR EEER Principal activities
ARER dfay/ Sk ERSERRK ERBERARREIN IERH
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
“E-tE 2R
t2A=t-8  +-A=t-8
Interests held indirectly: (Continued)
BARE: (£
Guizhou Peace Map Information PRC RMB10,000,000 81.15% 81.15%  GIStechnology and
and Technology Limited” (note iv) # ARE10,000,0007T (note i (note i) Software application
EMRTERERIARAR (Hitv) (Fesii) (Fzin) development
WRESAGRIR
B ERRY
Shanghai Elite International Trading PRC RVB10,000,000 100% 100%  Trading
Co., Limited* (note i) iF ARE10,000,0007T g5

LEEBRERERARAA (Wiv)

* For identification purpose only

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in

the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

FRITEERAUAFELEELTEY
ERERAEBEEFETEND 2 AEE
MEBAR - ERRE - WML EAMME R RE
T REERERHEENTE
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities

outstanding as at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Notes:

(i)

(V)

(vi)

(i)

(i)

No equity interests of Beijing Peace Map was held by the
Company. Beijing Peace Map Information, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Sinbo entered into the Structural Agreements
with Beijing Peace Map and its then shareholders in October
2012. Notwithstanding the lack of equity ownership, through
the Structural Agreements, Beijing Peace Map Information
is able to exercise control over Peace Map Group by way of
controlling the voting rights of Beijing Peace Map, governing
their financial and operating policies, appointing and removing
the majority of the members of their controlling authorities,
casting the majority of votes at meeting of such authorities and
deriving economic benefits from Peace Map Group. Accordingly,
Peace Map Group is accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group
after the acquisition of Sinbo Group on 2 August 2013. As
one of the then shareholders of Beijing Peace Map with equity
interests of 18.85% was not a contracting party to the Structural
Agreements, only 81.15% of the financial results of Peace Map
Group is attributable to the Group.

These companies are subsidiaries directly non-wholly owned
and controlled by Beijing Peace Map.

This entity is a subsidiary indirectly owned and controlled by
Beijing Peace Map.

These entities are registered as a private limited company under
the PRC law.

This entity is registered as Wholly Owned Foreign Entity under
the PRC law.

This entity was disposed of on 18 June 2017 and the disposal
was completed on 3 August 2017.

This entity is established on 3 July 2017.

This entity is established on 23 June 2017.

REMBHRRME

—EFF = AI S SEhFE

45. TEMB A RFE ®)

B B A R AR S F M AR R
B8 2 B5RE%5
B aE

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vil)

(viii

AR RRER AL R KT B & E A R A R
me B2 —HE2EWBARLRATE
FEREIFATNENHEEBENRENR-Z
——F+ AR AR o AW EE
EREFFTARE  HIERKTEEEEHE
BZABERZREGIERATEMNEE
- ETHBRLERK  TREER
BEH AR DK E RNk €3 Ei%
AEZEEMEHRTNEEE - Iﬂm%T
ESEEERLENZD - Al - RZF—=
FNAZHRKEBFESEER X TES®E
ERBASEBZKHBARNIE - ERIERX
TEEREP—BRFES 18.85% fEm A
WIEEB M HEZFTOR - A TEEE
RBE81.15% 2 WIS EERBNRALE -

ZER T?%il:ﬁtﬂi"l—lﬁ?yﬁié%&ﬁ&
[ =N

VI
T

-+

ﬁit,‘?ﬂiT.FEﬁzz%ﬁ&T ) 2 Bt

o

B X
> ‘ﬂﬂ}
EI

SEEIRETEEeENALAGRA

o

Hlili

ZEBREPEIAREMRINTBEDE -

HZEBER-_ZE—tFAT/N\BHE
& UR_B—tFNA=ZATKEE -
ZERNR T —tFtA=HKIL
ZERN T —tFRA-T=HAKT -



282 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED %k T Bl E R A R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E2—F—+F+=-H=1—HIFE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority of
these subsidiaries operates in Hong Kong and BVI. The

45. FEMB A RFE ®)

RBEYR - NAFFEBHAEEL TEKR
ZEHMHBARR - BAZBULENBARR
BEMRBRIESEEE - ZFHER

principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as Al EFEEBBAMLT -
follows:
Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FEEK FEEEMY MEARHE
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
N “EAF
t=A=+t-B +=A=t+—H
Dormant BVI 1 1
EEN-—+4 BERELEHS
Investment holding Hong Kong 1 1
REER i
BVI 2 2
RERLRS
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46. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The table below shows the details of non-wholly owned

4L6. MEBEARFEZERER 2 F2EM

BLRRZFHE

TRAXREENEFEAEAIERER L

subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling IEEMBARZFFE :
interests:
Place of Percentage of effective
incorporation or equity interest and
establishment/ voting right attributable to
operation the non-controlling interests as at Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of Subsidiary AL/ BEN TS ERELE non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
WRARER Tend HERRERRREA AL AREFERESR 28R (BR) EithERER
31December ~ 31December 31 December  31December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
22-tf T ZBtF 0 CTF ZBRtF 0 R0
tZA=t-B fZA=+-B tzA=t-B +ZA=t-B tZA=t-B +ZA=1-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEn T Tén i
Beiing Peace Map (note i) PRC 18.85% 18.85% (22,309) (15,068 (26,479) 50,471
FRRTE (W) el
AVIC Siwei (notes |, i PRC 46.44% 46.44% (3,799) (4724) (16,784) (6,107)
i (i i) hEl
Individually subsicliaries
with immaterial non-controlling interests 2,483 9,672 12,088 7,489
ﬁ%ﬁ;FEK;FE\D n*éézf%‘“ﬂj%ﬁﬂ ................................................................
(23,625) (10,720) (31,175) 51,853
Notes: BaE
()  No equity interest is held by the Company. The Company has ()  ARARILEFAEEARAER - AARE
control over the subsidiaries through the Structural Agreements. BEBERRTEHZEMNBAR - BB
Further details of the Structural Agreements are set out in note a2 i — R BEERMIEE45 () -
45(j).
(ii) The company is a subsidiary directly owned and controlled by (i ZARR—RALRRTEBEZES RIZ

Beijing Peace Map.

IREHTE A E] -
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46. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup

46.

BEEARFERESZIIEZEM
BARz#HE @)

BRBAE IR RS 2 AREEMBA
Al Z AT E MBI E RN T3 » AT AR
BRIERE A EIEZ AT 808 -

eliminations.

2017 2016

—E—+F ZE—RF

Beijing Peace Map =KX T HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET

Current assets MEVEE 424,265 501,751
Non-current assets SERBEE 481,619 527,809
Current liabilities mBaE (807,256) (704,279)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (37,575) (57,529)

Equity attributable to owners RATER AEGRERE

of the Company 49,545 217,281
Non-controlling interests IR R A 11,508 50,471
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46. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED L6, BEERFERER ZFEZEM
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL BARIzHE®)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Beijing Peace Map (Continued) tZ=XTE (&) HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Revenue Wz 188,358 213,496
Expenses X (306,708) (296,618)
Loss for the year FAEE (118,350) (83,122)
Loss attributable to owners RAEER AEILEE
of the Company (96,041) (67,454)
Loss attributable to the RS PR (G B 1R
ronconmolnginoress @2309) | (15609
Loss for the year FNEE (118,350) (83,122)
Other comprehensive expense  ANA Al1HEH AFE(L
attributable to owners Hth2mEAxX
of the Company (71,695) (80,748)
Other comprehensive expense  FEIEARMERSFELL
attributable to the Hth2mEAX
non-controlling interests (16,654) (7,143)

Other comprehensive expense  FREH{th 2 EBRIX
for the year (88,349) (87,891)
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46.

DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED

46. R ERFEZERER 2 IFZEM

SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL BARz#HE @)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E-RF
Beijing Peace Map (Continued) tZ=XTE (%) HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FA&T

Total comprehensive expense VIN/NSIEZ DN

attributable to owners FHEFMZ B

of the Company (167,736) (98,202)
Total comprehensive expense FEFERR R AR R

attributable to the FHEMZ B

non-controlling interests (38,963) (22,811)
Total comprehensive expense FRNEHEFZ BT

for the year (206,699) (121,013)
Dividends paid to B IR RS 2 R E

non-controlling interests - —
Net cash inflow from KEES R E

operating activities MAHEE 68,511 17,322
Net cash outflow from KEEB 2R EMLFE

investing activities (26,990) (14,026)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from MEEB HE (ORE)

financing activities MAFEE (15,866) 7,139
Net cash inflow RN FRE 25,655 10,435
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46. BEEARFERERZ 2 FEEM

SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL BARIzHE®)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
AVIC Siwei PR A A4 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Current assets MBNEE 80,314 92,415
Non-current assets FERENEE 8,238 23,899
Current liabilities MEEE (124,693) (125,416)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE - (4,047)
Equity attributable to owners RAFIHEE AEEER
of the Company (19,357) (7,042)
Non-controlling interests FIEfEp R (16,784) (6,107)
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46. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED

46. R ERFEZERER 2 IFZEM

SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL BARIZEHE®)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
AVIC Siwei (Continued) R4 (&) HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Revenue e 7,844 6,438
Expenses A (16,025) (16,609)
Loss for the year FAEE (8,181) (10,171)
Loss attributable to owners RAEER AEILEE
of the Company (4,382) (5,447)
Loss attributable to the AR PR (G B 1R
non-controlling interests (3,799_) ........ (4724)
Loss for the year FANEE (8,181) (10,171)
Other comprehensive expense  ZANA & A AN
attributable to owners Htt2mEAX
of the Company (739) (2,042)
Other comprehensive expense  FEHEARREZSFE(L
attributable to the Htt2mEAX
non-controlling interests (641_) ........ (1769)
Other comprehensive expense  FREMEEF X
for the year (1,380) (3,811)
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46. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED

46. BEEARFERERZ 2 FEEM

SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL BAoRz#HE @)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
AVIC Siwei (Continued) AT 4E (45) HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT

Total comprehensive expense RATER AL

attributable to owners HERZ B

of the Company (5,121) (7,489)
Total comprehensive expense IR R

attributable to the FHEFZ B

non-controlling interests (4,440) (6,493)
Total comprehensive expense FRNEHEFZ BT

for the year (9,561) (13,982)
Dividends paid to B IR RS 2 IR E

non-controlling interests - -
Net cash outflow from KRB 2R e MR

operating activities (5,501) (1,037)
Net cash outflow from KEEB 2R EMLFE

investing activities (15) (90)
Net cash outflow WE ML FEE (5,516) (1,127)
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47. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 47. MEETEMEL B EYHIR
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFABREETHFIEERAEENEEY
arising from financing activities, including both cash and 3 BIEReMIERSEE  EEBESE
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities MWEEERRSRED LRI KRKASRE
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows BREEHReERERTIEARELZHAS
will be, classified in the consolidated statement of cash MEMAE -

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Non-cash changes
FRERE

Offsetwith Derecognised  Reclassify

Finance Foreign trade and through to trade
1January  Financing costs  exchange other  disposalof  and other 31 December
2017 cash flows incurred  movements  receivables  a subsidiary payables 2017
FBLE  ENAE
“E-tE i EH#EAR -BWELT ZEARHEfE —F-tF

-RA-B RMERER  RMERE  HNERD HERUWAE  RERR EARE t-A=1-A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TEL TR TR Thn TAL TAL

Borrowings (note 32) a5 (Mika2) 31250 13,378 = 2360 = = = 46,988
Amount due toa ER—REERRE

non-controling B (3t 18)

shareholder (note 18) 80,800 (2,202) - 5413 (14,721) - - 69,290
Amounts due to associates  JEREEENAZUA 44,135 (186) - 1,704 - - (39,485) 6,168
Deferred income BTRA 264 230 = 7 = (501) = =
Convertblenotes (note 33) ~ THARER (HiF33) 469282 - 53,103 - - - = 522,385

625,731 11,220 53,103 9484 (14721) B0 (39485 644831
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48. DEREGISTRATION OF A SUBSIDIARY 48. FHH—EME AT
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group REBE=E—"F+A=+—HILFE "
deregistered a subsidiary, Shenghezhuang. RNEBE M B A R B FE -
The net assets of Shenghezhuang at the date of BAER A 2 BEFERT ¢

deregistration were as follows:

HK$'000
FAT
Analysis of asset over KEBFIRZEED N :
which control was lost:
Other receivables H th & W IR 1,345
Net asset deregistered B BEFE 1,345
Loss on deregistration of HHE—EHRBATZEE
a subsidiary:
Net asset deregistered B EEFE 1,345
Non-controlling interests e M A 3,373
4,718
The deregistered subsidiary had no significant impact on BRI MBAREAEERE_T—RF
the results and cash flows of the Group for the year ended T A=+t BUEFEZEERREREY

31 December 2016. EEATE o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHME

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of ATEIN 2 AESERERA AT BRFE2EREAR
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from EERBERENRHEE 2 TIBNKEZLE M
the published audited consolidated financial statements, is B o W B MERKEEZGE MBmEKR 2
shown below. This summary does not form part of the audited — &b o

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS ¥EE
For the
nine months
ended
31 December
5z
For the year ended 31 December +ZA=1-H
BET-B=1—-HLEE IENEA
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-tF “ERF “T-AF “T-F =
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTEx TEIT FEIT TEIT
Revenue A 195,044 232,778 304,381 333,808 210,089
Loss for the year/period FR/BHER (657,117) (520,293) (154,711) (382,467) (271,162)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
As at 31 December
W+=RA=+-H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-tF —ERF “T-HF s “T-=F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEIT TEIT S TEIT
Total assets BEE 744,395 1,255,419 1,055,498 1,864,318 2,053,573
Total liabilities maf (1,033,189) (920,385) (967,653) (1,226,571) (1,268,472)

Total equity g (288,794) 334,534 987,845 637,747 785,101
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